#### SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



ITEM: 3.45 (ID # 26102) MEETING DATE: Tuesday, October 22, 2024

#### FROM : TLMA-TRANSPORTATION

**SUBJECT:** TRANSPORTATION AND LAND MANAGEMENT AGENCY/TRANSPORTATION: Intent to Adopt the Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Approve the Markham Street Extension Project. Clerk to File the Notice of Determination. District 2. [\$0]

**RECOMMENDED MOTION:** That the Board of Supervisors:

- 1. Adopt a Final Initial Study with Mitigated Negative Declaration and adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program based on the findings in the Initial Study and that the project will not have a significant effect on the environment;
- 2. Approve the Markham Street Extension Project; and
- Direct the Riverside County Transportation Department to file the Notice of Determination with the County Clerk and the State Clearinghouse for posting within five (5) working days of the project approval.

#### **ACTION:Policy**



#### MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

On motion of Supervisor Gutierrez, seconded by Supervisor Spiegel and duly carried by unanimous vote, IT WAS ORDERED that the above matter is approved as recommended.

Ayes:	Jeffries, Spiegel, Washington, Perez and Gutierrez
Nays:	None
Absent:	None
Date:	October 22, 2024
XC:	Trans.

Kimberly A. Rector Clerk of the Board Deputy

#### SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FINANCIAL DATA	Current Fiscal Year:	Next Fiscal Year:	Total Cost:	Ongoing Cost	
COST	\$ N/A	\$ N/A	\$ N/A	\$ N/A	
NET COUNTY COST	\$ N/A	\$ N/A	\$ N/A	\$ N/A	
SOURCE OF FUNDS General Funds will be	<b>5:</b> Gas Tax (HUT) e used on this pro	Budget Adjus	tment: No		
For Fiscal fear: 24/25					

C.E.O. RECOMMENDATION: Approve

#### BACKGROUND:

#### Summary

The County of Riverside Transportation Department (County) proposes to construct approximately 1.3 miles of roadway improvements to Markham Street in the Community of Woodcrest in Riverside County.

The proposed roadway improvements include one eastbound and one westbound 12-foot-wide travel lane, with 5-foot-wide westbound and 6-foot-wide eastbound Class II bike lanes. The northern edge of the proposed roadway section would have an 8-foot-wide unpaved shoulder, and the southern edge of the proposed roadway section would include curb and gutters, a 6-foot-wide sidewalk, and a 6-foot-wide parkway.

Traffic signal improvements are required at the Markham Street and Wood Road intersection and the addition of a dedicated eastbound left-turn lane, a dedicated eastbound through lane, and a shared-through and right-turn lane. The Markham Street and Roosevelt Street intersection would remain as a stop-controlled intersection. The four smaller intersections at Oran Drive, Birch Street, Cedar Street, and James Kenny Road would require roadway modifications to develop curb returns and American with Disabilities Act (ADA)-compliant pedestrian accessible ramps to tie into the existing roadways, and the intersections would be stop controlled. Other improvements include modified existing property driveways, drainage improvements and utility relocation.

The County is the lead agency for the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). As the lead agency under CEQA, the County prepared an Initial Study (IS) with proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) to analyze the proposed Project's impacts to the environment.

The Draft IS/MND was circulated for a 30-day public review period from May 28, 2024 to June 27, 2024. Physical copies of the document were made available for public review at the County and Woodcrest Community Library in Woodcrest. An electronic copy of the document and supporting technical studies was made available online at the County's Project website. The public was notified of the availability of the document through a Notice of Availability (NOA) of a Draft IS and a Notice of Intent (NOI) to adopt a Proposed MND for the Project. The NOA/NOI was posted at the Riverside County Clerk's office and published in the Press Enterprise in English and La Prensa in Spanish. In addition, the NOA/NOI was mailed to federal, State, and

#### SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

local agencies, tribal governments, utility companies and property owners adjacent to the Project site.

Furthermore, a public meeting was held on June 18, 2024, at the Woodcrest Community Library in Woodcrest, California. Public comments were received and the County prepared responses to these comments which have been incorporated into the Final IS/MND. Based on the study's findings, the County has determined that the proposed Project will not have a significant effect on the environment because potential effects would be mitigated to a less than significant level through the incorporation of mitigation measures.

The adoption of the Final IS/MND and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the Project will complete the CEQA environmental documentation for the Project.

Final design will begin after approval of the Final IS/MND and will be completed in 2025. Construction is expected to begin in 2026. All documents are located at the Riverside County Transportation Department at 3525 14<sup>th</sup> Street, Riverside, CA 92501. As part of the adoption of the IS/MND, the Board hereby considers the IS/MND with all comments provided on the document and determines that, based upon the whole record before it, that with the incorporation of mitigation, there is no substantial evidence that the project will have a significant effect on the environment and that the IS/MND reflects the lead agency's independent judgment and analysis.

Project No. D10078

#### Impact on Residents and Businesses

The 1.3-mile-long proposed roadway improvements to Markham Street, when complete, will provide residents with a paved two-lane roadway, class II bike lanes, a sidewalk and ADA-compliant improvements as well as improve traffic circulation systems within the community of Woodcrest. The proposed improvements will promote multi-modal mobility by creating ADA-compliant ramps, sidewalks, and pedestrian/bicycle facilities. Additionally, it will enhance pedestrian and bicycle safety in the project area by providing a separate multi-modal lane from vehicular traffic.

#### Additional Fiscal Information

The Board's approval of the CEQA documents will facilitate the Project moving forward. Final design and right of way will be funded with Gas Tax/HUTA. There are no General Funds used in this project.

## Contract History and Price Reasonableness

N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Vicinity Map

#### SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Final IS/MND with MMRP NOA/NOI to Adopt MND Notice of Determination

Jason Farin, Principal Management Analyst 10/16/2024

The Sectors Aaron Gettis 10/8/2024

### Vicinity Map: Markham Street Extension Project



LAZY TRL

KAISON CIR

JBY

DAU

RAY AVE

ELN

CABL

**JEFFERSON ST** 

GASTON RD

ST

FI IZARF

ST

S

Z Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar GeographicsMandutherGISSUser Community

1 100

WARREN RD

OLEANDER AVE

S

ALEXANDER

NANCE ST

ò BARTON

The County of Riverside assumes no warranty or legal responsibility for the information contained on this map. Data and information represented on this map is subject to updates, modifications and may not be complete or appropriate for all purposes. County GIS and other sources should be queried for the most current information. Do not copy or resell this map

**KRAMERIA AVE** 

11TH ST

MH

ALLEN AVE

NMO

BR

COSTELLO AVE

SAGE ST

PERRY ST

MEAD

**BURNS ST** MOORE ST WELLS ST

DRD

ILA LN

SOUDER ST 7

HUNTER ST

MARY ST

THOMAS LN

BYRON ST

JEAN ST MARTIN ST



**CAMINO MARTINEZ** 

0

# FX



## Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration

#### Markham Street Extension Project

County of Riverside, California September 2024

Prepared for: County of Riverside Transportation Department 3525 14<sup>th</sup> Street Riverside, CA 92501

Prepared by: HDR Engineering, Inc. 591 Camino de la Reina Suite 300 San Diego, CA 92108

This page is intentionally blank.

## Contents

1	Introd	uction	1			
	Purpo	Purpose				
	Intend	ded Use of this Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration	2			
	Public	c Review of this Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration	3			
2	Projec	ct Setting and Description	4			
3	Enviro	Environmental Factors Potentially Affected				
	3.1	Aesthetics				
	3.2	Agriculture and Forestry Resources	24			
	3.3	Air Quality				
	3.4	Biological Resources				
	3.5	Cultural	61			
	3.6	Energy	65			
	3.7	Geology and Soils	66			
	3.8	Greenhouse Gas Emissions	71			
	3.9	Hazards and Hazardous Materials	74			
	3.10	Hydrology and Water Quality				
	3.11	Land Use and Planning				
	3.12	Mineral Resources				
	3.13	Noise				
	3.14	Population and Housing				
	3.15	Public Services				
	3.16	Recreation	103			
	3.17	Transportation				
	3.18	Tribal Cultural Resources	106			
	3.19	Utilities and Service Systems	110			
	3.20	Wildfire	112			
	3.21	Mandatory Findings of Significance	114			
4	Refer	ences	122			
5	List of	f Preparers	125			
	5.1	Lead Agency	125			
	5.2	Initial Study Preparers	125			
6	List of	f Technical Studies				

### Tables

Table 3.3-1. South Coast Air Quality Management District Regional Significance Thresholds	35
Table 3.3-2. South Coast Air Quality Management District Localized Significance Thresholds <sup>a</sup>	35
Table 3.3-3. Project Construction-Period Regional Emissions Estimates	36
Table 3.3-4. Operational Criteria Pollutant Emissions (tons per year)	37

Table 3.3-5. Project Construction-Period Localized Emissions Estimates	38
Table 3.4-1. Vegetation Communities and Other Land Cover Types in the Biological Study Area	42
Table 3.8-1. Summary of Construction Greenhouse Gas Emissions (metric tons per year)	72
Table 3.8-2. Summary of Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions (metric tons per year)	72
Table 3.9-1. Field Reconnaissance of EDR Database Identified Sites	76
Table 3.9-2. Additional Sites Observed during Field Reconnaissance	76
Table 3.11-1. Project Consistency with the County of Riverside General Plan	87
Table 3.13-1. Vibration Source Amplitudes for Construction Equipment	99
Table 3.17-1. Existing 2021 Roadway Segment Bi-direction ADT	104

## Figures

Figure 1. Regional Vicinity	7
Figure 2. Project Area	9
Figure 3.1-1. Eastern portion of Markham Street in Project area west of Wood Road, facing west	21
Figure 3.1-2. Western portion of Markham Street in Project area east of Roosevelt Street, facing southwest.	21
Figure 3.1-3. Portion of APN 267-210-047 in the Project area showing riparian vegetation, facing west.	22
Figure 3.1-4. Portion of APN 321-030-003 within the Project area showing agricultural area, facing east.	22
Figure 3.1-5. Portion of APN 267-190-007 in the Project area showing graded area, facing northwest.	23
Figure 3.2-1. California Important Farmland Designations	27
Figure 3.2-2. Zoning Designation	29
Figure 3.2-3. General Plan Land Use Designations	31
Figure 3.4-1. Biological Study Area, Aquatic Resources Delineation Area, and BUOW and Riparian Birds Survey Area	45
Figure 3.4-2. Vegetation Communities and Other Land Cover Types in the Biological Study Area	47
Figure 3.7-1. United States Department of Agriculture Soils Map	69
Figure 3.9-1. Hazardous Waste/Materials Site	78
Figure 3.13-1. Noise Measurement Locations	91

## Appendices

Appendix A. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

Appendix B. Response to Comments

## Acronyms

AB	Assembly Bill
ADA	American with Disabilities Act
AQMP	Air Quality Management Plan
ARDA	Aquatic Resources Delineation Area
BMP	Best Management Practice
BSA	Biological Study Area
BUOW	Burrowing Owl
CAGN	Coastal California Gnatcatcher
Caltrans	California Department of Transportation
CAP	Climate Action Plan
CDFW	California Department of Fish and Wildlife
CESA	California Endangered Species Act
CEQA	California Environmental Quality Act
County	County of Riverside Transportation Department
CWA	Clean Water Act
DBESP	Determination of Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation
DPM	Diesel particulate matter
DTSC	Department of Toxic Substances Control
EIC	Eastern Information Center
EO	Executive Order
ESA	Environmentally Sensitive Area
FEMA	Federal Emergency Management Act
FESA	Federal Endangered Species Act
FHSZ	Fire Hazard Severity Zone
GHG	Greenhouse Gas
HMMP	Habitat Mitigation and Monitoring Plan
IS	Initial Study
ISMND	Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration
LBV	Least Bell's Vireo
LID	Low Impact Development
LMWAP	Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan
MLD	Most Likely Descendent

MND	Mitigated Negative Declaration
MRZ	Mineral Resource Zone
NAHC	Native American Heritage Commission
ND	Negative Declaration
NPDES	National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
OHP	Office of Historic Preservation
PCBs	Polychlorinated Biphenyls
PPV	Peak Particle Velocity
PRC	Public Resource Code
PM	Particulate matter
RCMC	Riverside County Municipal Code
ROW	Right of Way
RWQCB	Regional Water Quality Control Board
SAWA	Santa Ana Watershed Authority
SB	Senate Bill
SCAB	South Coast Air Basin
SCAG	Southern California Association of Governments
SCAQMD	South Coast Air Quality Management District
SLF	Sacred Lands File
SRA	State Responsible Area
SWFL	Southwestern Willow Flycatcher
SWPPP	Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
TCE	Temporary Construction Easement
TCRs	Tribal Cultural Resources
TCP	Traffic Control Plan
USACE	United States Army Corps of Engineers
USFWS	United States Fish and Wildlife Services
VMT	Vehicle Miles Travelled
WEAP	Worker Environmental Awareness Program
WMWD	Western Municipal Water District
WRCOG	Western Riverside Council of Governments
WRCMSHCP	Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan

# 1 Introduction

The County of Riverside Transportation Department (County) is proposing roadway improvements to Markham Street between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road for approximately 1.3 miles to improve traffic circulation in the community of Woodcrest in Riverside County, California. The Project is subject to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and the County is serving as the CEQA lead agency for the Project.

CEQA is a Statewide environmental law contained in Public Resources Code (PRC) §§ 21000-21177. It applies to most public agency decisions to carry out, authorize, or approve actions that have the potential to adversely affect the environment. This Initial Study (IS) includes an evaluation of resource areas found in the CEQA Environmental Checklist (see Section 3) to provide the County with substantial evidence to use as the basis for future adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) based on the physical environmental effects resulting from implementation of the Project.

This ISMND is organized as follows:

- Section 1. Introduction provides the purpose of this ISMND, its intended use, and the public review process.
- Section 2. Project Setting and Description provides details of the Project location, background, description, and purpose. This section also identifies required permits, approvals, or agreements for the Project.
- Section 3. Initial Study Checklist provides a summary of the environmental factors potentially affected by the Project and a significance determination. This section also includes an evaluation of the potential effects the Project may have on the environment and identifies potential avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures that would reduce or minimize the Project's effects on the environment.
- Section 4. References provides a catalog of in-text citations used in the document.
- Section 5. Preparers list of federal, state, or local agency personnel, including consultants, who were primarily responsible for preparing this document.
- Section 6. List of Technical Studies identifies all technical studies prepared for the Project.

## Purpose

The objective of this ISMND is to inform County decisionmakers, representatives of other affected/responsible agencies, the public, and interested parties of the potential environmental consequences of the Project. Determining whether a project may have a significant effect plays a critical role in the CEQA process. If there is substantial evidence, in light of the whole record before a lead agency, that a project may have a significant effect on the environmental Impact Report (EIR). The determination of whether a project may have a significant effect on the environment calls for careful judgment on the part of the public agency involved, based to the extent possible on scientific and factual data. An ironclad definition of significant effect is not always possible because the significance of an activity may vary with the setting. For example, an activity which may not be significant in an urban area may be significant in a rural area.

In evaluating the significance of the environmental effect of a project, the lead agency shall consider direct physical changes in the environment which may be caused by the project and reasonably foreseeable indirect physical changes in the environment which may be caused by the project.

As identified in CEQA Guidelines Section 15063(c), the purposes of an IS are to:

- 1. Provide the Lead Agency with information to use as the basis for deciding whether to prepare an EIR or a Negative Declaration (ND).
- 2. Enable an applicant or Lead Agency to modify a project, or identify avoidance, minimization, or mitigation measures to reduce adverse impacts.
- 3. Assist in the preparation of an EIR, if one is required, by:
  - a. Focusing the EIR on the effects determined to be significant,

- b. Identifying the effects determined not to be significant,
- c. Explaining the reasons for determining that potentially significant effects would not be significant, and
- d. Identifying whether a program EIR, tiering, or another appropriate process can be used for analysis of the project's environmental effects.
- 4. Provide documentation of the factual basis for the finding in a ND that a project will not have a significant effect on the environment;

## Intended Use of this Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration

This ISMND provides an evaluation of potential environmental impacts that may result from implementing the Project. The document provides technical and environmental analyses for support in determining the significance of environmental impacts demonstrating whether the Project would have no impact, a less than significant impact, or a less than significant impact with the implementation of mitigation measures. Below is a description of the evaluation of environmental impacts:

- 1. A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors, as well as general standards (e.g., the project would not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis).
- 2. All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as onsite, cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts.
- 3. Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required.
- 4. "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a "Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level.
- 5. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated.
- 6. Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used, or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.
- 7. This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's environmental effects in whatever format is selected.
- 8. The explanation of each issue should identify:
  - a. The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and
  - b. The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.

The County used the substantial evidence provided in this document and the technical studies prepared for the Project, to evaluate whether or not there are any significant environmental effects associated with implementation of the Project. Based on these analyses, this IS supports adoption of an MND for the Project.

The following technical studies were prepared for this ISMND:



- Air Quality Report
- Biological Resources Technical Report
- Determination of Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation Report
- Phase I Cultural Resource Assessment
- Noise and Vibration Study Report
- Paleontological Resource Technical Report
- Phase I Environmental Site Assessment
- Traffic Impact Assessment Technical Memorandum
- Water Quality Technical Memorandum

## Public Review of this Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public participation in the environmental review process is an essential part of the CEQA process and can help to identify public concern or additional environmental factors that should be considered. To facilitate public involvement in the CEQA review of this Project the County has made available a copy of this ISMND at the following location:

#### D1-0078 Markham Street Extension — Riverside County Projects (rcprojects.org)

In addition, the technical studies prepared in support of the ISMND are also available for review on the Project website except for the cultural reports, which are confidential and not for public distribution.

A 30-day public circulation period will begin May 28, 2024 and end on June 27, 2024. Written comments relating to this ISMND should be addressed to:

County of Riverside Transportation Department

Attn: David Castro, Associate Transportation Planner

3525 14th Street, Riverside, California, 92501

Submit comments via email to dacastro@rivco.org no later than June 27, 204.

After the 30-day public circulation period, comments raised during the public review period will be considered and addressed prior to adoption of the ISMND by the County.

## 2 Project Setting and Description

#### 1. Project Title:

Markham Street Extension Project

#### 2. Lead Agency Name and Address:

County of Riverside Transportation Department, 3525 14th Street, Riverside, California, 92501

#### 3. Contact Person and Phone Number:

David Castro, Associate Transportation Planner (951) 955-9719

#### 4. Project Location:

The Project is located between the intersection of Markham Street and Roosevelt Street and the intersection of Markham Street and Wood Road. The Project area includes the maximum footprint of disturbance for proposed roadway and infrastructure improvements, temporary construction easements (TCEs), construction staging areas, and proposed permanent drainage easements. See Figures 1 and 2.

#### 5. Project Sponsor's Name and Address:

County of Riverside Transportation Department, 3525 14th Street, Riverside, California, 92501

#### 6. General Plan Designation:

The Project is located within the Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan. Markham Street is classified as a secondary highway per the County General Plan. Land uses within the Project area are designated Rural Community – Very Low Density Residential and Open Space - Conservation (County of Riverside 2023).

#### 7. Zoning:

The Project area is located within the Light Agriculture (A-1-5) and Residential Agriculture (R-A) zones (County of Riverside 2023).

#### 8. Project Description:

The design of the 1.3-mile roadway section for Markham Street between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road accommodates an ultimate secondary highway configuration per the County General Plan Circulation Element with two lanes in each direction; however, the proposed roadway improvements as part of the Project would only include one lane in each direction along the southern half of the ultimate roadway section. In the future, the County may elect to construct two additional lanes along the northern portion of the ultimate roadway section. Proposed roadway improvements would include two 12-foot-wide travel lanes (one in each direction), with a 5-foot-wide westbound and 6-foot-wide eastbound Class II bike lane. The northern edge of the proposed roadway section would have an 8-foot-wide unpaved shoulder, and the southern edge of the proposed roadway section would include curb and gutters, a 6-foot-wide sidewalk, and a 6-foot parkway.

Traffic signal improvements would be required at the Markham Street and Wood Road intersection to accommodate the extended roadway and the addition of a dedicated eastbound left-turn lane, a dedicated eastbound through lane, and a shared-through and right-turn lane. The Markham Street and Roosevelt Street intersection would remain as a stop-controlled intersection. The four smaller intersections (Oran Drive, Birch Street, Cedar Street, and James Kenny Road) would require roadway modifications to develop curb returns and American with Disabilities Act (ADA)-compliant pedestrian accessible ramps to tie into the existing roadways, and the intersections would be stop controlled. Existing property driveways would be modified to connect to new roadway improvements. Drainage improvements would include storm drains along the roadway and the addition of culverts to direct storm-flow drainage across the roadway. Existing utilities that may require relocation or modifications to accommodate the roadway extension include water, gas, electrical, and telephone lines. In addition, traffic restriping west of Roosevelt Street would be needed to transition from the existing roadway to the new extended roadway.

Construction of the Project would require partial right of way (ROW) acquisition, TCEs, and permanent easements consisting of drainage easements and slope easements.

#### 9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting:

The Project area is located in a semi-rural portion of Riverside County. Adjacent properties along this roadway segment consist of vacant land, single-family homes, and public facilities including a sewer-lift station and water-pumping station.

#### 10. Other Public Agencies Whose Approval is Required:

Agency	Permits, Licenses, Agreements, and Certifications
California Department of Fish and Wildlife	1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement
Regional Water Quality Control Board	Section 401 Water Quality Certification
State Water Resources Control Board	Construction General Permit and Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
United States Army Corps of Engineers	Section 404 Nationwide Permit

# 11. Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area requested consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.3.1? If so, is there a plan for consultation that includes, for example, the determination of significance of impacts to tribal cultural resources (TCRs), procedures regarding confidentiality, etc.?

On March 31, 2022, initial AB 52 consultation letters were sent to representatives from the six Native American tribes on the County's AB 52 consultation list. Letters were sent to the Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians, Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians, Cahuilla Band of Indians, Pala Band of Mission Indians, Morongo Band of Mission Indians, San Manuel Band of Mission Indians. Two of the six tribes, Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians, and Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians requested AB 52 consultation and on-site monitoring during construction. The Cahuilla Band of Indians did not request AB 52 consultation but did request on-site monitoring during construction. More details regarding consultation efforts to date can be found in Section of 3.18 Tribal Cultural Resources.

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.



#### Figure 1. Regional Vicinity

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

## Figure 2. Project Area



Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

# 3 Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

The environmental factors checked below were determined to have a "Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated", as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

	Aesthetics		Agriculture and Forestry Resources		Air Quality
$\boxtimes$	<b>Biological Resources</b>	$\boxtimes$	Cultural Resources		Energy
	Geology/Soils		Greenhouse Gas Emissions		Hazards & Hazardous Materials
	Hydrology/Water Quality		Land Use/Planning		Mineral Resources
	Noise		Population/Housing		Public Services
	Recreation		Transportation	$\boxtimes$	Tribal Cultural Resources
	Utilities/Service Systems		Wildfire	$\boxtimes$	Mandatory Findings of Significance

The Project would have No Impacts related to: Land Use/Planning, Mineral Resources, Population/Housing, and Recreation.

The Project would have a Less than Significant Impact related to: Aesthetics, Agriculture and Forestry Resources, Air Quality, Energy, Geology/Soils, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, Hydrology/Water Quality, Noise, Public Services, Transportation, Utilities/Service Systems, and Wildfire.

The Project would have a Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated on: Biological Resources, Cultural Resources, Tribal Cultural Resources, and Mandatory Findings of Significance. Mitigation for impacts on these resource areas includes the following:

**BIO-6 Riparian Habitat Compensatory Mitigation.** Permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat will be mitigated through permittee responsible mitigation in the form of establishment, restoration, and/or enhancement of riparian habitat at a suitable location to provide Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of Habitat. Compensatory mitigation will be provided at a ratio of 2:1 for permanent impacts and at a ratio of 1:1 for temporal loss of least Bell's vireo (LBV) nesting habitat.

Temporary impacts to on-site native habitat will be restored where feasible. A Restoration Plan will be developed to define the approach for onsite restoration and will include erosion control measures, willow cutting planting plan, hydroseeding palette and methods, and a maintenance and monitoring methodology. In addition, any temporarily impacted riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site. Compensatory mitigation will be accomplished within the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (WRCMSHCP) Planning Area. The preferred compensatory mitigation option is to implement permittee-responsible mitigation at the Santa Ana Watershed Authority (SAWA) Mockingbird Conservation Easement, located adjacent to the Project south of the intersection of Markham Street and Roosevelt Street, or on Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority-owned parcels associated with Temescal Creek.

Details regarding the off-site mitigation location, long-term management entity, and mitigation categories will be included in a Habitat Mitigation and Monitoring Plan (HMMP) that will be prepared for the Project and submitted to regulatory agencies (U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service [USFWS], California Department of Fish and Wildlife [CDFW], U.S. Army Corps of Engineers [USACE], and Regional Water Quality Control Board [RWQCB]) for approval prior to Project commencement. Mitigation will include establishment or restoration of in-kind habitat to support listed species that occur in the on-site habitat being impacted (i.e., mitigation for impacts to occupied LBV habitat will include habitat suitable to support foraging and nesting LBV).

**DBESP-5 Riparian Habitat Compensatory Mitigation.** Permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat (i.e. black willow woodland, mule fat thickets, cattail marsh, cocklebur patches, and perennial pepperweed patches) will be mitigated through permittee responsible mitigation in the form of establishment, restoration, and/or enhancement of riparian habitat at a suitable location to provide Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of Habitat. Compensatory mitigation will be mitigated for inkind (i.e. impacts to riparian woodland habitat would be mitigated for with riparian woodland; herbaceous riparian habitat would be mitigated for with herbaceous riparian habitat. Mitigation for riparian habitat that also supports nesting LBV (i.e., black willow woodland and mule fat thickets) will be mitigated through in-kind replacement and will be required to demonstrate that the replacement habitat supports nesting LBV.

Temporary impacts to on-site native habitat will be restored where feasible. A Restoration Plan will be developed to define the approach for onsite restoration and will include erosion control measures, willow cutting planting plan, hydroseeding palette and methods, and a maintenance and monitoring methodology. In addition, any riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site. Compensatory mitigation will be accomplished within the WRCMSHCP Planning Area. The preferred compensatory mitigation option is to implement permittee-responsible mitigation at the SAWA Mockingbird Conservation Easement, located adjacent to the Project south of the intersection of Markham Street and Roosevelt Street, or on Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority-owned parcels associated with Temescal Creek.

Details regarding the off-site mitigation site location, long-term management entity, and mitigation categories will be included in a HMMP that will be prepared for the Project and submitted to regulatory agencies (USFWS, CDFW, USACE, and RWQCB) for approval prior to Project commencement. Mitigation will include establishment or restoration of in-kind habitat to support listed species that occur in habitat being impacted (i.e. mitigation for impacts to occupied LBV habitat will include habitat suitable to support foraging and nesting LBV).

**ARC-1** County appointed archaeological and tribal monitors will be present during any ground disturbing activities along Markham Street until excavation of previously undisturbed native soil has been completed. Participating tribes will rotate their schedule so that one tribal monitor at a time is on the Project site during any excavation.

Prior to commencement of construction, there will be a meeting in which the construction staff, tribal monitor(s), archaeological monitor/consultant, and Resident Engineer (RE) will conduct preconstruction archaeological resource sensitivity and awareness training. This meeting will also discuss the monitoring and safety requirements. It is critical that all parties understand the methods and goals as well as the protocols for the inadvertent discovery of archaeological resources, tribal resources, and/or human remains during construction. Record of this meeting shall be placed in the RE file.

The archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor, shall have the authority to temporarily divert, redirect or halt the ground disturbance activities to allow for identification, evaluation, and potential recovery of cultural resources. Should buried cultural deposits be encountered, the archaeological monitor shall contact the County Archaeologist immediately, and in coordination with the THPOs of consulting tribes, will evaluate the resource and formulate a plan to move forward.

- **ARC-2** If archaeological and/or tribal resources are encountered during construction, the archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor shall:
  - Halt all work within a 60-foot radius and shall immediately inform the RE.
  - Following notification, the archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor, will make a preliminary assessment of the discovery to determine whether the find is an isolated artifact or recent deposit. If the find is determined to be isolated or recent, construction will be allowed to resume.
  - Should the monitor(s) determine the discovery is potentially significant, the monitor(s) shall contact the County Archaeologist immediately to evaluate the discovery and if necessary, formulate appropriate mitigation measures.
  - If the discovery contains tribal resources, all consulting tribes shall be contacted and informed
    of the discovery. The tribal resource discovery, including human remains, shall not be disturbed
    (i.e., photographed, videoed, or moved) until the County Archaeologist and consulting tribes
    have agreed upon appropriate treatment measures.

If archaeological and/or tribal resources are encountered anywhere during Project construction when no monitor(s) are present, work in the area must halt within a 60-foot radius until the monitor(s) can evaluate the nature and significance of the find and formulate appropriate evaluation and/or mitigation measures.

Once the agreed upon treatment measures have been implemented, construction activity can resume in that area.

- **ARC-3** In the event that human remains are discovered during construction at any time, the following provisions shall apply:
  - State Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance and all construction activity shall immediately be halted within 60 feet of the discovery until the County Coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. The County Coroner must be notified of the find immediately. If the remains are determined to be Native American and not under the coroner's jurisdiction, within 24 hours the coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), which will determine and notify a Most Likely Descendant (MLD). During this time all remains, associated soils, and artifacts will remain in situ, and shall be protected from public viewing. The County will take appropriate measures to protect the discovery site from disturbance during any negotiations. This may include restricting access to the discovery site and the need to hire 24-hour security. With the permission of the landowner or his/her authorized representative, the MLD may inspect the site of the discovery. The MLD shall complete the inspection within 48 hours of notification by the NAHC. The MLD may recommend scientific removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and items associated with Native American burials. Work will be suspended within a 60-foot radius of the human remains until the MLD's recommendations are implemented.
  - A meeting shall be convened between the County Archaeologist, archaeological monitor, and the MLD to discuss the significance of the find. At the meeting with the aforementioned parties, a decision is to be made as to the appropriate treatment (documentation, recovery, avoidance, etc.) for the discovery. Resource evaluations shall be limited to non-destructive analysis.
  - Further ground disturbance shall not resume within the area of the discovery until the appropriate treatment has been accomplished.
  - The County Archaeologist will work with the MLD in regard to the treatment of the remains and all associated funerary objects and will ensure that any identified human remains will be secured while they are left in place and while treatment decisions are in progress. Information concerning the discovery shall not be disclosed pursuant to the specific exemption set forth in California Government Code Section 6254.5(e).
  - The County shall relinquish ownership of all tribal resources, including sacred items, burial goods, and all Native American archaeological artifacts and non-human remains found within County ROW through one or more of the following methods and provide evidence of same:
    - a. A pre-determined reburial area will be determined prior to construction. This shall include measures and provisions to protect the future pre-determined reburial area within the Project property from any future impacts. The measures for reburial shall be culturally appropriate as determined through consultation with the consulting tribes and include, at least, the following:
      - i. Measures to protect the reburial area from any future impacts in perpetuity.
      - ii. Reburial shall not occur until all required cataloguing (including a complete photographic record) and analysis have been completed on the cultural resources, with the exception that sacred and ceremonial items, burial goods, and Native American human remains are excluded. No cataloguing, analysis, or other studies may occur on human remains, grave goods, and sacred and ceremonial items. Any reburial processes shall be culturally appropriate and approved by the consulting tribes.
      - iii. Listing of contents and location of the reburial shall be confidential and not subject to a Public Records Request.
      - iv. The County shall establish a curation agreement with an appropriate qualified repository within Riverside County that meets federal standards per 36 CFR Part 79 and therefore would be professionally curated and made available to other archaeologists/researchers for further study. The collections and associated records shall be transferred, including title, to an appropriate curation facility within Riverside County, to be accompanied by payment of the fees necessary for permanent curation.

- b. Should reburial of collected cultural items be preferred, it shall not occur until after the Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report/Data Recovery Report has been submitted to the County. Should curation be preferred, the County is responsible for all costs and the repository and curation method shall be described in the Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report/Data Recovery Report.
- c. Tribal resources, including sacred items, burial goods, and all Native American archaeological artifacts and non-human remains found within County ROW that are to be reburied are to be kept safe on site on a locked and secure location within the RE's office (if feasible) until disposition of such tribal resources takes place for reburial.
- Artifacts found outside the County ROW are not subject to these requirements and are to be relinquished to the consulting tribes by the property owner for suitable curation or ownership. It is the responsibility of the consulting tribes to come to agreement with the property owner.

In the event that the County Archaeologist and MLD are in disagreement regarding the disposition of the remains, State law will apply, and the median and decision process will occur with the NAHC (see Public Resources Code Section 5097.98(e) and 5097.94(k)).

**ARC-4** Should additional actions be proposed outside the currently defined Project area that have the potential for additional subsurface disturbance, further cultural resource management may be required.

Additional avoidance and minimization measures that would be implemented to further reduce impacts are described below:

#### Avoidance Measures:

- BIO-7 Crotch's Bumble Bee Survey. This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. Within one year prior to construction, a habitat assessment for Crotch's bumble bee will be conducted within the Project area and an appropriate survey buffer be established by a qualified biologist with experience surveying for and observing Crotch's bumble bee. If the qualified biologist determines that suitable habitat is present, surveys shall be conducted to determine the presence/absence of Crotch's bumble bee. Surveys shall be conducted during flying season when the species is most likely to be detected above ground, between March 1 to September 1 (Thorp et al. 1983), Survey results, including negative findings, shall be submitted to the CDFW prior to implementing Projectrelated ground-disturbing activities and/or vegetation removal where there may be impacts to Crotch's bumble bee. At minimum, a survey report should provide the following: a) A description and map of the survey area, focusing on areas that could provide suitable habitat for Crotch's bumble bee; b) Field survey conditions that should include name(s) of qualified entomologist(s) and brief qualifications; date and time of survey; survey duration; general weather conditions; survey goals, and species searched: c) Map(s) showing the location of nests/colonies: and, d) A description of physical (e.g., soil, moisture, slope) and biological (e.g., plant composition) conditions where each nest/colony is found. A sufficient description of biological conditions, primarily impacted habitat, should include native plant composition (e.g., density, cover, and abundance) within impacted habitat (e.g., species list separated by vegetation class; density, cover, and abundance of each species).
- **BIO-8 Crotch's Bumble Bee Avoidance.** This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. If Crotch's bumble bee is detected during the Crotch's bumble bee survey, the County shall ensure that a plan to fully avoid impacts to Crotch's bumble bee be developed in consultation with a qualified entomologist during final design. The plan shall include effective, specific, enforceable, and feasible measures. An avoidance plan should be submitted to CDFW prior to implementing Project-related ground-disturbing activities and/or vegetation removal where there may be impacts to Crotch's bumble bee. If Crotch's bumble bees are determined to be present within the Project area and it is determined the species will be impacted by Project implementation, appropriate mitigation shall be determined in consultation with CDFW.
- **BIO-9 Crotch's Bumble Bee Incidental Take Permit.** This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. If Crotch's bumble bee is detected during the survey (required by Measure BIO-7), and if impacts to Crotch's bumble bee cannot be feasibly avoided during Project construction, the County shall ensure that the designated qualified entomologist coordinate with CDFW to obtain appropriate permit for incidental take of Crotch's bumble bee. The incidental take permit would quantify and provide appropriate mitigation for impacts on Crotch's bumble bee habitat. Mitigation for impacts to Crotch's bumble bee habitat would be at a ratio comparable to the Project's level of impacts.

- **BIO-10 Riparian Bird Habitat Removal.** Prior to construction, suitable habitat for southwestern willow flycatcher (SWFL) and LBV within the Project area will be removed between September 1 and February 14, outside of the nesting season. If it cannot occur outside nesting season the Project biologist will survey the area and delineate buffers suitable to avoid take if nesting birds, including foraging SWFL or LBV or active LBV nests, are found.
- **BIO-13 Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance.** Should nesting coastal California gnatcatchers (CAGN) be found on or in the immediate vicinity (approximately 300-feet) of the Project area during surveys conducted in compliance with Measure BIO-11, the qualified biologist shall establish an appropriate buffer to prevent alteration of nesting CAGN behavior. No construction or clearing shall be conducted within the established buffer until the designated biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.
- **BIO-15 Bat Roosting Habitat Removal.** Prior to tree removal or trimming, large trees and snags shall be examined by a qualified bat biologist to ensure that no roosting bats are present. If trimming or removal of mature trees and snags is necessary for Project construction, trimming/removal activities should be performed outside of the general bat maternity season, which occurs from March 1st through October 1st, to avoid direct effects to nonvolant (flightless) young that may roost in trees within the study area. If trimming or removal of trees during the general bat maternity season cannot be avoided, a qualified biologist will monitor tree removal unless nighttime surveys conducted within one week of removal indicates no tree-roosting bat activity within the study area.

Palm frond trimming, if necessary, shall be conducted outside the bat maternity season to avoid potential mortality of flightless young. Since western yellow bats and western mastiff bats may be present in untrimmed palm tree fronds, a qualified bat biologist shall be present to monitor frond removal. Dead fronds shall be removed under the guidance of the bat biologist, following the two-day method described below.

DAY 1: Only trim the outermost fronds may be trimmed (no more than 50 percent of the palm fronds) using hand tools or chainsaws only (no dozers, backhoes, cranes, or other heavy equipment, other than to provide access for tree cutters using chainsaws).

DAY 2: The palm tree must be felled. Day 2 activities must occur the day immediately following the Day 1 activities. To accomplish this, work may need to be phased and Day 1/Day 2 steps can be repeated. Should bats emerge during the tree trimming, trimming activities must temporarily cease at the individual tree until bats are no longer actively emerging from the tree.

- **DBESP-3** During construction, all equipment maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will occur in developed or designated non-sensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland areas will be located so as to prevent runoff from any spills from entering waters of the U.S. or CDFW-regulated streambed.
- **DBESP-4** Prior to construction a stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) and soil erosion and sedimentation plan will be developed to minimize erosion and identify specific pollution prevention measures that will eliminate or control potential point and non-point pollution sources on site during construction. The SWPPP will identify specific best management practices to be implemented during construction so as not to cause or contribute to an exceedance of any water guality standard.
- **DBESP-6 Riparian Bird Habitat Removal.** Prior to construction, suitable habitat for SWFL and LBV within the Project area will be removed between September 1 and February 14, outside of the nesting season. If it cannot occur outside nesting season the Project biologist will survey the area and delineate buffers suitable to avoid take if nesting birds, including foraging SWFL or LBV or active LBV nests, are found.
- DBESP-7 Pre-construction Surveys and Monitoring for Least Bell's Vireo. Should construction activities begin during the LBV nesting season (March 15 to August 15), a qualified biologist will conduct three separate days of surveys, no more than 7 days prior to construction, to identify and map LBV nesting locations. The gualified biologist will also conduct weekly surveys throughout the LBV nesting season in all suitable LBV habitat within 500-feet of the active work area. In the event that LBV nesting activity is detected within 500-feet of the work area, if feasible, a 500-foot buffer shall be established between construction activities and the approximate edge of the LBV territory, to avoid affects to nesting LBV. If this is not possible, and the qualified biologist deems that construction activities can continue without disturbing nesting LBV, nests shall be monitored daily by the qualified biologist during all construction activities. If the biologist determines that the Project-related activities are altering LBV behavior, e.g., causing adults to flush from the nest more frequently, Project activities shall be halted within 500-feet of the active nest. Prior to re-commencement of work within 500-feet of the active nest, CDFW and USFWS will be notified and measures to reduce noise or noise impacts will be implemented in coordination with CDFW and USFWS. Measures may include increasing or reestablishing a nest buffer, installing noise barriers, or implementing noise attenuation measures

(e.g., reducing the number of construction vehicles or using different types of construction vehicles; reducing the number of noisy activities that occur simultaneously) as feasible. These measures will remain in place until all nestlings have fledged or construction activities have moved 500-feet beyond that area of LBV activity. Construction activities that alter LBV behavior will cease operation until effective noise attenuation measures are in place to the extent practicable. The results of LBV preconstruction survey, weekly surveys, and monitoring will be reported weekly to CDFW and USFWS.

- **HAZ-1 Polychlorinated Biphenyls:** Soil sampling for PCBs and heavy metals will be conducted in soil in unpaved locations surrounding utility pole-mounted transformers that would be disturbed as a result of the Project prior to ground disturbing activities for proper management.
- **HAZ-2 Treated Wood Waste:** Treated wood objects are handled as treated wood waste and are managed per Chapter 34, Title 22 California Code of Regulations Sections 67386.1 through 67386.12, "Alternative Management Standards for Treated Wood Waste." All treated wood waste should be properly disposed at a landfill permitted to accept treated wood waste. In addition, it could not be determined how long the wooden utility poles had been established and therefore, a potential for elevated levels of arsenic is possible in the soil due to the wood preservatives. Soil in unpaved locations surrounding wooden utility poles that would be disturbed as a result of the Project will be sampled for arsenic and semi volatiles for proper management.
- **HAZ-3 Pesticides:** Soil sampling for pesticides will be conducted in soil on historical and existing agricultural land use areas and nurseries that would be disturbed as a result of the Project prior to ground disturbing activities for proper management.
- N-1 Construction Schedule: Limit roadway construction activities to the exempted daytime hours in the Riverside County Code, Ordinance No. 847, which are 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM during the months of June through September and 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM during the months of October through May (except weekends and holidays).
- **N-2 Construction Equipment:** All construction equipment should be outfitted with manufacturerecommended mufflers and silencers.
- **N-3 Idling:** Maintaining equipment in an idling mode should be minimized.
- **T-1 Traffic Control Plan:** During final design, a TCP will be prepared for the Project. The goals of the TCP during Project construction will include minimizing traffic delay or time spent in queue; maintaining traffic flow throughout the Project area and the surrounding areas; and providing a safe environment for the work force and motoring public.

#### Minimization Measures:

- **BIO-1 Project Biologist.** A qualified biologist will oversee compliance with protective measures for the biological resources during clearing and work activities within and adjacent to areas of native habitat. The Project biologist shall designate areas that need temporary fencing and monitor construction. The biologist shall monitor activities during critical times such as vegetation removal, the installation of Best Management Practices (BMPs) and Environmentally Sensitive Area (ESA) fencing to protect native species and ensure that all avoidance and minimization measures are properly constructed and followed. The biologist will conduct site visits a minimum of once weekly throughout construction to verify that required biological resources protections are in place.
- **BIO-2** Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP). Prior to construction, the Project biologist shall conduct WEAP training for all Project employees and contractors that will be on site. The training will advise workers of potential impacts to sensitive habitat and listed species and the potential penalties for impacts to such habitat and species. Included in this program will be color photos of the listed species, which will be shown to the employees. Following the education program, the photos shall be posted in the contractor and resident engineer's office, where they will remain through the duration of the work. The contractor will be required to provide the County with evidence of the employee training (e.g., sign in sheet or stickers) upon request.
- **BIO-3** Environmentally Sensitive Areas (ESAs). During construction, the Project contractor will minimize Project impacts on riparian and California buckwheat scrub habitat to the fullest extent possible. These areas shall be demarcated as ESAs. No grading or fill activity of any type will be permitted within designated ESAs. Prior to construction, the Project biologist shall ensure that non-impacted native habitat located outside of the Project area is demarcated as ESAs. Prior to construction, exclusionary fencing shall be installed around all ESAs under supervision of the Project biologist. ESA fencing will remain in place throughout the duration of construction. All construction equipment will be operated in a manner to prevent accidental encroachment or damage into ESAs. The biological monitor will conduct at a minimum, once weekly inspections of the ESA fencing to ensure

that it is in place and properly maintained throughout the duration of construction. The contractor will be responsible for maintaining the ESA fencing per the biological monitor's direction.

- **BIO-4** Equipment Maintenance and Staging. During construction all equipment maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will occur in developed or designated nonsensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland areas shall be located a minimum of 50 feet away from any drainage areas, so as to prevent runoff of any spills from entering ESAs. Construction personnel will strictly limit their activities to the limits of disturbance and designated staging areas and routes of travel.
- **BIO-5 On-site restoration of native habitat.** Temporary impacts to native habitat will be restored in-kind following construction. On-site restoration methodology for riparian habitat will be described in the Restoration Plan for the Project, which will be submitted to the resource agencies and subject to agency approval as part of the regulatory permit applications, prior to Project construction activities. Temporary impacts to non-native riparian habitats would be restored using cuttings from native riparian trees and shrubs within the Project area following construction. On-site restoration areas would be monitored for a period of 5 years following restoration to ensure restoration activities are meeting success criteria identified in the Restoration Plan. Any temporarily impacted riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site.
- **BIO-11** Pre-construction Surveys and Monitoring for Least Bell's Vireo. Should construction activities begin during the LBV nesting season (March 15 to August 15), a gualified biologist will conduct three separate days of surveys, no more than 7 days prior to construction, to identify and map LBV nesting locations. The qualified biologist will also conduct weekly surveys throughout the LBV nesting season in all suitable LBV habitat within 500-feet of the active work area. In the event that LBV nesting activity is detected within 500-feet of the work area, if feasible, a 500-foot buffer shall be established between construction activities and the approximate edge of the LBV territory, to avoid affects to nesting LBV. If this is not possible, and the qualified biologist deems that construction activities can continue without disturbing nesting LBV, nests shall be monitored daily by the qualified biologist during all construction activities. If the biologist determines that the Project-related activities are altering LBV behavior, e.g., causing adults to flush from the nest more frequently, Project activities shall be halted within 500-feet of the active nest. Prior to re-commencement of work within 500-feet of the active nest, CDFW and USFWS will be notified and measures to reduce noise or noise impacts will be implemented in coordination with CDFW and USFWS. Measures may include increasing or reestablishing a nest buffer, installing noise barriers, or implementing noise attenuation measures (e.g., reducing the number of construction vehicles or using different types of construction vehicles; reducing the number of noisy activities that occur simultaneously) as feasible. These measures will remain in place until all nestlings have fledged, or construction activities have moved 500-feet beyond that area of LBV activity. Construction activities that alter LBV behavior will cease operation until effective noise attenuation measures are in place to the extent practicable. The results of LBV preconstruction survey, weekly surveys, and monitoring will be reported weekly to CDFW and USFWS.
- **BIO-12** Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.
- **BIO-14 Burrowing Owl Preconstruction Survey.** Prior to construction, a survey for burrowing owl (BUOW) will be conducted by a qualified biologist within 30 days prior to vegetation clearing/grading. If BUOW are found within 500 feet (150 meters) of the Project area during the preconstruction survey, the County or its designated representative will immediately inform and coordinate with CDFW and USFWS to identify and implement applicable measures provided in WRCMSHCP BUOW Conservation Objective 6, as provided in Volume 1, Appendix E of the WRCMSHCP. Appropriate measures to avoid take of active BUOW nests may include establishment of an appropriate buffer until BUOW young have fledged or BUOW no longer occupy the burrow. If any burrows are identified within the Project area, passive relocation would be conducted by a qualified avian biologist outside of the nesting season, if necessary.
- **DBESP-1** Prior to construction, a weed abatement program will be developed and implemented to minimize the importation of non-native plant material during and after construction. Eradication strategies from the weed abatement program will be employed during construction activities, should an invasion occur.

- **DBESP-2** During construction, when work is conducted during the fire season (as identified by the Riverside County Fire Authority) adjacent to any vegetation, the appropriate firefighting equipment (e.g., extinguishers, shovels, and water tankers) will be made available on site during all phases of Project construction to minimize the potential for human-caused wildfires. Shields, protective mats, and/or other fire preventive methods will be used during grinding, welding, and other spark-inducing activities. Personnel trained in fire hazards, preventive actions, and responses to fires will advise the construction contractors regarding fire risk from all construction-related activities.
- **DBESP-8 Burrowing Owl Preconstruction Survey.** Prior to construction, a survey for BUOW will be conducted by a qualified biologist within 30 days prior to vegetation clearing/grading. If BUOW are found within 500 feet (150 meters) of the Project area during the preconstruction survey, the County or its designated representative will immediately inform and coordinate with CDFW and USFWS to identify and implement applicable measures provided in WRCMSHCP BUOW Conservation Objective 6, as provided in Volume 1, Appendix E of the WRCMSHCP. The qualified biologist shall determine appropriate measures necessary to avoid take of active BUOW nests, which may include establishment of an appropriate buffer until BUOW young have fledged or BUOW no longer occupy the burrow. If any burrows are identified within the Project area, a qualified avian biologist would conduct passive relocation outside of the nesting season, if necessary.



#### **Determination**

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

- □ I find that the project would not have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.
- I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.
- □ I find that the proposed project may have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.
- □ I find that the proposed project may have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.
- □ I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

an Bulinski

Jan Bulinsk

9/4/2024

Date:

Environmental Project Manager County of Riverside Transportation Department

## 3.1 Aesthetics

Environmental Issue Area:		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099, would the project:					
a)	Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?				$\boxtimes$
b)	Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic building within a state scenic highway?				
c)	In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly accessible vantage points). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?				
d)	Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?				

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the County of Riverside General Plan, Chapter 5 Multipurpose Open Space Element (County of Riverside 2015) and the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) California Scenic Highway System Map (Caltrans 2022).

#### Regulatory Setting:

CEQA established that it is policy of the state to take all action necessary to provide people of the state "with...enjoyment of aesthetic, natural, scenic and historic environmental qualities" (CA Public Resources Code [PRC] Section 21001[b]).

#### Environmental Setting:

The Project area is characterized by gradually sloping landscape in a southwesterly direction. The eastern 0.5mile-long portion of Markham Street within the Project area is a paved roadway approximately 20 feet in width with graveled shoulders (Figure 3.1-1). The western 0.8-mile-long portion of Markham Street is a dirt roadway (Figure 3.1-2). Adjacent properties along this roadway segment consist of vacant land, single-family homes, and public facilities including a sewer-lift station and water-pumping station. Overhead power lines are present along the northern portion of Markham Street. No street lighting is present within the Project area.

According to the County General Plan, Chapter 5 Multipurpose Open Space Element (County of Riverside 2015), there are no scenic vistas or other designated scenic resources at or within the vicinity of the Project. According to the Caltrans California Scenic Highway System Map (Caltrans 2022) and the Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan (County of Riverside 2021c), Markham Street is not designated as or adjacent to a state scenic highway, an officially eligible state scenic highway, or locally designated scenic highway (County of Riverside 2021c). The nearest state scenic highways to the Project area are Interstate 15 and State Route 74, which are approximately 9.6 miles to the southwest and 7.5 miles to the southeast, respectively. The nearest local designated scenic highways are El Sobrante Road and the portion of Cajalco Road in the vicinity of Lake Mathews.



The visual characteristics along Markham Street include the roadway itself overhead utility lines, riparian habitat associated with Mockingbird Canyon Creek, and fences along adjacent properties (Figures 3.1-1 through 3.1-5 below).

Figure 3.1-1. Eastern portion of Markham Street in Project area west of Wood Road, facing west.



Figure 3.1-2. Western portion of Markham Street in Project area east of Roosevelt Street, facing southwest.



Figure 3.1-3. Portion of APN 267-210-047 in the Project area showing riparian vegetation, facing west.

Figure 3.1-4. Portion of APN 321-030-003 within the Project area showing agricultural area, facing east.



Figure 3.1-5. Portion of APN 267-190-007 in the Project area showing graded area, facing northwest.



#### Impact Analysis

- a) No Impact. The County General Plan does not identify scenic vistas within or adjacent to the Project area. The Project area is located southwest of the foothills of the San Bernardino Mountains and southeast of the Jurupa Mountains, which are both natural landmarks; however, these areas are both over 18 miles away and the Project does not include new building structures that would obstruct views or result in a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista. No impact would occur.
- b) **No Impact.** The Project area does not include any scenic resources such as trees, rock outcroppings or historic buildings, nor are there state scenic highways present. No impact would occur.
- c) Less Than Significant Impact. The Project would not introduce visual obtrusions and the Project would be generally consistent with the existing visual character as it would not detract from the quality of public views of the site. In addition, much of the proposed infrastructure would occur at the ground surface and would not represent a prominent visual change in the existing visual landscape.

During construction, traveler's views to and from the roadway would be temporarily affected by the presence of large construction equipment, materials, crews, and signage. Vegetation adjacent to the roadway would be removed and restored to implement roadway improvements. Impacts are considered less than significant.

d) **No Impact.** The Project does not include new permanent lighting and construction would be limited to daylight hours. Therefore, no new light or glare sources would affect day or nighttime views of the area. No impact would occur.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

## 3.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

Environmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact

In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state's inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board.

Would the project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?		
<ul> <li>b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))?</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?</li> </ul>		
e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?		

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program (California Department of Conservation 2020) and the County General Plan, Chapter 5 Multipurpose Open Space Element (County of Riverside 2015).



#### **Regulatory Setting:**

#### Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program

The Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program produces maps and statistical data used for analyzing impacts on California's agricultural resources. Agricultural land is rated according to soil quality and irrigation status; the best quality land is called Prime Farmland. The maps are updated every two years with the use of a computer mapping system, aerial imagery, public review, and field reconnaissance.

#### California Land Conservation Act of 1965 (Williamson Act)

The California Land Conservation Act of 1965 (the Williamson Act, Government Code Sections 51200 through 51297.4) provides incentives to landowners through reduced property taxes to discourage the early conversion of agricultural and open space lands to other uses. The act enables counties and cities to designate agricultural preserves (Williamson Act lands) and within these preserves, offer preferential taxation to agricultural landowners based on the agricultural income producing value of the property. CEQA requires the review of projects that would convert Williamson Act contract land to non-agricultural uses.

#### **Environmental Setting:**

No Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance was identified in the Project area. As depicted on Figure 3.2-1, the California Department of Conservation Farmland Mapping and Monitoring program classifies the Project area as 'Urban and Built-Up Land', 'Farmland of Local Importance', and 'Other Lands' (California Department of Conservation 2020). "Farmland of Local Importance' is land of importance to the local agricultural economy as determined by each county's board of supervisors and a local advisory committee. The County General Plan, Chapter 5 Multipurpose Open Space Element does not identify any County lands under a Williamson Act contract within or adjacent to the Project area (County of Riverside 2015). However, the Project area is zoned as Light Agricultural (A-1), and Residential Agricultural (R-A), see Figure 3.2-2. The General Plan does not designate any agricultural land uses in the Project area (Figure 3.2-3).


## Figure 3.2-1. California Important Farmland Designations

September 2024 | 27

## Figure 3.2-2. Zoning Designation



## Figure 3.2-3. General Plan Land Use Designations



Project Area Riverside County General Plan Land Use Designation

2 1/2 Mile Buffer Open Space-Conservation (OS-C)

Very Low Density Residential (RC-VLDR)





#### Impact Analysis:

- a) **No Impact.** No conversion of Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance would occur. No impact would occur.
- b) No Impact. The Project would require partial acquisition of ROW along the northern and southern sides of Markham Street, including lands zoned for agricultural use. However, these lands are directly adjacent to the roadway and not actively used for agriculture use, and no re-zoning would be required. As described above, Markham Street is identified in the County General Plan Circulation Element as a secondary highway. No impact would occur.
- c) **No Impact.** The Project is not located on any land zoned as forest lands or timberland and would not result in any conflicts to such land uses. No impact would occur.
- d) **No Impact.** The Project would not result in the loss of forest land or the conversion of forest land to nonforest use. No impact would occur.
- e) Less Than Significant Impact. Construction of the Project would require partial acquisition of ROW along the northern and southern sides of Markham Street, including lands currently zoned for agricultural use. A portion of properties zoned for agricultural use would be converted to transportation use to facilitate implementation of the Project. However, the proposed improvements are consistent with the future roadway classification for Markham Street as a secondary highway per the approved County General Plan. The Project is not located on any land zoned as forest lands or timberland and would not result in any conflicts to such land uses. Impacts are considered less than significant.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

# 3.3 Air Quality

	Potentially Significant	Less Than Significant with Mitigation	Less Than Significant	
Environmental Issue Area:	Impact	Incorporated	Impact	No Impact

Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management district or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations.

#### Would the project:

a)	Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?		
b)	Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?		
c)	Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?		
d)	Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors adversely affecting a substantial number of people?		

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the Air Quality Report (AQR) (ERP 2023) and the Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) Technical Memorandum (HDR 2022a), and the Supplemental TIA Memorandum (HDR 2022b) that were prepared for the Project.

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

The Federal Clean Air Act is the primary federal law that governs air quality, and the California Clean Air Act is its companion state law. These laws and regulations by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) and the California Air Resources Board (CARB) set standards for the concentration of pollutants in the air. At the federal level, the Clean Air Act requires the U.S. EPA to set National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). NAAQS and California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) have been established for six transportation-related criteria air pollutants that have been linked to potential health concerns: carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen dioxide (NO2), ozone (O3), particulate matter (PM)—which is broken down for regulatory purposes into particles of 10 micrometers or smaller (PM10) and particles of 2.5 micrometers and smaller (PM2.5)—and sulfur dioxide (SO2). In addition, national and state standards exist for lead (Pb), but lead is not considered a transportation-related pollutant. In California, sulfates, visibility-reducing particles, hydrogen sulfide, and vinyl chloride are also regulated.

The Project area is in federal nonattainment area for O<sub>3</sub>, PM<sub>2.5</sub>, federal maintenance for CO and PM<sub>10</sub>, and state nonattainment area for O<sub>3</sub>, PM<sub>10</sub>, PM<sub>2.5</sub>. The Clean Air Act requires areas not in attainment of the NAAQS to develop an emission reduction strategy that will bring the area into attainment in a timely manner. The South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) prepared the 2016 Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) with strategies and measures to reduce emissions to attain state and federal ambient air quality standards and implement the state air quality program through coordination with local planning agencies. While the SCAQMD has more recently adopted a 2022 AQMP, which includes additional measures to meet the 2015 8-hour ozone NAAQS, the 2016 AQMP was the current AQMP used to establish consistency at the time of writing the AQR. Air pollutant emissions from individual projects are evaluated against the SCAQMD daily significance thresholds for construction and operation. Table 3.3-1 presents SCAQMD's regional daily construction and operational thresholds. Table 3.3-2 presents SCAQMD's localized daily construction and operational thresholds specific to the Project.

Table 3.3-1.	South	Coast	Air Qual	ty Mana	gement	District	Regional	Significance
Thresholds								

	Mass Daily Thresholds (lb/day)				
Pollutant	Construction	Operations			
NOx	100	55			
VOCª	75	55			
PM <sub>10</sub>	150	150			
PM <sub>2.5</sub>	55	55			
SOx	150	150			
CO	550	550			
Pb <sup>b</sup>	3	3			

Source: SCAQMD 2023

Notes:

lb/day=pounds per day

<sup>a</sup> The terms VOC and ROG are used interchangeably. SCAQMD uses VOC, and CalEEMod uses ROG.

<sup>b</sup> The project would result in no lead emissions sources during the construction period or operations. As such, lead emissions are not evaluated herein.

# Table 3.3-2. South Coast Air Quality Management District Localized Significance Thresholds<sup>a</sup>

	Maximum Mass Daily Thresholds (lb/day)					
Pollutant	Construction	Operations				
NOx	170	170				
CO	883	883				
<b>PM</b> 10	7	2				
PM2.5	4	1				

Source: SCAQMD 2008

Notes:

lb/day=pounds per day

<sup>a</sup> Localized thresholds are for a 2-acre site in Source Receptor Area 24 Perris Valley with a receptor distance of 82 feet.

#### Environmental Setting:

The Project area is located within the Woodcrest community in Riverside County, an area within the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB), which includes all of Orange County and a portion of Los Angeles, San Bernardino, and Riverside Counties. Air quality regulations in the SCAB fall under the jurisdiction of the SCAQMD. Existing air quality was evaluated in the AQR at the two closest air quality monitoring stations, SCAQMD's Perris Valley Station and the Mission Boulevard Station in Rubidoux (Riverside-Rubidoux). The Perris Valley and Riverside-Rubidoux monitoring stations are representative of the Project area because the climate, topography, and urban setting are like those of the Project area. During the 2018 to 2020 monitoring period, exceedances were recorded at these monitoring stations for the state 1-hour O3 standard, state and federal 8-hour O3 standards, PM<sub>10</sub> and PM<sub>2.5</sub> standards (ERP 2023).

#### Impact Analysis:

a) Less Than Significant Impact. As previously discussed in the Regulatory Framework and Existing Setting sections above, the SCAQMD's 2016 AQMP is the applicable air quality plan with which to establish consistency. If a project is consistent with the goals and assumptions in the air quality plan, then it will not conflict with the region's ability to attain the federal and state air quality standards. In accordance with the SCAQMD's CEQA Air Quality Handbook, the Project must meet two criteria to establish consistency. For the first criterion, the Project must not contribute to an increase in the frequency or severity of existing air quality violations or cause or contribute to new violations that may delay the attainment of air quality standards. As presented in Section 3.3(b) below, the Project would not exceed SCAQMD's regional daily significance thresholds and would therefore be consistent with this first criterion. For the second criterion, the Project shall be consistent with the growth forecasts developed by the Southern California Association of Governments

(SCAG) for population, housing, and employment in its Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS). The Project would not build housing or induce population growth as a roadway improvement project. The construction duration would be only 6 months and would be staffed with a local workforce. Operations and maintenance would be similar to existing conditions and not require substantially more workers. The SCAQMD uses the growth forecasts in the SCAG RTP/SCS to develop the emissions inventory in the AQMP so consistency with the SCAG RTP/SCS and associated growth forecasts would infer consistency with the assumptions in the AQMP. Therefore, the Project would be consistent with the second criterion. Impacts are considered less than significant.

b) Less Than Significant Impact. During construction, the Project would result in temporary air quality impacts associated with exhaust emissions from construction equipment and mobile sources, and fugitive dust. Fugitive dust would be controlled by watering disturbed areas three times per day in accordance with SCAQMD Rule 403. Construction is anticipated to commence in the first quarter of 2026 and last 6 months. Construction activities are separated into the following phases: clearing and grubbing, asphalt demolition, roadway excavation, imported borrow, utility construction, flatwork, aggregate base, and asphalt paving. Construction emissions were estimated in the AQR using the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod, version 2022.1). As shown in Table 3.3-3, peak daily construction-related emissions would not exceed the SCAQMD's regional thresholds (ERP 2023). While mitigation is not required for construction, the construction contractor would be required to comply with Caltrans' Standard Specification in Section 14-9 and other construction best practices including relevant SCAQMD rules described in the AQR (ERP 2023).

During operation, the Project's long-term air quality impacts are associated with motor vehicles operating on the roadway network. Operational emissions were evaluated in the AQR for the existing year (2021), opening year (2026), and horizon year (2046). CEQA typically compares the Project to existing conditions, but because vehicle emissions are trending downward from improvements in technology and stricter regulatory standards, both the No Build and existing conditions are presented for comparison with the Build condition (Project). As shown in Table 3.3-4, operation of the Project would increase PM<sub>10</sub> and PM<sub>2.5</sub> and decrease ROG, NO<sub>x</sub>, and CO emissions compared to existing conditions (ERP 2023). The increase in PM is partly due to background growth in VMT from 2021 to 2046 as PM fugitive dust emissions are a function of VMT and fugitive dust emission factors are fairly constant over time. Exhaust emission factors decrease over time from improvements in engine technology, fuel efficiency, and the retirement of older- high-emitting vehicles, which reduces exhaust emissions. Compared to the No Build condition, the Project would not result in an increase for any criteria pollutant in both 2026 and 2046 because the Project would have less annual VMT than the No-Build. Because the only increase in operational emissions (PM<sub>10</sub> and PM<sub>2.5</sub>) would come from the background growth in VMT and not due to implementation of the Project, the Project would not exceed the SCAQMD's regional daily operational thresholds.

In summary, both the construction and operational emissions would not exceed the SCAQMD's regional daily significance thresholds for any pollutant in non-attainment ( $O_3$ ,  $PM_{10}$ ,  $PM_{2.5}$ ) or cause a significant impact on air quality. Therefore, the Project would not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the Project region is in non-attainment. Impacts are considered less than significant.

	Maximum Daily Emissions (lb/day)						
Phase	ROG	NOx	со	SO <sub>2</sub>	а РМ <sub>10</sub>	<b>PM</b> <sub>2.5</sub> <sup>a</sup>	
Clearing and Grubbing	2	14	14	<0.1	4	2	
Asphalt Demolition	1	13	12	<0.1	8	2	
Roadway Excavation	3	27	28	<0.1	6	2	
Imported Borrow	2	31	22	<1	11	3	
Utility Construction	<1	8	10	<0.1	2	<1	
Flatwork	<1	4	5	<0.1	2	<1	
Aggregate Base	<1	9	10	<0.1	4	<1	
Asphalt Paving	20	7	8	<0.1	3	<1	
Maximum Daily Emissions	20	31	28	<1	11	3	
SCAQMD Significance Threshold	75	100	550	150	150	55	

Table 3.3-3.	Project	<b>Construction-Period</b>	Regional	<b>Emissions</b>	<b>Estimates</b>

Table 3.3-3. Floject construction-Feriou Regional Emissions Estimates						
		Max	Maximum Daily Emissions (lb/day)			
Phase	ROG	NO <sub>X</sub>	со	SO <sub>2</sub>	a PM10	PM <sub>2.5</sub> ª
Exceeds Threshold?	No	No	No	No	No	No

### Table 3.3-3. Project Construction-Period Regional Emissions Estimates

Source: ERP 2023

Notes:

SCAQMD=South Coast Air Quality Management District; lb/day=pounds per day; CO = carbon monoxide; NO<sub>X</sub> = nitrogen oxide;  $PM_{2.5}$  = fine particulate matter;  $PM_{10}$  = suspended particulate matter; ROG = reactive organic gas; SO<sub>2</sub> = sulfur dioxide Particulate matter values include exhaust and fugitive dust emissions.

Scenario/Analysis Year	ROG	NOx	со	SO <sub>2</sub>	a PM <sub>10</sub>	<b>PM</b> 2.5 <sup>a</sup>		
Existing Year (2021)	2	14	56	0.20	49	13		
Opening Year (2026) No-Build Condition	1	9	44	0.19	54	14		
Opening Year (2026) Build Condition	1	9	44	0.19	54	14		
Horizon Year (2046) No-Build Condition	1	11	46	0.21	77	20		
Horizon Year (2046) Build Condition	1	11	46	0.21	77	20		
Net Emissions Comparison to	Existing Co	onditions						
Opening Year (2026) Build Condition	-1	-5	-12	0	5	1		
Horizon Year (2046) Build Condition	-1	-3	-10	0	28	7		
Net Emissions Comparison to No-Build Conditions								
Opening Year (2026) Build Condition	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Horizon Year (2046) Build Condition	0	0	0	0	0	0		

### Table 3.3-4. Operational Criteria Pollutant Emissions (tons per year)

Source: ERP 2023

Notes:

Modeled using EMFAC2017.

CO = carbon monoxide; NO<sub>x</sub> = nitrogen oxide; PM<sub>2.5</sub> = fine particulate matter; PM<sub>10</sub> = suspended particulate matter; ROG = reactive organic gas; SO<sub>2</sub> = sulfur dioxide Particulate matter values include exhaust and fugitive dust emissions.

c) Less Than Significant Impact. The SCAQMD defines sensitive receptors as people who have increased sensitivity to air pollution. Sensitive receptors include schools, athletic fields, playgrounds, childcare centers, convalescent centers, retirement homes, hospitals, and residential areas. Sensitive land uses within 2,000 feet of the Project area include residences and Citrus Hill High School. The closest receptors to the Project area are existing residences located adjacent to the Project area along the existing roadway (ERP 2023).

SCAQMD requires a localized analysis of air quality impacts to nearby sensitive receptors. The analysis of localized air quality impacts focuses only on the on-site activities of a project and does not include emissions that are generated off-site, such as on-road haul or delivery truck trips. Consistent with SCAQMD's Final Localized Significance Threshold Methodology Document, the appropriate localized significance thresholds for the Project were established in Table 3.3-2. The values in Table 3.3-2 correspond to a 2-acre site with a minimum receptor distance of 82 feet located in Source Receptor Area (SRA) 24. While the Project area is approximately 13 acres, the daily disturbance area would be 2 acres (ERP 2023).

As shown in Table 3.3-5, the Project's on-site construction emissions would not exceed the SCAQMD's localized significance thresholds for construction. During operations, mobile sources are the only source of emissions so operational LST values would not apply to the Project (ERP 2023).

	Maximum Daily Emissions (lb/day)					
Phase	NOx	CO	a PM10	PM <sub>2.5</sub> <sup>a</sup>		
Clearing and Grubbing	13	14	3.4	1.5		
Asphalt Demolition	12	11	6.8	1.9		
Roadway Excavation	27	26	4.6	2.1		
Imported Borrow	19	19	4.7	1.1		
Utility Construction	8	10	1.4	<1		
Flatwork	2	4	1.4	<1		
Aggregate Base	7	9	1.8	<1		
Asphalt Paving	6	7	1.6	<1		
Maximum Daily Emissions	27	26	6.8	2.1		
SCAQMD Significance Threshold	170	883	7	4		
Exceeds Threshold?	No	No	No	No		

able 3.3-5. Project	t Construction-Period	Localized	<b>Emissions</b>	<b>Estimates</b>
---------------------	-----------------------	-----------	------------------	------------------

Source: ERP 2023

Notes:

SCAQMD=South Coast Air Quality Management District; lb/day=pounds per day; CO = carbon monoxide;  $NO_X$  = nitrogen oxide;  $PM_{2.5}$  = fine particulate matter;  $PM_{10}$  = suspended particulate matter. <sup>a</sup> Particulate matter values include exhaust and fugitive dust emissions.

#### CO Analysis

A CO hot spot is a localized concentration of CO that is above the state or national 1-hour or 8-hour ambient air standards for the pollutant. CO hot spots at roadway intersections are typically found in areas with significant traffic congestion. A comparative analysis was conducted in the AQR using intersection counts from the Supplemental TIA Memorandum and SCAQMD's 2003 AQMP, which is the most recent AQMP addressing CO concentrations. The 2003 AQMP's busiest intersection had a traffic volume of 100,000 vehicles/day and was found to be below the 1-hour and 8-hour CO standards of 20 ppm and 9 ppm, respectively. The Project's highest traffic volume of 15,610 vehicles/day occurs at the intersection of Wood Road and Markham Street (ERP 2023). As this volume is well below the 100,000 vehicles/day evaluated in the 2003 AQMP, the Project would not exceed any CO standard and no detailed CO hot spots analysis is required for the Project. The Project would not result in long-term impacts related to CO hot spots and would not contribute a significant level of CO such that localized air quality and human health would be substantially degraded.

#### PM Analysis

A PM hot spot is a localized concentration of PM that is above the state or national 24-hour or annual ambient air standards for that pollutant. PM hotspots can occur in areas with significant volumes of diesel truck traffic. The Project would not contribute to a significant number of or significant increase in diesel vehicles. Implementation of the Project would improve traffic circulation systems within the Woodcrest community. As evaluated in the AQR, the Project would be below the localized emissions thresholds for PM<sub>10</sub> or PM<sub>2.5</sub> (Table 3.3-5) and does not meet the criteria for a detailed PM<sub>10</sub> or PM<sub>2.5</sub> hot spot analysis (ERP 2023). The Project would not result in long-term impacts related to PM hot spots and would not contribute a significant level of PM such that localized air quality and human health would be substantially degraded.

Therefore, after evaluation of localized emissions and potential CO and PM hot spots, the Project would not expose nearby sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. Impacts are considered less than significant.

d) Less Than Significant Impact. According to the SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook, land uses associated with odor complaints typically include agricultural uses, wastewater treatment facilities, food processing plants, chemical plants, composting areas, refineries, landfills, dairies, and fiberglass molding facilities. The Project includes roadway improvements and does not include any of these uses. During construction of the Project, exhaust from equipment and mobile sources, application of coatings for roadway striping, and asphalt paving activities may produce discernible odors typical of most construction sites. Such odors would be, at worst, a temporary source of nuisance to adjacent uses, if at all, and would not affect a substantial number of people. The Project would use coatings compliant with SCAQMD Rule 1113, which would limit the odors associated with off-gassing from those coatings. Odors associated with asphalt paving would only occur for a limited time period for the Project (approximately 10 days), and the locations of paving activities would be distributed along the Project area. Additionally, material deliveries and heavy-duty haul truck trips could occasionally produce odors from diesel exhaust. These odors would not affect a substantial number of people, construction activities would be temporary, and construction-generated emissions dissipate rapidly with increasing distance from the source (ERP 2023). Overall, odors associated with Project construction would be temporary and intermittent in nature and would not create a significant level of objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people. Further, as shown in Table 3.3-3 and Table 3.3-4, the Project would not result in any other emissions (CO, SOx) affecting a substantial amount of people. Impacts are considered less than significant.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

# 3.4 Biological Resources

Enviro	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would	the project:				
a)	Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?				
b)	Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, and regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?				
c)	Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?				
d)	Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of wildlife nursery sites?				
e)	Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?				
f)	Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?				

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the Determination of Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation Report (DBESP) (HDR 2024a) and Biological Resources Technical Report (HDR 2024b).

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

#### Federal and State Special-Status Species:

Under Section 7 of the Federal Endangered Species Act (FESA), federal agencies are required to consult with the USFWS to ensure that they are not undertaking, funding, permitting, or authorizing actions likely to jeopardize the continued existence of listed species or destroy or adversely modify designated critical habitat.

California enacted a similar law at the state level, the California Endangered Species Act (CESA), California Fish and Game Code Section 2050, et seq. The CESA emphasizes early consultation to avoid potential impacts to rare, endangered, and threatened species and to develop appropriate planning to offset project-caused losses of listed species populations and their essential habitats. Species listed under FESA and CESA that require a Biological Opinion under Section 7 may also need a Consistency Determination under Section 2080.1 of the California Fish and Game Code.

Under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA), the killing, possessing, or trading of migratory birds is prohibited unless exempt by regulations prescribed by the Secretary of the Interior. The MBTA prohibits the possession of protected bird species and their nests, regardless of whether nests are active.

Birds of prey, such as owls and hawks, are protected in California under provisions of the State Fish and Game Code, which states that it is "unlawful to take, possess, or destroy any birds in the order Falconiformes or Strigiformes (birds of prey) or to take, possess, or destroy the nest or eggs of any such bird except as otherwise provided by this code or any regulation adopted pursuant thereto."

#### Jurisdictional Aquatic Resources

The Clean Water Act (CWA) establishes the basic structure for regulating discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for surface waters. The following are important CWA sections related to wetland and riparian habitat:

- Section 401 requires an applicant for a federal license or permit to conduct any activity, which may result in
  a discharge to waters of the U.S., to obtain certification from the state that the discharge will comply with
  other provisions of the act.
- Section 404 of the CWA establishes a regulatory program that provides that discharge of dredged or fill material cannot be permitted if a practicable alternative exists that is less damaging to the aquatic environment or if the nation's waters would be significantly degraded. The Section 404 permit program is run by the USACE with oversight by the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

CDFW regulates water resources under Sections 1600 et seq. of the California Fish and Game Code and has the authority to grant Streambed Alteration Agreements under Section 1602. CDFW jurisdiction includes ephemeral, intermittent, and perennial watercourses and extends to the top of the bank of a stream or lake if unvegetated or to the limit of the adjacent riparian habitat located contiguous to the watercourse if the stream or lake is vegetated.

## Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (Western Riverside County MSHCP) Covered Species

The Western Riverside County MSHCP was adopted on June 17, 2003, and an Implementing Agreement was executed between the federal and state wildlife agencies (USFWS and CDFW) and participating entities (Riverside County Transportation and Land Management Agency 2003). The Western Riverside County MSHCP is a comprehensive habitat conservation-planning program intended to preserve native vegetation and meet the habitat needs of multiple species, rather than focusing preservation efforts on one species at a time. As such, the Western Riverside County MSHCP is intended to streamline review of individual projects with respect to the species and habitats addressed in the Western Riverside County MSHCP and provide for an overall conservation area that would be of greater benefit to biological resources than would result from a piecemeal regulatory approach. The Western Riverside County MSHCP provides coverage (including take authorization for listed species) for special-status plant and animal species, as well as mitigation for impacts on special-status species.

The Western Riverside County MSHCP serves as a habitat conservation plan pursuant to Section 10(a)(1)(B) of FESA, as well as the Natural Communities Conservation Plan under the State of California Natural Community Conservation Planning Act (Fish and Game Code Section 2800). USFWS issued a Biological Opinion (USFWS 2004) for the Western Riverside County MSHCP on June 22, 2004, and issued an amendment to the Biological Opinion on September 22, 2011. CDFW also issued the Natural Communities Conservation Plan Approval and Take Authorization for the Western Riverside County MSHCP on June 22, 2004.

#### Environmental Setting:

A Biological Study Area (BSA) was used to determine potential impacts on biological resources that includes the Project area and a 150-foot buffer. The aquatic resources delineation area (ARDA), used to determine potential impacts on jurisdictional aquatic resources in and adjacent to the Project area, includes the Project area and a 50-foot buffer. The BUOW and riparian birds survey area include the Project area and a 500-foot buffer. The BSA, ARDA, and BUOW and riparian birds survey area are depicted on Figure 3.4-1.

Portions of the BSA and surrounding areas are developed, while other portions remain natural with native vegetation and feature natural drainages, such as a large portion of Mockingbird Canyon Creek. The BSA consists of rural residential development and surrounding open space. Because of this setting, while the BSA supports native vegetation communities and wildlife, most of the biological resources have been modified to support residences and supporting infrastructure.

*Vegetation Communities:* Acreages of vegetation communities and other land cover types in the BSA are provided in Table 3.4-1 and depicted in Figure 3.4-2 (Sheets 1 through 3).

 Table 3.4-1. Vegetation Communities and Other Land Cover Types in the Biological

 Study Area

Vegetation Community or Other Land Cover Type	Acres				
Tree-dominated habitats					
Black willow woodland*	5.69				
Ornamental riparian woodland	0.30				
Shrub-dominated habitats					
California buckwheat scrub	5.50				
Blue elderberry shrubland	0.92				
Mule fat thickets	0.57				
Herbaceous-dominated habitats					
Cattail marsh	0.17				
Cocklebur patches	0.08				
Perennial pepperweed patches	2.66				
Giant reed marsh	0.19				
Mediterranean California naturalized annual and perennial grassland	13.12				
Other land cover types					
Developed/Disturbed/Bare Ground	15.71				
Orchard/Agricultural	2.59				
Residential	20.41				
Total <sup>a</sup>	67.93				

Notes:

<sup>a</sup> Totals may differ due to rounding.

\* Indicates a CDFW Sensitive Natural Community

**Special Status Vegetation Communities:** Black willow woodland is designated as an S3 state rarity rank<sup>1</sup>. Additionally, riparian vegetation communities, which are associated with streambeds, wetlands, and adjacent riparian areas, are also considered special-status by CDFW regardless of their state rarity ranking and are regulated pursuant to Section 1600, et seq. of the California Fish and Game Code. Riparian communities mapped within the BSA include black willow woodland, mule fat thickets, cattail marsh, ornamental riparian woodland, perennial pepperweed patches, and giant reed marsh. Ornamental riparian woodland consists of many non-native ornamental species and is not considered special-status other than for purposes of inclusion as riparian habitat within CDFW jurisdiction. Likewise, perennial pepperweed patches and giant reed marshes are dominated by non-native invasive species and are not considered special-status other than for purposes of inclusion as riparian habitat within CDFW jurisdiction.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> S3 state rarity ranking corresponds to a vegetation community that is vulnerable and at moderate risk of extinction or elimination due to a restricted range, relatively few populations or occurrences, recent and widespread declines, or other factors.

Figure 3.4-1. Biological Study Area, Aquatic Resources Delineation Area, and BUOW and Riparian Birds Survey Area



60000 MARKHAM ST LEGEND

Figure 3.4-2. Vegetation Communities and Other Land Cover Types in the Biological Study Area (Sheet 1 of 3)



Project Area

Vegetation Biological Study Area 📕 Black willow woodland California buckwheat scrub

Cattail marshes

Cocklebur patches

Developed/Disturbed/Bare Ground Blue elderberry shrubland Glant reed marsh

Mediterranean California naturalized annual and perennial grassland Mule fat thickets

Orchard/Agricultural Ornamental riparian Perennial pepperweed patches Residential



Page 1 of 3



Figure 3.4-2. Vegetation Communities and Other Land Cover Types in the Biological Study Area (Sheet 2 of 3)

0 Feet 150

Project Area Vegetation Biological Study Area Black willow woodland

California buckwheat scrub

Cocklebur patches

Blue elderberry shrubland Glant reed marsh

Cattail marshes Mule fat thickets

Developed/Disturbed/Bare Ground Mediterranean California naturalized annual and perennial grassland

Orchard/Agricultural Ornamental riparian Perennial pepperweed patches Residential

Figure 3.4-2. Vegetation Communities and Other Land Cover Types in the Biological Study Area (Sheet 3 of 3)





Mediterranean California naturalized annual and perennial grassland Mule fat thickets

Residential



**Special Status Plant Species:** The BSA contains suitable habitat to support one special-status plant species, smooth tar plant. This species is a Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species; however, because the BSA is not located within designated Criteria Area Species Survey Areas (CASSA) or Narrow Endemic Plant Species Survey Areas (NEPSSA) areas, further analysis of this species is not required. Smooth tarplant was not observed during field surveys conducted in 2022.

**Special Status Wildlife Species:** The BSA supports suitable habitat for the following twenty-one special-status wildlife species:

#### Invertebrates

• Crotch's bumble bee (Bombus Crotchii) – State Candidate Endangered.

#### Amphibians

Western spadefoot (Spea hammondii) – State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species.

#### Reptiles

- California glossy snake (Arizona elegans) State Species of Special Concern;
- Coastal whiptail (*Aspidoscelis tigris stejnegeri*) State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Red-diamond rattlesnake (Crotalus ruber) State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Western pond turtle (*Emys marmorata*) State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Blainville's horned lizard (*Phrynosoma blaivillii coronatum*) State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Coast patch-nosed snake (Salvadora hexalepis virgultea) State Species of Special Concern;
- Two-striped garter snake (Thamnophis hammondii) State Species of Special Concern.

#### Birds

- Golden eagle (*Aquila chrysaetos*) State Fully Protected, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Burrowing owl (*Athene cunicularia*) State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species (with additional survey requirements);
- White-tailed kite (*Elanus leucurus*) State Fully Protected, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Southwestern willow flycatcher (*Empidonax traillii extimus*) Federal and State Endangered, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species (with additional survey requirements);
- Yellow-breasted chat (*Icteria virens*) State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Loggerhead shrike (*Lanius Iudovicianus*) State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Least Bell's vireo (*Vireo bellii pusillus*) Federal and State Endangered, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species (with additional survey requirements);
- Coastal California gnatcatcher (*Polioptila californica californica*) Federal and State Endangered, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species.

#### Mammals

- Stephens' kangaroo rat (*Dipodomys stephensi*) Federal Endangered, State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species;
- Western mastiff bat (*Eumops perotis californicus*) State Species of Special Concern;
- Western yellow bat (Lasiurus xanthinus) State Species of Special Concern;
- Los Angeles Pocket mouse (*Perognathus longimembris brevinasus*) State Species of Special Concern, Western Riverside County MSHCP Covered Species.

Ten species warrant further analysis because they are either are covered but have additional survey needs and requirements specified in the Western Riverside County MSHCP that requires analysis of Project impacts (southwestern willow flycatcher, Coastal California gnatcatcher, least Bell's vireo, burrowing owl) or not covered under the Western Riverside County MSHCP (Crotch's bumble bee, California glossy snake, coast patch-nosed snake, two-striped garter snake, Western mastiff bat, and Western yellow bat).

*Jurisdictional Aquatic Resources:* The ARDA supports wetland and non-wetland waters of the United States subject to jurisdiction of USACE and RWQCB pursuant to Sections 404 and 401 of the CWA, respectively. The BSA also supports streambed and riparian habitat subject to jurisdiction of CDFW pursuant to Section 1600 of the California Fish and Game Code. CDFW-jurisdictional streamed and riparian habitat are also considered Western Riverside County MSHCP Riparian/Riverine habitats.

**Wildlife Corridors and Habitat Linkages:** The Project is not located within any designated wildlife corridors or habitat linkages, including any Western Riverside County MSHCP Cores or Linkages. However, Mockingbird Canyon Creek serves as a functional wildlife corridor as it provides a geographic connection between inland wildlife habitats upstream and downstream of the BSA and represents an important biological resource within an otherwise highly developed (urbanized) environment.

#### Impact Analysis:

#### a) Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated.

A summary of Project impacts is provided below for the ten species that require further impact analysis.

**Southwestern Willow Flycatcher** - The Project would result in permanent impacts to up to 1.59 acres and temporary impacts to 0.35 acre of SWFL foraging habitat. Permanent loss of SWFL foraging habitat within the Project area would result from development of the roadway and construction of the drainage channel north of Markham Street. Because the bottom of this channel would be maintained without vegetation in order to provide sufficient flood control capacity, on-site restoration of riparian woodland habitat within this area is not feasible. Direct impacts to individual SWFL individuals could occur during construction if vegetation is removed while a SWFL is foraging in the habitat. Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5, BIO-10, and DBESP-1 through DBESP-7 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on SWFL.

*Least Bell's Vireo* - The Project would result in permanent impacts to up to 1.59 acres and temporary impacts to 0.35 acre of occupied LBV habitat. Permanent loss of LBV habitat within the Project area would result from development of the roadway improvements and construction of the drainage channel north of Markham Street. Because the bottom of this channel would be maintained without vegetation in order to provide sufficient flood control capacity, on-site restoration of riparian woodland habitat within this area will not be feasible. Direct impacts to individual LBV could occur during construction if vegetation supporting an active nest is removed. If LBV occupy suitable habitat adjacent to direct impact areas, within the 500-foot Riparian Birds buffer, temporarily increased noise and activity levels could result in indirect impacts on nesting and foraging activities. Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5, BIO-10, BIO-11, and DBESP-1 through DBESP-7 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on LBV.

Based on the Determination of Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation (DBESP) prepared for the Project, to meet the criteria of a biologically equivalent or superior alternative, compensatory mitigation for permanent impacts to least Bell's vireo nesting habitat, as specified in Measure DBESP-5 will be provided at a ratio of 2:1 for permanent loss, which would also account for temporal loss of least Bell's vireo nesting habitat while mitigation habitat is being established. A minimum of 3.53 acres of the 4.52 acres of mitigation habitat discussed below under Subsection B will consist of habitat suitable to support least Bell's vireo, resulting in a 2:1 replacement of least Bell's vireo habitat within the Western Riverside County MSHCP Planning Area.

**Coastal California Gnatcatcher** - The Project would result in temporary impacts to up to 0.17 acre and permanent impacts to up to 1.19 acres of California buckwheat scrub. Due to the high level of disturbance, and proximity to an active roadway and residential areas, this habitat is of low quality for CAGN nesting, but this species could forage and nest within the Project area. Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5, BIO-12, and BIO-13 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on nesting CAGN.

**Burrowing Owls** – The Project would result in temporary impacts to up to 1.21 acres and permanent impacts to up to 3.41 acres of suitable BUOW habitat. BUOW was absent from the BSA at the time of the biological survey; therefore, the Project would not result in loss of any occupied BUOW habitat. Measures BIO-14, DBESP-1 through DBESP-4, and DBESP-8 would be implemented to avoid potential impacts on BUOW that could occupy the Project area prior to construction.

**Crotch's Bumble Bee** – If Crotch's bumble bee are determined to be present at the time of construction, the Project would result in temporary impacts to up to 0.17 acre and permanent loss of up to 1.19 acres of suitable habitat (California buckwheat scrub) for this species. Because this species is a candidate for listing as a State Endangered species, should this species occur within the BSA an Incidental Take Permit pursuant to Section 2081(b) of the California Fish and Game Code may be required prior to commencement

of Project activities in suitable habitat areas. Should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation, Measure BIO-3, and Measures BIO-7 through BIO-9 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on Crotch's bumble bee. However, if the Crotch's bumble bee is no longer a candidate for listing or does not become listed under the CESA prior to Project implementation, then Measures BIO-7 through BIO-9 would not be required.

**California glossy snake and coast patch-nosed snake** - The Project would result in temporary impacts to up to 0.17 acre and permanent impacts to up to 1.19 acres of California buckwheat scrub and temporary impacts to up to 1.04 acres and permanent impacts to up to 2.23 acres of Mediterranean California naturalized annual and perennial grassland suitable for California glossy snake and coast patch-nosed snake. Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on these species.

*Two-striped garter snake, western mastiff bat, and western yellow bat* - The Project would result in temporary impacts to up to 0.35 acre and permanent loss to up to 1.59 acres of riparian habitat suitable for two-striped garter snake, western mastiff bat, and western yellow bat. Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on these species. In addition, Measure BIO-15 would also be implemented to reduce potential impacts to special-status bats that could roost in trees and large shrubs within the Project area.

Impacts are considered less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

b) Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. The Project would result in permanent impacts to 2.26 acres (1.69 acres native riparian, 0.57-acre non-native/invasive), and temporary impacts to 0.44-acre riparian habitat (0.37-acre native riparian, 0.07-acre non-native/invasive) of Western Riverside County MSHCP Section 6.1.2 Riparian/Riverine resources associated with Mockingbird Canyon Creek. Project impacts to black willow woodland within the proposed flood-control channel north of Markham Street are considered permanent; however, hydroseeding and/or planting of the channel banks with native coastal sage scrub species would be implemented to enhance habitat and provide erosion control, per Measure BIO-5. However, the drainage easement channel bottom will remain unvegetated in order to provide sufficient flood control capacity. Measures BIO-1 through BIO-6 and DBESP-5 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on native and non-native/invasive riparian habitats.

Based on the requirements of Measures BIO-6 and DBESP-5, mitigation for permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat would be provided through permittee-responsible mitigation in the form of establishment, restoration, and/or enhancement of riparian habitat at a suitable location to provide Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of Habitat. Compensatory mitigation will be accomplished within the Western Riverside County MSHCP Planning Area. Mitigation for permanent impacts to 2.26 acres of riparian habitat within Mockingbird Canyon Creek would be provided at a ratio of 2:1, totaling 4.52 acres of mitigation. Should changes to Project design occur following approval of this DBESP, the County will confer with the USACE, CDFW, RWQCB, USFWS, and RCA, as needed, to discuss any changes to findings and provide any updates to existing avoidance, minimization, and mitigation measures, as needed, to maintain equivalent or superior preservation.

Impacts are considered less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

c) Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. The Project would result in direct temporary impacts to up to 0.01 acre of non-wetland waters of the U.S. subject to USACE and RWQCB jurisdiction and direct permanent impacts to up to 0.12 acre of non-wetland waters of the U.S. No impacts to wetland waters of the U.S. would occur.

The Project would also result in direct temporary impacts to up to 0.37 acre of native riparian habitat and 0.07 acre of non-native/invasive riparian habitat subject to CDFW jurisdiction. Additionally, the Project would result in direct permanent impacts to up to 1.69 acres of native riparian habitat and 0.57 acre of non-native/invasive riparian habitat subject to CDFW jurisdiction.

Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5 and DBESP-1 through DBESP-4 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on jurisdictional aquatic resources. Measures BIO-6 and DBESP-5 would also be implemented and coordinated with the Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority as part of the DBESP approval process and regulatory permitting process with USACE, RWQCB, and CDFW. Based on the type of proposed work, it is anticipated that the Project would be eligible for Section 404 authorization under current Nationwide Permit 14 for Transportation Projects, a Section 401 Water Quality Certification, and a standard Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement

Impacts are considered less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

d) Less than Significant Impact. The Project is not located within any designated wildlife corridors or habitat linkages, including any Western Riverside County MSHCP Cores or Linkages. Mockingbird Canyon Creek serves as a functional wildlife corridor; however, the Project would not substantially interfere with wildlife movement. Impacts are considered less than significant.

- e) No Impact. The Project would comply with the Riverside County Oak Tree Management Guidelines, as no oak trees would be removed or otherwise impacted. Additionally, the Project would comply with the Lake Matthews/Woodcrest Area Plan Policies related to biological resources, and the Environmentally Sensitive Lands, Wetlands, and Floodplain and Riparian Area Management sections of the General Plan Multipurpose Open Space Element. No impact would occur.
- f) No Impact. The Project area is located within the Western Riverside County MSHCP's BUOW survey area and supports Western Riverside County MSHCP Riparian/Riverine areas that provide suitable nesting habitat for LBV. The Project would comply with the Western Riverside County MSHCP. No impact would occur.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

The following avoidance, minimization, and mitigation measures would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to biological resources.

Avoidance Measures:

- BIO-7 Crotch's Bumble Bee Survey. This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. Within one year prior to construction, a habitat assessment for Crotch's bumble bee will be conducted within the Project area and an appropriate survey buffer be established by a qualified biologist with experience surveying for and observing Crotch's bumble bee. If the qualified biologist determines that suitable habitat is present, surveys shall be conducted to determine the presence/absence of Crotch's bumble bee. Surveys shall be conducted during flying season when the species is most likely to be detected above ground, between March 1 to September 1 (Thorp et al. 1983). Survey results, including negative findings, shall be submitted to the CDFW prior to implementing Projectrelated ground-disturbing activities and/or vegetation removal where there may be impacts to Crotch's bumble bee. At minimum, a survey report should provide the following: a) A description and map of the survey area, focusing on areas that could provide suitable habitat for Crotch's bumble bee; b) Field survey conditions that should include name(s) of qualified entomologist(s) and brief qualifications; date and time of survey; survey duration; general weather conditions; survey goals, and species searched; c) Map(s) showing the location of nests/colonies; and, d) A description of physical (e.g., soil, moisture, slope) and biological (e.g., plant composition) conditions where each nest/colony is found. A sufficient description of biological conditions, primarily impacted habitat, should include native plant composition (e.g., density, cover, and abundance) within impacted habitat (e.g., species list separated by vegetation class; density, cover, and abundance of each species).
- **BIO-8 Crotch's Bumble Bee Avoidance.** This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. If Crotch's bumble bee is detected during the Crotch's bumble bee survey, the County shall ensure that a plan to fully avoid impacts to Crotch's bumble bee be developed in consultation with a qualified entomologist during final design. The plan shall include effective, specific, enforceable, and feasible measures. An avoidance plan should be submitted to CDFW prior to implementing Project-related ground-disturbing activities and/or vegetation removal where there may be impacts to Crotch's bumble bee. If Crotch's bumble bees are determined to be present within the Project area and it is determined the species will be impacted by Project implementation, appropriate mitigation shall be determined in consultation with CDFW.
- **BIO-9 Crotch's Bumble Bee Incidental Take Permit.** This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. If Crotch's bumble bee is detected during the survey (required by Measure BIO-7), and if impacts to Crotch's bumble bee cannot be feasibly avoided during Project construction, the County shall ensure that the designated qualified entomologist coordinate with CDFW to obtain appropriate permit for incidental take of Crotch's bumble bee. The incidental take permit would quantify and provide appropriate mitigation for impacts on Crotch's bumble bee habitat. Mitigation for impacts to Crotch's bumble bee habitat would be at a ratio comparable to the Project's level of impacts.
- **BIO-10 Riparian Bird Habitat Removal.** Prior to construction, suitable habitat for SWFL and LBV within the Project area will be removed between September 1 and February 14, outside of the nesting season. If it cannot occur outside nesting season the Project biologist will survey the area and delineate buffers suitable to avoid take if nesting birds, including foraging SWFL or LBV or active LBV nests, are found.
- **BIO-13 Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance.** Should nesting CAGN be found on or in the immediate vicinity (approximately 300-feet) of the Project area during surveys conducted in compliance with Measure BIO-11, the qualified biologist shall establish an appropriate buffer to prevent alteration of

nesting CAGN behavior. No construction or clearing shall be conducted within the established buffer until the designated biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.

**BIO-15 Bat Roosting Habitat Removal.** Prior to tree removal or trimming, large trees and snags shall be examined by a qualified bat biologist to ensure that no roosting bats are present. If trimming or removal of mature trees and snags is necessary for Project construction, trimming/removal activities should be performed outside of the general bat maternity season, which occurs from March 1st through October 1st, to avoid direct effects to nonvolant (flightless) young that may roost in trees within the study area. If trimming or removal of trees during the general bat maternity season cannot be avoided, a qualified biologist will monitor tree removal unless nighttime surveys conducted within one week of removal indicates no tree-roosting bat activity within the study area.

Palm frond trimming, if necessary, shall be conducted outside the bat maternity season to avoid potential mortality of flightless young. Since western yellow bats and western mastiff bats may be present in untrimmed palm tree fronds, a qualified bat biologist shall be present to monitor frond removal. Dead fronds shall be removed under the guidance of the bat biologist, following the two-day method described below.

DAY 1: Only trim the outermost fronds may be trimmed (no more than 50 percent of the palm fronds) using hand tools or chainsaws only (no dozers, backhoes, cranes, or other heavy equipment, other than to provide access for tree cutters using chainsaws).

DAY 2: The palm tree must be felled. Day 2 activities must occur the day immediately following the Day 1 activities. To accomplish this, work may need to be phased and Day 1/Day 2 steps can be repeated. Should bats emerge during the tree trimming, trimming activities must temporarily cease at the individual tree until bats are no longer actively emerging from the tree.

- **DBESP-3** During construction, all equipment maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will occur in developed or designated non-sensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland areas will be located so as to prevent runoff from any spills from entering waters of the U.S. or CDFW-regulated streambed.
- **DBESP-4** Prior to construction a SWPPP and soil erosion and sedimentation plan will be developed to minimize erosion and identify specific pollution prevention measures that will eliminate or control potential point and non-point pollution sources on site during construction. The SWPPP will identify specific best management practices to be implemented during construction so as not to cause or contribute to an exceedance of any water quality standard.
- **DBESP-6 Riparian Bird Habitat Removal.** Prior to construction, suitable habitat for SWFL and LBV within the Project area will be removed between September 1 and February 14, outside of the nesting season. If it cannot occur outside nesting season the Project biologist will survey the area and delineate buffers suitable to avoid take if nesting birds, including foraging SWFL or LBV or active LBV nests, are found.
- DBESP-7 Pre-construction Surveys and Monitoring for Least Bell's Vireo. Should construction activities begin during the LBV nesting season (March 15 to August 15), a qualified biologist will conduct three separate days of surveys, no more than 7 days prior to construction, to identify and map LBV nesting locations. The qualified biologist will also conduct weekly surveys throughout the LBV nesting season in all suitable LBV habitat within 500-feet of the active work area. In the event that LBV nesting activity is detected within 500-feet of the work area, if feasible, a 500-foot buffer shall be established between construction activities and the approximate edge of the LBV territory, to avoid affects to nesting LBV. If this is not possible, and the qualified biologist deems that construction activities can continue without disturbing nesting LBV, nests shall be monitored daily by the qualified biologist during all construction activities. If the biologist determines that the Project-related activities are altering LBV behavior, e.g., causing adults to flush from the nest more frequently, Project activities shall be halted within 500-feet of the active nest. Prior to re-commencement of work within 500-feet of the active nest, CDFW and USFWS will be notified and measures to reduce noise or noise impacts will be implemented in coordination with CDFW and USFWS. Measures may include increasing or reestablishing a nest buffer, installing noise barriers, or implementing noise attenuation measures (e.g., reducing the number of construction vehicles or using different types of construction vehicles; reducing the number of noisy activities that occur simultaneously) as feasible. These measures will remain in place until all nestlings have fledged or construction activities have moved 500-feet beyond that area of LBV activity. Construction activities that alter LBV behavior will cease operation until effective noise attenuation measures are in place to the extent practicable. The results of LBV preconstruction survey, weekly surveys, and monitoring will be reported weekly to CDFW and USFWS.

Minimization Measures:

- **BIO-1 Project Biologist.** A qualified biologist will oversee compliance with protective measures for the biological resources during clearing and work activities within and adjacent to areas of native habitat. The Project biologist shall designate areas that need temporary fencing and monitor construction. The biologist shall monitor activities during critical times such as vegetation removal, the installation of BMPs and ESA fencing to protect native species and ensure that all avoidance and minimization measures are properly constructed and followed. The biologist will conduct site visits a minimum of once weekly throughout construction to verify that required biological resources protections are in place.
- **BIO-2** Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP). Prior to construction, the Project biologist shall conduct WEAP training for all Project employees and contractors that will be on site. The training will advise workers of potential impacts to sensitive habitat and listed species and the potential penalties for impacts to such habitat and species. Included in this program will be color photos of the listed species, which will be shown to the employees. Following the education program, the photos shall be posted in the contractor and resident engineer's office, where they will remain through the duration of the work. The contractor will be required to provide the County with evidence of the employee training (e.g., sign in sheet or stickers) upon request.
- **BIO-3** Environmentally Sensitive Areas (ESAs). During construction, the Project contractor will minimize Project impacts on riparian and California buckwheat scrub habitat to the fullest extent possible. These areas shall be demarcated as ESAs. No grading or fill activity of any type will be permitted within designated ESAs. Prior to construction, the Project biologist shall ensure that non-impacted native habitat located outside of the Project area is demarcated as ESAs. Prior to construction, exclusionary fencing shall be installed around all ESAs under supervision of the Project biologist. ESA fencing will remain in place throughout the duration of construction. All construction equipment will be operated in a manner to prevent accidental encroachment or damage into ESAs. The biological monitor will conduct at a minimum, once weekly inspections of the ESA fencing to ensure that it is in place and properly maintained throughout the duration of construction. The contractor will be responsible for maintaining the ESA fencing per the biological monitor's direction.
- **BIO-4** Equipment Maintenance and Staging. During construction all equipment maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will occur in developed or designated nonsensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland areas shall be located a minimum of 50 feet away from any drainage areas, so as to prevent runoff of any spills from entering ESAs. Construction personnel will strictly limit their activities to the limits of disturbance and designated staging areas and routes of travel.
- **BIO-5 On-site restoration of native habitat.** Temporary impacts to native habitat will be restored in-kind following construction. On-site restoration methodology for riparian habitat will be described in the Restoration Plan for the Project, which will be submitted to the resource agencies and subject to agency approval as part of the regulatory permit applications, prior to Project construction activities. Temporary impacts to non-native riparian habitats would be restored using cuttings from native riparian trees and shrubs within the Project area following construction. On-site restoration areas would be monitored for a period of 5 years following restoration to ensure restoration activities are meeting success criteria identified in the Restoration Plan. Any temporarily impacted riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site.
- **BIO-11** Pre-construction Surveys and Monitoring for Least Bell's Vireo. Should construction activities begin during the LBV nesting season (March 15 to August 15), a qualified biologist will conduct three separate days of surveys, no more than 7 days prior to construction, to identify and map LBV nesting locations. The qualified biologist will also conduct weekly surveys throughout the LBV nesting season in all suitable LBV habitat within 500-feet of the active work area. In the event that LBV nesting activity is detected within 500-feet of the work area, if feasible, a 500-foot buffer shall be established between construction activities and the approximate edge of the LBV territory, to avoid affects to nesting LBV. If this is not possible, and the qualified biologist deems that construction activities can continue without disturbing nesting LBV, nests shall be monitored daily by the qualified biologist during all construction activities. If the biologist determines that the Project-related activities are altering LBV behavior, e.g., causing adults to flush from the nest more frequently. Project activities shall be halted within 500-feet of the active nest. Prior to re-commencement of work within 500-feet of the active nest, CDFW and USFWS will be notified and measures to reduce noise or noise impacts will be implemented in coordination with CDFW and USFWS. Measures may include increasing or reestablishing a nest buffer, installing noise barriers, or implementing noise attenuation measures (e.g., reducing the number of construction vehicles or using different types of construction vehicles; reducing the number of noisy activities that occur simultaneously) as feasible. These measures will remain in place until all nestlings have fledged, or construction activities have moved 500-feet beyond that area of LBV activity. Construction activities that alter LBV behavior will cease operation until effective noise attenuation measures are in place to the extent practicable. The results of LBV

preconstruction survey, weekly surveys, and monitoring will be reported weekly to CDFW and USFWS.

- **BIO-12** Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.
- **BIO-14 Burrowing Owl Preconstruction Survey.** Prior to construction, a survey for BUOW will be conducted by a qualified biologist within 30 days prior to vegetation clearing/grading. If BUOW are found within 500 feet (150 meters) of the Project area during the preconstruction survey, the County or its designated representative will immediately inform and coordinate with CDFW and USFWS to identify and implement applicable measures provided in WRCMSHCP BUOW Conservation Objective 6, as provided in Volume 1, Appendix E of the WRCMSHCP. Appropriate measures to avoid take of active BUOW nests may include establishment of an appropriate buffer until BUOW young have fledged or BUOW no longer occupy the burrow. If any burrows are identified within the Project area, passive relocation would be conducted by a qualified avian biologist outside of the nesting season, if necessary.
- **DBESP-1** Prior to construction, a weed abatement program will be developed and implemented to minimize the importation of non-native plant material during and after construction. Eradication strategies from the weed abatement program will be employed during construction activities, should an invasion occur.
- **DBESP-2** During construction, when work is conducted during the fire season (as identified by the Riverside County Fire Authority) adjacent to any vegetation, the appropriate firefighting equipment (e.g., extinguishers, shovels, and water tankers) will be made available on site during all phases of Project construction to minimize the potential for human-caused wildfires. Shields, protective mats, and/or other fire preventive methods will be used during grinding, welding, and other spark-inducing activities. Personnel trained in fire hazards, preventive actions, and responses to fires will advise the construction contractors regarding fire risk from all construction-related activities.
- **DBESP-8 Burrowing Owl Preconstruction Survey.** Prior to construction, a survey for BUOW will be conducted by a qualified biologist within 30 days prior to vegetation clearing/grading. If BUOW are found within 500 feet (150 meters) of the Project area during the preconstruction survey, the County or its designated representative will immediately inform and coordinate with CDFW and USFWS to identify and implement applicable measures provided in WRCMSHCP BUOW Conservation Objective 6, as provided in Volume 1, Appendix E of the WRCMSHCP. The qualified biologist shall determine appropriate measures necessary to avoid take of active BUOW nests, which may include establishment of an appropriate buffer until BUOW young have fledged or BUOW no longer occupy the burrow. If any burrows are identified within the Project area, a qualified avian biologist would conduct passive relocation outside of the nesting season, if necessary.

Mitigation Measures:

**BIO-6 Riparian Habitat Compensatory Mitigation.** Permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat will be mitigated through permittee responsible mitigation in the form of establishment, restoration, and/or enhancement of riparian habitat at a suitable location to provide Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of Habitat. Compensatory mitigation will be provided at a ratio of 2:1 for permanent impacts and at a ratio of 1:1 for temporal loss of LBV nesting habitat.

Temporary impacts to on-site native habitat will be restored where feasible. A Restoration Plan will be developed to define the approach for onsite restoration and will include erosion control measures, willow cutting planting plan, hydroseeding palette and methods, and a maintenance and monitoring methodology. In addition, any temporarily impacted riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site. Compensatory mitigation will be accomplished within the WRCMSHCP Planning Area. The preferred compensatory mitigation option is to implement permittee-responsible mitigation at the SAWA Mockingbird Conservation Easement, located adjacent to the Project south of the intersection of Markham Street and Roosevelt Street, or on Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority-owned parcels associated with Temescal Creek.

Details regarding the off-site mitigation location, long-term management entity, and mitigation categories will be included in a HMMP that will be prepared for the Project and submitted to regulatory agencies (USFWS, CDFW, USACE, and RWQCB) for approval prior to Project commencement. Mitigation will include establishment or restoration of in-kind habitat to support listed species that

occur in the on-site habitat being impacted (i.e., mitigation for impacts to occupied LBV habitat will include habitat suitable to support foraging and nesting LBV).

**DBESP-5 Riparian Habitat Compensatory Mitigation.** Permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat (i.e. black willow woodland, mule fat thickets, cattail marsh, cocklebur patches, and perennial pepper weed patches) will be mitigated through permittee responsible mitigation in the form of establishment, restoration, and/or enhancement of riparian habitat at a suitable location to provide Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of Habitat. Compensatory mitigation will be mitigated for in kind (i.e., impacts to riparian woodland habitat. Impacts to riparian habitat will be mitigated for in kind (i.e., impacts to riparian habitat would be mitigated for with riparian woodland; herbaceous riparian habitat would be mitigated for with herbaceous riparian habitat. Mitigation for riparian habitat that also supports nesting LBV (i.e., black willow woodland and mule fat thickets) will be mitigated through in-kind replacement and will be required to demonstrate that the replacement habitat supports nesting LBV.

Temporary impacts to on-site native habitat will be restored where feasible. A Restoration Plan will be developed to define the approach for onsite restoration and will include erosion control measures, willow cutting planting plan, hydroseeding palette and methods, and a maintenance and monitoring methodology. In addition, any riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site. Compensatory mitigation will be accomplished within the WRCMSHCP Planning Area. The preferred compensatory mitigation option is to implement permittee-responsible mitigation at the SAWA Mockingbird Conservation Easement, located adjacent to the Project south of the intersection of Markham Street and Roosevelt Street, or on Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority-owned parcels associated with Temescal Creek.

Details regarding the off-site mitigation site location, long-term management entity, and mitigation categories will be included in a Habitat Mitigation and Monitoring Plan (HMMP) that will be prepared for the Project and submitted to regulatory agencies (USFWS, CDFW, USACE, and RWQCB) for approval prior to Project commencement. Mitigation will include establishment or restoration of inkind habitat to support listed species that occur in habitat being impacted (i.e., mitigation for impacts to occupied LBV habitat will include habitat suitable to support foraging and nesting LBV).

# 3.5 Cultural

Enviror Would	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact	
a)	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to §15064.5?					
b)	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5?					
c)	Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?					

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the Phase I Cultural Resource Assessment (PaleoWest 2023).

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

#### California Environmental Quality Act

The Project is subject to compliance with CEQA, as amended. Compliance with CEQA statutes and guidelines requires the lead agency to assess a project's impact on historical resources (Public Resources Code [PRC] Section 21082, 21083.2 and 21084 and California Code of Regulations [CCR] Title 14, Section 15064.5). The first step in the process is to identify cultural resources that may be impacted by the project and then determine whether the resources are "historically significant."

A historical resource is defined as follows:

- a. A resource listed in, or determined eligible by the State Historical Resources Commission for listing in, the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR)
- b. A resource included in a local register of historical resources.
- c. A resource identified as significant in a historical resource survey meeting the requirements specified in PRC 5024.1(g)
- d. Any resource that the lead agency determines to be historically significant (14 CCR 15064.5[a]).

A cultural resource may be considered historically significant if the resource is 45 years old or older and possesses integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. In addition, it must meet any of the following criteria for listing on the CRHR:

- 1. Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of California's history and cultural heritage.
- 2. Is associated with the lives of persons important in our past.
- 3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values; or, has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history (PRC 5024.1).

Cultural resources are buildings, sites, humanly modified landscapes, traditional cultural properties, structures, or objects that may have historical, architectural, cultural, or scientific importance. A resource can also be determined historically significant under CEQA by virtue of being included in a local register of historical resources regardless of CRHR eligibility (see 14 CCR 15064.5[a][2]). CEQA states that if a project will have a significant impact on important cultural resources, deemed "historically significant," then project alternatives and mitigation measures must be considered.

CEQA also applies to effects on archaeological sites that do not meet the criteria for historical resources but do meet the definition of "unique archeological resource" (PRC 21083.2[g]). A unique archaeological resource is an
archaeological artifact, object, or site about which it can be clearly demonstrated that, without merely adding to the current body of knowledge, there is a high probability that it meets any of the following criteria:

- a. Contains information needed to answer important scientific research questions and that there is a demonstrable public interest in that information.
- b. Has a special and particular quality, such as being the oldest of its type or the best available example of its type.
- c. Is directly associated with a scientifically recognized important prehistoric or historic event or person.

If an archaeological resource is neither a historical resource nor a unique archaeological resource, the project's effects on the resource shall not be considered significant under CEQA (14 CCR 15064.5[c][4]).

#### **Environmental Setting:**

As part of the Phase I Cultural Resource Assessment (PaleoWest 2023), a literature review and records search were conducted at the Eastern Information Center (EIC) on March 18, 2022, and included the Project area with an additional one-mile buffer. Additional sources consulted included the National Register of Historic Places, the Office of Historic Preservation (OHP) Archaeological Determinations of Eligibility, and the OHP built Environment Resources Directory. Historical maps and aerials were reviewed for extant structures or features within or immediately adjacent to the Project area that may be 45 years or older. No archaeological or historic built environment resources were identified in the Project area as a result of the record search and archival research. Forty cultural resources have been documented within 1 mile of the Project area. Thirty-three of these resources are archaeological sites dating to the Prehistoric Period, most of which consist of bedrock milling features. The remaining seven cultural resources date to the Historic Period and include a church, single-family residence, foundation remnants with associated refuse, fence posts, and three isolated shotgun shell bases (PaleoWest 2023).

An intensive pedestrian cultural resource survey was conducted in May 2022. During the pedestrian survey, no archaeological resources or historic built environment resources were identified in the Project area (PaleoWest 2023).

Portions of the alignment that could not be accessed for the pedestrian survey contained dense vegetation that limited visual inspection of the ground surface from the edge of the County ROW. Areas that were not surveyed have the potential to contain cultural resources. Furthermore, a geoarchaeological analysis indicates that portions of the Project area characterized by floodplain deposits have a moderate sensitivity for containing buried archaeological remains.

#### Impact Analysis:

- a) Less Than Significant Impact. No cultural resources that meet the regulatory definition of historical resources pursuant to 14 CCR 15064.5(a) were identified in the Project area. Although there are two buildings within 1 mile of the Project area, the Project would result in no direct impacts on historic built-environment resources and little to no potential to visually impact nearby historic built-environment resources due to the lack of vertical components (PaleoWest 2023). Therefore, the Project would not cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historic resource. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- b) Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. No archaeological resources were identified in the Project area as a result of the record search and intensive pedestrian survey (PaleoWest 2023). However, portions of the alignment that could not be accessed for the pedestrian survey contained dense vegetation that limited visual inspection of the ground surface from the edge of the County ROW. Areas that were not surveyed have the potential to contain cultural resources. Furthermore, a geoarchaeological analysis indicates that portions of the Project area characterized by floodplain deposits have a moderate sensitivity for containing buried archaeological remains. Therefore, ground-disturbing construction activities have the potential to impact undiscovered archaeological resources.

Measures ARC-1 through ARC-4 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts to archaeological resources in the event of a discovery during construction. Impacts are considered less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

c) Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. There are no known human burial grounds within or near the Project area and there is a low potential for human remains to be encountered during construction. Measure ARC-3 includes steps for compliance with applicable State laws in the unlikely event that human remains are discovered during ground-disturbing construction activities. Impacts are considered less than significant with mitigation incorporated. The following mitigation measures would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to cultural resources.

**ARC-1** County appointed archaeological and tribal monitors will be present during any ground disturbing activities along Markham Street until excavation of previously undisturbed native soil has been completed. Participating tribes will rotate their schedule so that one tribal monitor at a time is on the Project site during any excavation.

Prior to commencement of construction, there will be a meeting in which the construction staff, tribal monitor(s), archaeological monitor/consultant, and Resident Engineer (RE) will conduct preconstruction archaeological resource sensitivity and awareness training. This meeting will also discuss the monitoring and safety requirements. It is critical that all parties understand the methods and goals as well as the protocols for the inadvertent discovery of archaeological resources, tribal resources, and/or human remains during construction. Record of this meeting shall be placed in the RE file.

The archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor, shall have the authority to temporarily divert, redirect or halt the ground disturbance activities to allow for identification, evaluation, and potential recovery of cultural resources. Should buried cultural deposits be encountered, the archaeological monitor shall contact the County Archaeologist immediately, and in coordination with the THPOs of consulting tribes, will evaluate the resource and formulate a plan to move forward.

- **ARC-2** If archaeological and/or tribal resources are encountered during construction, the archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor shall:
  - Halt all work within a 60-foot radius and shall immediately inform the RE.
  - Following notification, the archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor, will make a preliminary assessment of the discovery to determine whether the find is an isolated artifact or recent deposit. If the find is determined to be isolated or recent, construction will be allowed to resume.
  - Should the monitor(s) determine the discovery is potentially significant, the monitor(s) shall contact the County Archaeologist immediately to evaluate the discovery and if necessary, formulate appropriate mitigation measures.
  - If the discovery contains tribal resources, all consulting tribes shall be contacted and informed of the discovery. The tribal resource discovery, including human remains, shall not be disturbed (i.e., photographed, videoed, or moved) until the County Archaeologist and consulting tribes have agreed upon appropriate treatment measures.

If archaeological and/or tribal resources are encountered anywhere during Project construction when no monitor(s) are present, work in the area must halt within a 60-foot radius until the monitor(s) can evaluate the nature and significance of the find and formulate appropriate evaluation and/or mitigation measures.

Once the agreed upon treatment measures have been implemented, construction activity can resume in that area.

- **ARC-3** In the event that human remains are discovered during construction at any time, the following provisions shall apply:
  - State Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance and all construction activity shall immediately be halted within 60 feet of the discovery until the County Coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. The County Coroner must be notified of the find immediately. If the remains are determined to be Native American and not under the coroner's jurisdiction, within 24 hours the coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), which will determine and notify a Most Likely Descendant (MLD). During this time all remains, associated soils, and artifacts will remain in situ, and shall be protected from public viewing. The County will take appropriate measures to protect the discovery site from disturbance during any negotiations. This may include restricting access to the discovery site and the need to hire 24-hour security. With the permission of the landowner or his/her authorized representative, the MLD may inspect the site of the discovery. The MLD shall complete the inspection within 48 hours of notification by the NAHC. The MLD may recommend scientific removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and items associated with Native American burials. Work will be suspended within a 60-foot radius of the human remains until the MLD's recommendations are implemented.

- A meeting shall be convened between the County Archaeologist, archaeological monitor, and the MLD to discuss the significance of the find. At the meeting with the aforementioned parties, a decision is to be made as to the appropriate treatment (documentation, recovery, avoidance, etc.) for the discovery. Resource evaluations shall be limited to non-destructive analysis.
- Further ground disturbance shall not resume within the area of the discovery until the appropriate treatment has been accomplished.
- The County Archaeologist will work with the MLD in regard to the treatment of the remains and all associated funerary objects and will ensure that any identified human remains will be secured while they are left in place and while treatment decisions are in progress. Information concerning the discovery shall not be disclosed pursuant to the specific exemption set forth in California Government Code Section 6254.5(e).
- The County shall relinquish ownership of all tribal resources, including sacred items, burial goods, and all Native American archaeological artifacts and non-human remains found within County ROW through one or more of the following methods and provide evidence of same:
- a. A pre-determined reburial area will be determined prior to construction. This shall include measures and provisions to protect the future pre-determined reburial area within the Project property from any future impacts. The measures for reburial shall be culturally appropriate as determined through consultation with the consulting tribes and include, at least, the following:
  - i. Measures to protect the reburial area from any future impacts in perpetuity.
  - ii. Reburial shall not occur until all required cataloguing (including a complete photographic record) and analysis have been completed on the cultural resources, with the exception that sacred and ceremonial items, burial goods, and Native American human remains are excluded. No cataloguing, analysis, or other studies may occur on human remains, grave goods, and sacred and ceremonial items. Any reburial processes shall be culturally appropriate and approved by the consulting tribes.
  - iii. Listing of contents and location of the reburial shall be confidential and not subject to a Public Records Request.
  - iv. The County shall establish a curation agreement with an appropriate qualified repository within Riverside County that meets federal standards per 36 CFR Part 79 and therefore would be professionally curated and made available to other archaeologists/researchers for further study. The collections and associated records shall be transferred, including title, to an appropriate curation facility within Riverside County, to be accompanied by payment of the fees necessary for permanent curation.
  - b. Should reburial of collected cultural items be preferred, it shall not occur until after the Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report/Data Recovery Report has been submitted to the County. Should curation be preferred, the County is responsible for all costs and the repository and curation method shall be described in the Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report/Data Recovery Report.
- c. Tribal resources, including sacred items, burial goods, and all Native American archaeological artifacts and non-human remains found within County ROW that are to be reburied are to be kept safe on site on a locked and secure location within the RE's office (if feasible) until disposition of such tribal resources takes place for reburial.
- Artifacts found outside the County ROW are not subject to these requirements and are to be relinquished to the consulting tribes by the property owner for suitable curation or ownership. It is the responsibility of the consulting tribes to come to agreement with the property owner.

In the event that the County Archaeologist and MLD are in disagreement regarding the disposition of the remains, State law will apply, and the median and decision process will occur with the NAHC (see Public Resources Code Section 5097.98(e) and 5097.94(k)).

**ARC-4** Should additional actions be proposed outside the currently defined Project area that have the potential for additional subsurface disturbance, further cultural resource management may be required.

# 3.6 Energy

Environmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would the project:				
a) Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?				
<ul> <li>b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?</li> </ul>				

## Source(s):

This section is based on the County of Riverside Climate Action Plan (CAP) (County of Riverside 2019b) and the Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) Subregional CAP (WRCOG 2014)

## **Regulatory Setting:**

CEQA Guidelines section 15126.2(b), Energy Conservation, require an analysis of a project's energy use to determine if the project may result in significant environmental effects due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary use of energy, or wasteful use of energy resources.

The County CAP identifies how the County will comply with California and local energy and greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction policies. The plan lists energy related measures that the County can incorporate into existing residential and non-residential buildings or new development projects to achieve a State-aligned GHG emissions reduction target. The CAP includes R2-T2 Transportation Measures to reduce transportation-related emissions, including provisions for alternative transportation options to enhance non-motorized transportation options and energy efficient enhancements for existing and new transportation infrastructure.

## Environmental Setting:

There are generally two types of energy consumption – direct and indirect. Direct energy is the energy consumed by vehicles using the Project. Indirect energy is the one-time energy consumption for construction and the energy needed to maintain the facility.

## Impact Analysis:

- a) Less Than Significant Impact. Project construction activities include site preparation, clearing, cut-and-fill activities, grading, removing or improving existing roadways, and paving roadway surfaces. Existing overhead electrical lines and associated poles in the Project area would also be reconstructed to the proposed grade. Lighting and electronic equipment during construction would necessitate electrical power. Water consumption during construction would indirectly consume electricity. On- and off-road construction equipment would include gasoline and diesel consumption. However, electrical and fuel consumption during the construction phase would be temporary in nature and would not cause wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, and would not significantly affect local and regional energy supplies. Once implemented, the Project would facilitate a new roadway connection with a new bike lane to provide for non-motorized connectivity through the Project area that currently does not exist. No new building structures are proposed that would cause wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, and regional energy supplies. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- b) No Impact. The Project is a roadway improvement project with no building structures that would be subject to the goals and policies of renewable energy or energy efficiency of the County of Riverside's General Plan (County of Riverside 2019b). No impact would occur.

## Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

# 3.7 Geology and Soils

Enviro	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would	the project:				
a)	Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury or death involving:				
	i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42?				
	ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?			$\boxtimes$	
	iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?				
	iv. Landslides?			$\boxtimes$	
b)	Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?				
c)	Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project and potentially result in on- or off- site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?				
d)	Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risk to life or property?				
e)	Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater?				
f)	Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?				

#### Sources:

This section is based on the County General Plan, Chapter 6 Safety Element (County of Riverside 2021d), Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan (County of Riverside 2021c), Drainage Report (HDR 2024c), Paleontological Resource Technical Report (PaleoWest 2022), Biological Resources Technical Report (January 2024), and the California Department of Conservation's Earthquake Hazards Zone Application (California Department of Conservation 2022).

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

## Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act

The Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act of 1972 regulates the development and construction of buildings intended for human occupancy to avoid the hazard of surface fault rupture along known active faults. It defines criteria for identifying active faults, giving legal weight to terms such as active, and establishes a process for reviewing building proposals in and adjacent to earthquake fault zones.

#### Seismic Hazards Mapping Act of 1990

The Seismic Hazards Mapping Act of 1990 is intended to minimize the loss of life and property by identifying and mitigating seismic hazards, such as those associated with strong ground shaking, liquefaction, landslides, other ground failures, or other hazards caused by earthquakes. In addition, it requires cities and counties to regulate development within mapped seismic hazard zones.

#### Environmental Setting:

The Project area is not within an Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone. The closest mapped faults are the Elsinore and San Jacinto Faults. Soils within the Project area consist of sandy loam (see Figure 3.7-1).

#### Impact Analysis:

- a) Less than Significant Impact. According to the County General Plan, Chapter 6 Safety Element and the Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan, the project is not within an Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone or area with seismic hazards, including areas prone to liquefaction or landslides. The California Department of Conservation's Earthquake Hazards Zone Application indicates that the Project area is not located in a landslide zone (California Department of Conservation 2022). There are, more remote faults, such as the Elsinore and San Jacinto Faults that pose a potential for seismic ground shaking. However, no new buildings or structures would be constructed as part of the project. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- b) Less than Significant Impact. Site clearing and grubbing, earthmoving activities, and excavation during construction, would result in soil disturbance, rendering surface soil susceptible to erosion. Similarly, compaction of soils by heavy construction machinery may reduce the infiltration capacity of soils exposed during construction and increase runoff and erosion potential. Measure DBESP-4 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on water quality. During construction, the contractor would be required to comply with all applicable provisions and requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Construction General Permit including preparation and implementation of a Project-specific SWPPP. The SWPPP requires the contractor to implement best management practices (BMPs) and erosion control measures onsite during construction activities. Throughout operation, the proposed drainage infrastructure improvements are designed to maintain existing drainage patterns and reduce potential for impacts from on-site stormwater leaving the site. Drainage patterns would be maintained post-construction by implementation of slope stabilization measures and recontouring of existing embankments. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- c) **No Impact**. The Project is in an area that consists of sandy loam which does not tend to expand and shrink when saturated. The potential for soils to become unstable throughout operation is low. No Impact would occur.
- d) **No Impact**. Soils within the Project area consist of sandy loam. Sandy soils are generally considered to be non-expansive or have very low expansion potential. Therefore, the Project would not create a substantial direct or indirect risk to life or property. No impact would occur.
- e) **No Impact.** The Project would not require the use of septic tanks or other wastewater disposal systems. No impact would occur.
- f) No Impact. Based on geologic mapping of the Project area, there is one igneous bedrock unit mapped within the Project area consisting of quartz diorite. Quartz diorite is an intrusive (plutonic) igneous rock formed by cooling magma in the Earth's subsurface. The extremely high temperatures present during subsurface magma cooling prevent the preservation of fossils. Therefore, plutonic igneous rocks have no paleontological sensitivity (PaleoWest 2022).

In addition, the County's paleontological sensitivity map indicates that the entirety of the Project area has a low sensitivity, which is based on information from previous field surveys and documentation that

demonstrates low potential for containing paleontological resources subject to adverse impacts (PaleoWest 2022). Further, based on the results of the records search conducted at the Western Science Center on January 20, 2022, that there were no previously recorded fossil localities in their records directly within the Project area or within one mile of the Project area. As such, the entirety of the Project area is considered not sensitive for paleontological resources (PaleoWest 2022). Based on the findings of the *Paleontological Resource Technical Report* (PaleoWest 2022), the Project would not directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic features. No impact would occur.

## Avoidance Measure:

The following avoidance measure would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to geology and soils.

**DBESP-4** Prior to construction a SWPPP and soil erosion and sedimentation plan will be developed to minimize erosion and identify specific pollution prevention measures that will eliminate or control potential point and non-point pollution sources on site during construction. The SWPPP will identify specific BMPs to be implemented during construction so as not to cause or contribute to an exceedance of any water quality standard.



Figure 3.7-1. United States Department of Agriculture Soils Map

Feet

1,000

0

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

# 3.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Enviro	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would	the project:				
a)	Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?				
b)	Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?				

## Source(s):

This section is based on the Air Quality Report (AQR) (ERP 2023) and the Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) Technical Memorandum (HDR 2022a), and the Supplemental TIA Memorandum (HDR 2022b) that were prepared for the project.

## **Regulatory Setting:**

California has been innovative and proactive in addressing GHG emissions and climate change by passing multiple Senate, AB, and Executive Orders (EOs) including, but not limited to, the following:

## AB 32 - California Global Warming Solutions Act

California has enacted aggressive GHG reduction targets, starting with AB 32, the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006. AB 32 is California's signature climate change legislation. It set the goal of reducing statewide GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020 and required the California Air Resources Board (CARB) to develop a scoping plan that describes the approach California will take to achieve that goal and update it every 5 years. In 2015, Governor Jerry Brown enhanced the overall adaptation planning effort with Executive Order B-30-15, establishing an interim GHG reduction goal of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 and required state agencies to factor climate change into all planning and investment decisions.

Senate Bill (SB) 375- Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act Gases

SB 375 furthered state climate action goals by mandating coordinated transportation and land use planning through the preparation of Sustainability Communities Strategies (SCS). SB 375 requires the CARB to develop regional GHG emissions reduction targets for passenger vehicles. The CARB establishes 2020 and 2035 targets for each region covered by one of the State's 18 metropolitan planning organizations.

## Environmental Setting:

Climate change refers to long-term changes in temperature, precipitation, wind patterns, and other elements of the earth's climate system. An ever-increasing body of scientific research attributes these climatological changes to GHG emissions, particularly those generated from the production and use of fossil fuels.

While climate change has been a concern for several decades, the establishment of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change by the United Nations and World Meteorological Organization in 1988 increased efforts to reduce GHG emissions and advance climate change research and policy. These efforts target emissions of GHGs generated by human activity, including carbon dioxide ( $CO_2$ ), methane ( $CH_4$ ), nitrous oxide ( $N_2O$ ), tetrafluoromethane, hexafluoroethane, sulfur hexafluoride (SF6), and various hydrofluorocarbons.  $CO_2$ , the most abundant GHG, is a natural component of Earth's atmosphere. However, fossil-fuel combustion has contributed to an additional source of human-generated  $CO_2$ .

The primary GHGs that would be emitted by Project-related construction and operations include CO<sub>2</sub>, CH<sub>4</sub>, and N<sub>2</sub>O. Methods have been set forth to describe emissions of GHGs in terms of a single gas to simplify reporting and analysis. The most commonly accepted method for comparing GHG emissions is the global warming potential (GWP) methodology defined in the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) reference documents. IPCC defines the GWP of various GHG emissions on a normalized scale that recasts all GHG emissions in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO<sub>2</sub>e), which compares the gas in question to that of the same mass of CO<sub>2</sub>. By definition, CO<sub>2</sub> has a GWP of 1.

CARB prepares an annual GHG inventory to track the state's progress in reducing GHG emissions. In 2019, California emitted a total of 418.2 million metric tons of CO<sub>2</sub>e (CARB 2022). According to CARB, the largest contributors were the transportation and industrial sectors, contributing 41 percent and 24 percent of the total annual emissions, respectively.

#### Impact Analysis

a) Less Than Significant Impact. GHG emissions for transportation projects can be divided into those produced during construction and those during operation. According to the AQR, short-term construction emissions would result from material processing, on-site construction equipment, and traffic delays due to construction (ERP 2023). These emissions would be produced at different levels throughout the construction phase. However, their frequency and occurrence could be reduced by implementing better traffic management during construction and using pavement with a longer life. Tables 3.8-1 shows construction-period GHG emissions for the Project, which resulted in approximately 314 metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalents (MTCO2e) over the 6-month construction period.

Table 3.8-1. Summary of Construction Greenhouse Gas Emissions (metric tons per year)

Year	CO <sub>2</sub>	CH₄	N <sub>2</sub> O	CO <sub>2</sub> e
Year 1	308	<0.1	<0.1	314
Total	308	<0.1	<0.1	314

Source: ERP 2023

Notes:

CH4 = methane; CO2 = carbon dioxide; CO2e = CO2 equivalent; N2O = nitrous oxide

During operation, GHG emissions would result from mobile sources. As discussed in Section 3.3, Air Quality, operational emissions were evaluated in the AQR for the existing year (2021), opening year (2026), and horizon year (2046). CEQA typically compares the Project to existing conditions, but because vehicle emissions are trending downward from improvements in technology and stricter regulatory standards, both the No Build and existing conditions are presented for comparison with the Build condition (Project). As identified in Table 3.8-2, implementation of the Project would result in similar GHG emissions compared with the No-Build Alternative for the Opening Year (2026) and Horizon Year (2046). This is because the Project would result in a slight reduction in VMT and, as such, would reduce annual GHG emissions relative to the No-Build Alternative.

Table 3.8-2.	Summary	of Operational	Greenhouse	Gas	Emissions	(metric	tons
per year)							

Scenario/Analysis Year	CO <sub>2</sub> e	Annual Vehicle Miles Traveled
Existing Year (2021)	18,620	48,620,419
Opening Year (2026)		
No-Build Alternative	18,142	53,327,018
Build Alternative	18,140	53,322,023
Horizon Year (2046)		
No-Build Alternative	22,170	76,214,018
Build Alternative	22,170	76,212,319

Source: Modeling output provided in Appendix B of the AQR. (ERP 2023) Notes:

Emissions modeled using EMFAC2017.

CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent

GHG emissions for the Opening Year (2026) would decrease under the Project compared to the Existing Year (2021), resulting in a net GHG reduction of 480 MTCO<sub>2</sub>e. As demonstrated in the AQR, the highest levels of CO<sub>2</sub> from mobile sources such as automobiles occur at stop-and-go speeds (0–25 mph) and speeds of more than 55 mph; the most severe emissions occur from 0–25 mph. As the Project would relieve congestion by enhancing operations and improving travel times in high-congestion travel corridors, GHG emissions, particularly CO<sub>2</sub>, would be reduced. In summary, this 480 MTCO<sub>2</sub>e reduction during operations plus the 314 MTCO<sub>2</sub>e generated during construction, spread across a 30-year operational lifetime, would result in a net annual benefit to GHG emissions by 470 MTCO<sub>2</sub>e. GHG emissions would increase for the Build Alternative relative to Existing Year (2021) conditions for Horizon Year (2046). The increase in GHG

emissions for the Horizon Year (2046) is driven by the growth in VMT from 2021 to 2046 and would occur regardless of the project. Impacts are considered less than significant.

- b) No Impact. The County of Riverside General Plan includes an Air Quality Element and Climate Action Plan (CAP) with goals and policies to reduce GHG emissions. The 2019 County of Riverside CAP includes a calculation of the 2030 and 2050 GHG emissions for Riverside County in accordance with the anticipated growth rates in the Riverside County General Plan. The goal of the 2019 County of Riverside CAP is to promote healthier communities, reduce emissions, improve air quality, and protect natural systems. The inventory described within the 2019 County of Riverside CAP is consistent with the emission reduction goals initially set forth in the AB 32 Scoping Plan and updated to support the GHG reduction targets from California's 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan, which furthers the GHG reduction targets to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 and 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. In addition to policies found in the 2019 County of Riverside CAP, the Air Quality Element of the Riverside County General Plan includes GHG reduction policies that align with goals and policies found in the Air Quality Element of the Riverside County of Riverside CAP. The Project would not conflict with the following policies found in the Air Quality Element of the Riverside County of Riverside County General Plan:
  - AQ-4.7: To the greatest extent possible, require every project to mitigate any of its anticipated emissions which exceed allowable emissions as established by the SCAQMD, MDAQMD, SCAB, U.S. EPA, and CARB.
  - AQ-20.3: Reduce VMT and GHG emissions by improving circulation network efficiency.

The Project area also falls within the jurisdiction of the Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) Subregional CAP Update, which includes WRCOG member cities, Eastern and Western Municipal Water Districts, Morongo Band of Mission Indians, and unincorporated areas of Riverside County. The WRCOG CAP Update includes a comprehensive update to GHG inventories and GHG emissions reduction strategies for all sectors; establishes GHG targets for the year 2050; and will involve each of WRCOG's member jurisdictions, including those with locally developed CAPs to form a comprehensive subregional CAP incorporating all local CAP strategies. While the County of Riverside did not participate in the most recent 2021 subregional CAP by WRCOG, both the County of Riverside CAP and WRCOG Subregional CAP Update align with state GHG emissions reduction targets. As described in question (a), the Project would have a net benefit to GHG emissions, considering both construction and operational emissions, when comparing the Opening Year (2026) to the Existing Year (2021). Therefore, the Project would not conflict with the 2019 County of Riverside CAP, WRCOG's Subregional CAP Update, or any State or regional plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases. No impact would occur.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

# 3.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Enviro	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would	the project:				
a)	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?				
b)	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous materials into the environment?				
c)	Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?				
d)	Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?				
e)	For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?				
f)	Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?				
g)	Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires?				

## Source(s):

This section is based on the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (Phase I ESA) (HDR 2023a) that was prepared for the project. Additional sources include California Fire Hazard Severity Zone Viewer (California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 2022), and Riverside County General Plan, Safety Element (Riverside County 2021d).



Hazardous materials, including hazardous substances and wastes, are regulated by many state and federal laws. Statutes govern the generation, treatment, storage and disposal of hazardous materials, substances, and waste, and the investigation and mitigation of waste releases, air and water guality, human health, and land use.

#### California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC)

The DTSC is part of the California Environmental Protection Agency and is responsible for management of the federal hazardous waste program within the State through enforcement of hazardous waste laws and regulations. The DTSC takes enforcement action against violators; oversees cleanup of hazardous wastes on contaminated properties; makes decisions on permit applications from companies that want to store, treat, or dispose of hazardous waste; and protects consumers against toxic ingredients in everyday products.

California law also addresses specific handling, storage, transportation, disposal, treatment, reduction, cleanup and emergency planning of hazardous waste. The Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act also restricts disposal of wastes and requires clean-up of wastes that are below hazardous waste concentrations but could affect ground and surface water quality. California regulations that address waste management and contamination prevention and clean up include Title 22 Division 4.5 Environmental Health Standards for the Management of Hazardous Waste, Title 23 Waters, and Title 27 Environmental Protection.

#### County of Riverside Safety Element, Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, and Emergency Operations Plan

The County General Plan, Safety Element (Riverside County 2021d) states that wildfire hazard is the highestpriority hazard in the County and is the hazard with the greatest potential for catastrophic loss. A significant portion of the County is undeveloped and consists of rugged topography with highly flammable vegetation. In particular, the hillside terrain of unincorporated Riverside County has a substantial fire risk.

The County has developed a Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (County of Riverside 2018) which identifies the County's hazards, reviews and assesses past disaster occurrences, estimates the probability of future occurrences and sets goals to mitigate potential risks to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people and property from natural and man-made hazards.

The County's Emergency Operations Plan (County of Riverside 2019a) serves as a reference tool and foundation for coordinating emergencies response and recovery strategies for the County and its operation area, which consists of a combination of the County, all unincorporated areas, all cities, and all political subdivisions within the County's geographic boundaries.

#### **Environmental Setting:**

Based on information from the California Fire Hazard Severity Zone (FHSZ) Viewer, the Project area is located within a "moderate" FHSZ within a State Responsibility Area (SRA) and is also adjacent to other "high" and "very high" SRA FHSZ (California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 2022).

The Phase I ESA identifies recognized environmental conditions (REC) that may adversely affect the Project for its intended use. The Phase I ESA Study Area is defined as the Project area and a 300-foot buffer from the Project area. Sites examined during the reconnaissance, as identified by the EDR database search, are identified in Table 3.9-1 and shown on Figure 3.9-1. Additional sites that may have an indication of a spill or release incident that were observed during the field reconnaissance are identified in Table 3.9-2 and also shown on Figure 3.9-1. Three RECs were identified including polychlorinated biphenyls associated with transformers mounted on utility poles, treated wood waste, and pesticides in soils on historical and existing agricultural land use areas.

Map ID (EDR Site No.)	Site Name/ Address	Distance/ Direction from Project Area	Site Condition
1 (8)	Oleander Domestic/Irrigation Pump Station 18021 Markham Street Riverside, CA	Within Project Area	This site is a pump station. Hazardous placards and aboveground storage tanks were located onsite. The hazardous placards indicate low flammability materials are onsite.
3 (7)	18345 Markham Street Perris, CA	Within Project Area	This site is a residential property. No outward signs of hazardous substances were seen on the property from the public right-of-way.
4 (10)	New Evolution Construction, Inc. 18780 Markham Street, Riverside, CA	Within Project Area	This site is a residential property. No outward signs of hazardous substances were seen on the property from the public right-of-way.
5 (9)	James Amer18765 Markham Street Riverside, CA	Within Project Area	This site is a residential property. No outward signs of hazardous substances were seen on the property from the public right-of-way.
7 (11)	Marsela 17959 Wood Road Riverside, CA	Within 300 feet/north	Residential property. Two aboveground storage tanks were observed. A utility pole- mounted transformer was seen to the north from the property.
8 (A1, A3)	Markham Sewer Lift Station 18913 Markham Street, Perris, CA	Within Project Area	This site is a sewer lift station. Aboveground storage tanks and oxidizer hazardous placards were located onsite.
9 (A2, A4, A5, A6, 12)	Citrus Hill High School 18150 Wood Road Riverside, CA	Within 300 feet/southeast	This site is a school facility. No outward signs of hazardous substances were seen on the property from the public right-of-way.

Notes:

1 Map ID indicates the site number illustrated on Figure 3.9-1.

## Table 3.9-2. Additional Sites Observed during Field Reconnaissance

Map ID <sup>1</sup>	Site Name/Address	Distance/ Direction from Project Area	Site Condition
1A	18121 Markham Street, Perris, CA	Within Project Area	Active agricultural row crops were seen onsite.
2A	18221 Markham Street, Perris, CA	Within Project Area	Agricultural use (orchard) was observed. This is a residential property that was gated and fenced.
3A	Fremontia Horticultural 18900 Markham Street, Riverside, CA	Within Project Area	This site is a nursey. A utility pole-mounted transformer was seen fronting the property.

Notes:

1 Map ID indicates the site number illustrated on Figure 3.9-1.



This page is intentionally blank.

Figure 3.9-1. Hazardous Waste/Materials Site



Project Area
 EDR Identified Site
 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Study Area
 Additional Hazardous Waste Sites
 Parcels

400

0 Feet

This page is intentionally blank.

#### Impact Analysis:

- a) Less Than Significant Impact. Project construction would involve the incidental transport and use of small quantities of common hazardous materials to operate construction equipment, such as oils, lubricants, and fuels, as well as construction materials, such as asphalt and concrete. Hazardous materials would be handled in limited quantities and stored at designated staging areas. Roadway maintenance may require infrequent use of limited amounts of hazardous materials, none of which would be stored at or disposed of in the Project area. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- b) Less Than Significant Impact. Three RECs occur within 300 feet of the Project area, including transformers mounted on utility poles with potential Polychlorinated Biphenyls in the surrounding soils, wood waste that may have been treated with creosote and pentachlorophenol, and pesticides in soil on historical and existing agricultural land use areas. The presence of a REC alone does not necessarily equate to a significant hazard to the public, but disturbance of these RECs during construction could result in a hazardous material release. Measures HAZ-1 through HAZ-3 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts related to the release of hazardous materials during construction. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- c) Less Than Significant Impact. Citrus Hill High School is adjacent to the Project area, at the intersection of Markham Street and Wood Road. The Project would result in emissions from construction equipment and vehicles and would require the handling of construction-related hazardous materials and waste such as oil and lubricants within one-quarter mile of Citrus Hill High School. However, construction-related emissions and handling of construction-related hazardous materials and waste would be temporary and cease upon completion of project construction. All handling of hazardous materials and waste would be conducted in accordance with federal, State, and local regulations (see Section 3.3, Air Quality). Impacts are considered less than significant.
- d) **No Impact.** The Project is not located on a site included in the Cortese List (Government Code Section 65962.5). No impact would occur.
- e) **No Impact.** The project is not located within an airport land use plan. The closest airport is March Air Reserve Base, located approximately 6 miles northeast of the Project area. No impact would occur.
- f) Less Than Significant Impact. Project-related construction activities may temporarily impact emergency response times. Measure T-1 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts related to emergency response times. Once operational, the Project would not affect the Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan or County's Emergency Operations Plan. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- g) Less Than Significant Impact. The Project is in a moderate FHSZ, and construction activities could increase the risk of fire in the Project area due to the use of gasoline and diesel in construction equipment. However, construction equipment would largely be confined to the existing roadway and the construction contractor would comply with Cal/OSHA safety orders regarding fire prevention and protection. The risk of fire ignition that would expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires is low. Impacts are considered less than significant.

#### Avoidance Measures:

The following avoidance measures would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to hazards and hazardous materials.

- **HAZ-1 Polychlorinated Biphenyls:** Soil sampling for PCBs and heavy metals will be conducted in soil in unpaved locations surrounding utility pole-mounted transformers that would be disturbed as a result of the Project prior to ground disturbing activities for proper management.
- **HAZ-2 Treated Wood Waste:** Treated wood objects are handled as treated wood waste and are managed per Chapter 34, Title 22 California Code of Regulations Sections 67386.1 through 67386.12, "Alternative Management Standards for Treated Wood Waste." All treated wood waste should be properly disposed at a landfill permitted to accept treated wood waste. In addition, it could not be determined how long the wooden utility poles had been established and therefore, a potential for elevated levels of arsenic is possible in the soil due to the wood preservatives. Soil in unpaved locations surrounding wooden utility poles that would be disturbed as a result of the Project will be sampled for arsenic and semi volatiles for proper management.
- **HAZ-3 Pesticides:** Soil sampling for pesticides will be conducted in soil on historical and existing agricultural land use areas and nurseries that would be disturbed as a result of the Project prior to ground disturbing activities for proper management.

**T-1 Traffic Control Plan (TCP):** During final design, a TCP will be prepared for the Project. The goals of the TCP during Project construction will include minimizing traffic delay or time spent in queue; maintaining traffic flow throughout the Project area and the surrounding areas; and providing a safe environment for the work force and motoring public.

# 3.10 Hydrology and Water Quality

Enviro	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would	the project:				
a)	Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?				
b)	Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?				
c)	Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would:				
	<ul> <li>result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site;</li> </ul>			$\boxtimes$	
	<li>substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or offsite;</li>				
	<li>iii. create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or</li>				
	iv. impede or redirect flood flows?			$\boxtimes$	
d)	In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation?				
e)	Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan?				

## Source(s):

This section is based on the Water Quality Technical Memorandum (HDR 2023b) and Drainage Report (HDR 2024c).

## **Regulatory Setting:**

## Federal Clean Water Act

The Clean Water Act (CWA) is the primary Federal statute regulating the protection of the nation's water. The CWA aims to prevent, reduce, and eliminate pollution in the nation's water in order to "restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the Nation's waters", as described in CWA section 101(a). A stated

goal of the CWA is to eliminate discharge of pollutants into navigable waters, as that term is defined in CWA § 502(7) and corresponding case law. Regulatory responsibilities under the Clean Water Act include:

- preventing water pollution
- obtaining discharge permits
- meeting applicable water quality standards
- developing risk management plans, and
- maintaining records.

Section 404 of the CWA establishes a program for USACE to regulate the discharge of dredge and fill material into Waters of the U.S., including wetlands. Activities regulated under this program include fills for development, water resource projects (e.g., dams and levees), infrastructure development (e.g., highways and airports), and conversion of wetlands to uplands for farming and forestry.

In California, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and nine RWQCBs regulate discharge activities into waters pursuant to Section 401(a)(1) of the CWA. Section 401 of the CWA specifies that certification from the state is required for any applicant requesting a federal license or permit to conduct any activity including, but not limited to, the construction or operation of facilities that may result in any discharge into Waters of the U.S. unless certification under Section 401 of the CWA is granted or waived by the U.S. EPA, state, or tribe where the discharge would originate. The Project is within the boundaries of the Santa Ana RWQCB (Region 8), which would have the authority to grant, grant with conditions, deny, or waive certification for the Project. Under Section 401, all activities regulated at the federal level by USACE are also regulated at the state level.

#### Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act

The Porter-Cologne Act in 1969 provides the legal basis for water quality regulation within California and requires a "Report of Waste Discharge" for any discharge of waste (liquid, solid, or gaseous) to land or surface waters that may impair beneficial uses for surface and/or groundwater of the state, as outlined in each basin plan for water quality control prepared by each of the nine RWQCBs of the state. It predates the CWA and regulates discharges to Waters of the State (WOS). WOS are defined as any surface water or groundwater, including saline waters, within the boundaries of the state. Under the Porter Cologne Act, the RWQCB has the discretion to take jurisdiction over areas not federally protected under Section 401, provided they meet the definition of WOS, which would require issuance of waste discharge requirements. Mitigation requiring no net loss of wetland functions and values of WOS is typically required by RWQCB.

#### California Construction General Permit

The State Water Resources Control Board's Construction General Permit (CGP) regulates storm water discharges from construction sites that result in a Disturbed Soil Area of one acre or greater, and/or are smaller sites that are part of a larger common plan of development. By law, all storm water discharges associated with construction activity where clearing, grading, and excavation result in soil disturbance of at least one acre must comply with the provisions of the CGP. Operators of regulated construction sites are required to develop SWPPPs; to implement sediment, erosion, and pollution prevention control measures or BMPs; and to obtain coverage under the CGP.

#### Environmental Setting:

The Project is in the Santa Ana River hydrologic unit's Middle Santa Ana River hydrologic area and the Riverside-Arlington hydrologic sub-area (801.26). The Project study area consists of three tributary areas within the Santa Ana River Basin watershed, totaling 2,304 acres, the vast majority of which is from offsite drainage. Runoff for these areas collects along Markham Street and drains westerly towards Mockingbird Canyon. The largest of these tributary areas, Drainage Area 2, extends as far north as Krameria Avenue and to Barton Road in the easterly direction. The easterly boundary for Drainage Area 2 and southerly boundary for Drainage Area 3 generally follows the northerly boundary of the Lake Mathews Area Drainage Plan; however, the Project tributary area does not fall within a defined area drainage plan. Drainage Area 1 is located on the westerly end of the Project and collects the tributary runoff between Roosevelt Street and the ridgeline defining Drainage Area 2.

There is currently minimal drainage infrastructure within the Project area, consisting of 5 existing road drainage locations routing flow from the street to the side of the road via curb routing and corrugated metal pipe.

The Western Municipal Water District (WMWD) supplies water to the Project area. The WMWD receives most of its water from the Sacramento-San Joaquin Bay-Delta (State Water Project) and the Colorado River Aqueduct. The district has groundwater supply in the Murrieta Division which is combined with the imported water sources to provide water for the region's community. Groundwater from the Bunker Hill Basin is also transported into the Riverside Division (WMWD 2023). As previously mentioned, the Project is in the Riverside-Arlington sub-basin. This basin is replenished by several sources including the following: Santa Ana River (infiltration), Rialto-Colton fault (underflow), Chino sub-basin (intermittent underflow), irrigation (return flow), and precipitation (percolation)

(WMWD 2023). There are currently no beneficial uses assigned to the Mockingbird Canyon as this Project is not within a Santa Ana River groundwater management zone (California Water Boards 2019).

The Project is within Riverside County Groundwater Protection Areas 33S03S04W31 and 33S04S04W06 (California Department of Pesticide Regulation 2023a). These areas have runoff concerns with respect to pesticide usage from irrigation of agricultural areas adjacent to the Project area as it has the potential to cause fluctuation of local groundwater levels. These fluctuations can also lead to perched groundwater (California Department of Pesticide Regulation 2023b).

According to the Federal Emergency Management Act (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (Map Number 06065C1405G, effective date August 28<sup>th</sup>, 2008), the Project area is classified as Zone X, which is outside of the 500- and 100-year floodplain zone (FEMA 2023).

#### Impact Analysis:

- a) No Impact. Measure DBESP-4 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on water quality. Drainage patterns would be maintained post-construction by implementation of slope stabilization measures and recontouring of existing embankments. The proposed roadway improvements would be designed to meet the post-construction requirements of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) Permit (Order No. R8 2010 033 and NPDES No. CAS618033) and all applicable waste discharge requirements. The Project would not violate any water quality standards, waste discharge requirements, or substantially degrade surface or groundwater quality. No impact would occur.
- b) No Impact. The Project would not decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge. The Project would not significantly increase the amount of impermeable surface areas in a way that would substantially inhibit infiltration and recharge of local aquifers. No impact would occur.
- ci) Less than Significant Impact. During construction, the Project would require grading and excavation that may concentrate runoff and/or redirect existing drainage patterns, potentially resulting in substantial erosion on adjacent properties. If not properly managed, any increases in sediment load from the Project area could lead to alterations in drainage patterns due to accumulations of sediment in downstream areas. Measure DBESP-4 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts related to erosion during construction. Throughout operation, the proposed drainage infrastructure improvements including the nine culverts, one regional channel, and twelve catch basins would be designed to maintain existing drainage patterns and reduce potential for erosion. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- cii, iii) **No Impact.** The Project would include the addition of 4.64 acres (202,200 square feet) of impervious surface (HDR 2023a) associated with proposed roadway improvements. As part of the Project, proposed drainage infrastructure improvements would be implemented including nine culverts, one regional channel to facilitate off site drainage, and twelve catch basins to collect and divert on site street flow drainage to the proposed off-site culverts and the regional channel. These improvements are designed to maintain existing drainage patterns and reduce the amount of stormwater leaving the site (HDR 2024c), so that the rate of surface water runoff would not increase or exceed the capacity of the drainage infrastructure. No impact would occur.
  - civ) Less than Significant Impact. The Project area is not in an existing flood zone, and therefore unlikely to experience flood conditions. The project would not impede or redirect flood flows. Impacts are considered less than significant.
  - d) No Impact. The Project is located approximately 55 miles east of the Pacific Ocean and therefore, has no tsunami risk. The nearest large body of water to the Project is Lake Mathews, approximately 5 miles away; therefore, the risk of inundation from a seiche<sup>2</sup> is unlikely. Markham Street is within an area designated Zone "X" (unshaded) on the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map, which is outside the 500-year and 100-year floodplain zone. No impact would occur.
  - e) No Impact. The Project is located within the Water Quality Control Plan for the Santa Ana River Basin (California Water Boards 2019). Measure DBESP-4 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on water quality during construction and the proposed roadway improvements have been designed to minimize the amount of impervious surface area in accordance with applicable requirements of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) Permit (Order No. R8 2010 033 and NPDES No. CAS618033 or subsequent permit). No impact would occur.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> A seiche is an oscillation in the water level of a lake or partially enclosed body of water, especially one caused by changes in atmospheric pressure or winds.

## Avoidance Measure:

The following avoidance measure would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to hydrology and water quality.

**DBESP-4** Prior to construction a SWPPP and soil erosion and sedimentation plan will be developed to minimize erosion and identify specific pollution prevention measures that will eliminate or control potential point and non-point pollution sources on site during construction. The SWPPP will identify specific best management practices to be implemented during construction so as not to cause or contribute to an exceedance of any water quality standard.

# 3.11 Land Use and Planning

Enviro	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would the project:					
a)	Physically divide an established community?				
b)	Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?				

## Source(s):

This section is based on the Riverside County General Plan, Riverside County General Plan Healthy Communities Element (County of Riverside 2021f), Riverside County General Plan Land Use Element (County of Riverside 2021a), the Riverside County General Plan Circulation Element (County of Riverside 2020), and the Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan (County of Riverside 2021c).

## **Regulatory Setting:**

The California Government Code (sections 65000-66037) delegates most of the State's local land use and development decisions to cities and counties. Additionally, it establishes specific requirements pertaining to the regulation of land uses by local governments, including general plan requirements, specific plans, subdivisions, and zoning. Pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines, a project's impact related to land use planning is evaluated in terms of compatibility with existing land uses and consistency with local plans and other local land use controls.

## Environmental Setting:

The County of Riverside General Plan Land Use Element identifies the Project area as Urban and Built-Up Land (County of Riverside 2021a). The portion of Markham Street in the Project area consists of a rural paved road and a portion of dirt road, designated as a secondary highway in the County General Plan.

## Impact Analysis:

- a) No Impact. The design of the 1.3-mile roadway section for Markham Street between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road accommodates an ultimate secondary highway configuration per the County General Plan Circulation Element with two lanes in each direction; however, the proposed roadway improvements as part of the Project would only include one lane in each direction along the southern half of the ultimate roadway section. The Project also includes Class II bike lanes and a sidewalk on the south side of Markham Street. Most of the Project improvements would occur in existing public ROW and would provide motorized and non-motorized connectivity in this portion of the County where an existing travel path is already present. Therefore, the Project would not physically divide an established community. No impact would occur.
- b) **No Impact.** The Project is consistent with the transportation improvements as planned for in the General Plan. Table 3.11-1 demonstrates the Project is consist with applicable policies of the County General Plan. No impact would occur.

Plan/Policy	Project Consistency			
General Plan – Healthy Communities Element				
Policy HC 2.2 – Promote increased physical activity,	Consistent. The Project includes a 5-foot-wide			
reduced driving and increased walking, cycling and	westbound and 6-foot-wide eastbound Class II			
public transit by:	bike lane along Markham Street. The Project			
<ul> <li>Requiring where appropriate the</li> </ul>	also includes a 6-foot-wide sidewalk along the			
development of compact, development	southern edge of the roadway within the Project			
patterns that are pedestrian and bicycle	area. These improvements would increase			
friendly.	opportunities for active transportation in the			

## Table 3.11-1. Project Consistency with the County of Riverside General Plan

<ul> <li>b. Increasing opportunities for active transportation (walking and biking) and transit use.</li> <li>c. Encouraging the development of neighborhood grocery stores that provide fresh produce.</li> </ul>	community. Further, the pedestrian and bicycle improvements would facilitate access to the bus stops located approximately 900 feet east of the Project area's eastern boundary. Therefore, the Project is consistent with these policies.				
Policy HC 3.3 – Where appropriate, require pedestrian-oriented design that encourages the use of bicycles and walking as alternatives to driving and increases levels of physical activity.					
Policy HC 5.5 – When building sidewalks, verify that they are sufficiently wide and clear of obstructions to facilitate pedestrian movement and access for the disabled.	Consistent. The proposed sidewalks would adhere to ADA design requirements. Therefore, the Project is consistent with this policy.				
General Plan – Land Use Element					
Policy LU 13.1 – Provide land use arrangements that reduce reliance on the automobile and improve opportunities for pedestrian, bicycle, and transit use in order to minimize congestion and air pollution.	Consistent. See consistency analysis for Policy HC 2.2 above.				
General Plan – Circulation Element					
Markham Street's Street Classification is identified as a secondary highway. Secondary highways are intended to serve through traffic along longer routes between major traffic generating areas or to serve property zoned for multiple residential, secondary industrial or commercial uses. Intersections with other streets and highways may be limited to 330- foot intervals. Secondary highways will have four lanes in most situations. These streets generally do not have turn lanes, and additional right-of-way may be required at intersections. These facilities can carry high volumes of traffic.	Consistent. The design of the 1.3-mile roadway section for Markham Street between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road accommodates an ultimate secondary highway configuration per the County General Plan Circulation Element, with two lanes in each direction; however, the proposed roadway improvements as part of the Project would only include one lane in each direction along the southern half of the ultimate roadway section. In the future, the County may elect to construct two additional lanes along the northern portion of the ultimate roadway section.				
Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan – Circulation Element					
LMWAP 8.1 – Design and develop the vehicular roadway system per Figure 7, in accordance with the Functional Classification section and standards specified in the Circulation Element.	Consistent. The proposed roadway improvements are consistent with Figure 7 of the Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan and Circulation Element, which identifies Markham Street to be a secondary highway				

## Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

## 3.12 Mineral Resources

Enviro	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact		
Would the project:							
a)	Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?						
b)	Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?						

## Source(s):

This section is based on the Riverside County General Plan Multipurpose Open Space Element (County of Riverside 2015).

## **Regulatory Setting:**

The California Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975 provides a comprehensive surface mining and reclamation policy to address the need for a continuing supply of mineral resources, and to prevent or minimize the negative impacts of surface mining to public health, property, and the environment. This legislation serves as the primary regulation for surface mining in California, and mandates that aggregate resources be identified, mapped, and classified by the State Geologist.

## Environmental Setting:

The Riverside County General Plan's Multipurpose Open Space Element designates areas as Mineral Resource Zones (MRZs). The State Mining and Geology Board uses the MRZs to classify lands that contain valuable mineral deposits. The Mineral Resources Areas Map found in the referenced mineral resources section of the General Plan identifies the Project area as MRZ-3. Areas zoned MRZ-3 indicate that due to insufficient data, the presence and extent of mineral resources are unknown.

## Impact Analysis:

a, b) No Impact. Although MRZ-3 zones have undetermined mineral resource significance, these areas are not identified as a local-important mineral resource and the potential for viable extraction of mineral resources within this zone is limited due to the City's urbanized character. The Project includes roadway improvements within a semi-rural area of the County and would not utilize or deplete any locally important or valuable mineral resources. No Impact would occur.

## Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

## 3.13 Noise

Enviror	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would the project result in:					
a)	Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?				
b)	Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?				
c)	For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?				

## Source(s):

This section is based on the Noise and Vibration Study Report (A/E Teach LLC 2023).

## Regulatory Setting:

The State of California requires each county and city to adopt a General Plan that includes a Noise Element, which is to be prepared per guidelines adopted by the Governor's Office of Planning and Research. The purpose of the Noise Element is to limit the exposure of the community to excessive noise levels. CEQA requires baseline versus build analysis to assess whether a project will have a noise impact.

## **Environmental Setting:**

Existing noise-sensitive land uses in the Project area include residential properties along Markham Street and Citrus Hill High School, located at the southeast corner of Markham Street and Wood Road intersection at 18150 Wood Road. Several analysis locations were chosen to measure existing noise levels at representative outdoor locations for noise-sensitive land uses (see Figure 3.13-1).

Short-term (15 minutes in duration) and 24-hour noise measurements were taken at a total of eight representative locations throughout the Project area. Traffic counts were conducted concurrently with the traffic noise measurements at one location (ST06) for use in calibrating the Traffic Noise Model (TNM) files developed for the noise analysis.

Existing noise levels are assessed based on a combination of noise levels measured in the field and modeled noise levels. Worst-hour traffic noise levels in the AM peak traffic hour (Leq[h]) were found to be 43 to 57 dBA at the modeled locations. Existing PM peak-hour noise levels were determined to be between 44 to 57 dBA, and existing CNEL values were found to be between 44 to 58 dBA at the selected noise modeling locations throughout the Project area.

Figure 3.13-1. Noise Measurement Locations (Sheet 1 of 4)



## LEGEND



Noise Modeling Location

24-Hour Noise Measurement Location



Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.





LEGEND



Short-Term Noise Measurement Location

 $\smile$ 

Noise Modeling Location

24-Hour Noise Measurement Location

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project



Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

Figure 3.13-1. Noise Measurement Locations (Sheet 3 of 4)



LEGEND



Noise Modeling Location

24-Hour Noise Measurement Location



Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

## Figure 3.13-1. Noise Measurement Locations (Sheet 4 of 4)



## LEGEND



Short-Term Noise Measurement Location Noise Modeling Location

24-Hour Noise Measurement Location


Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

#### Impact Analysis:

- a) Less Than Significant Impact. Maximum construction noise levels at the nearest homes located along Markham Street would approach 90 dBA from the loudest activities, which include grading and paving activities. Such levels would exceed the County's allowable daytime standard of 65 dBA maximum noise level for stationary equipment. Measures N-1, N-2, and N-3 would be implemented to reduce potential construction noise impacts. Throughout operations, traffic noise level calculations and exterior noise levels at the nearest noise-sensitive receptors are expected to be in compliance with the County's exterior noise standard of 65 dBA CNEL. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- b) Less Than Significant Impact. As the County does not have established vibration criteria, Caltrans vibration guidelines were used to assess potential vibration impacts due to construction of the Project. As seen in Table 3.13-1, the highest vibration levels are generated by vibratory rollers and large bulldozers. Vibratory rollers may operate as close as 40 feet from existing residential buildings near the intersection of Markham Street and Cedar Street. At this distance, vibration levels from vibratory rollers are estimated to reach 0.11 in/sec Peak Particle Velocity (PPV); which is below the building damage threshold of 0.30 in/sec PPV for older residential buildings. Large bulldozers would potentially operate at distances of 25 feet or closer to existing residential buildings. Vibration levels from large bulldozers at these distances would be 0.089 in/sec PPV or higher, and also below the damage threshold for older residential buildings.

Impacts are considered less than significant.

### Table 3.13-1. Vibration Source Amplitudes for Construction Equipment

Equipment Type	Reference PPV at 25 ft. (in/sec)
Vibratory roller	0.210
Large bulldozer	0.089
Loaded trucks	0.076
Jackhammer	0.035
Small bulldozer	0.003

Source: Caltrans 2013

Notes:

PPV = Peak particle velocity; in/sec = inches per second

c) **No Impact**. The Project is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or airport land use plan. The closest airport is March Air Reserve Base, located approximately 6 miles northeast of the Project area. No impact would occur.

#### Avoidance Measures:

The following avoidance measures would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to noise and vibration.

- N-1 Construction Schedule. Limit roadway construction activities to the exempted daytime hours in the Riverside County Code, Ordinance No. 847, which are 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM during the months of June through September and 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM during the months of October through May (except weekends and holidays).
- **N-2 Construction Equipment.** All construction equipment should be outfitted with manufacturerecommended mufflers and silencers.
- **N-3** Idling. Maintaining equipment in an idling mode should be minimized.

# 3.14 Population and Housing

Enviror	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
would	Ine project:			_	57
a)	population growth in an area, either directly (e.g., by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (e.g., through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?				X
b)	Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?				

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the Riverside County Land Use Element (County of Riverside 2021b) and the SCAG RTP/SCS (SCAG 2020).

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

CEQA requires the analysis of a project's potential to induce growth. The CEQA guidelines (Section 15126.2[e]) require that environmental documents "...discuss the ways in which the project could foster economic or population growth, or the construction of additional housing, either directly or indirectly, in the surrounding environment..."

#### Environmental Setting:

Population growth projections developed for the SCAG RTP/SCS indicate that the population of Riverside County is expected to increase from 2,493,000 in 2020 to 3,252,000 by 2045, which is a 30-percent increase (SCAG 2020).

#### Impact Analysis:

- a) **No Impact.** The Project includes roadway improvements to the portion of Markham Street between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road. No new housing development or businesses are proposed as part of the Project, nor would the Project provide new access or new utilities. The proposed improvements are consistent with the County General Plan and would not induce population growth. No impact would occur.
- b) **No Impact.** The proposed roadway improvements would not displace people or housing temporarily or permanently. No impact would occur.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

## 3.15 Public Services

Environmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
<ul> <li>a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:</li> </ul>				
i. Fire Protection?			$\boxtimes$	
ii. Police Protection?			$\boxtimes$	
iii. Schools?				$\boxtimes$
iv. Parks?				$\boxtimes$
v. Other public facilities?				$\boxtimes$

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the Riverside General Plan Circulation Element (County of Riverside 2020) and the Riverside County General Plan Safety Element (Riverside County 2021d).

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

The CEQA guidelines (Section 15126.2[e]) require that environmental documents "...discuss the ways in which the project could foster economic or population growth, or... tax existing community service facilities, requiring construction of new facilities that could cause significant environmental effects..."

#### Environmental Setting:

Fire protection and emergency services are provided by the Riverside County Fire Department and CAL FIRE. The Riverside County Fire Department and CAL FIRE participate in a Cooperative Fire Response Agreement, where fire agencies have agreed to automatically support each other on incidents using the closest available resource (Riverside County 2021d). The nearest fire station is the Orange Crest Fire Station approximately 3 miles north of the Project area. Police protection services in the Project area are provided by the Riverside County Sheriff's Department. The nearest Riverside County Sheriff's Department patrol station is approximately 8 miles southeast of the Project area in the City of Perris.

The nearest school is Citrus Hill High School located southeast of the intersection of Markham Street and Wood Road, adjacent to the Project area. The closest recreational facility is Bergamont Park which is approximately 2.5 miles north of the Project area.

#### Impact Analysis:

- ai) Less Than Significant Impact. The Project does not include the development of new occupiable buildings or other buildings that would increase demand on the Riverside County Fire Department, nor would it require a need for increased fire protection services or new fire protection infrastructure. Project-related construction activities may reduce fire response times in the vicinity of the Project area. Measure T-1 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on response times during construction. Once operational, the Project would not affect fire response times or other performance objectives for fire protection. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- aii) Less Than Significant Impact. The Project would not increase demand on the Riverside County Sheriff's Department. Project-related construction activities may reduce police response times in the vicinity of the

Project area. Measure T-1 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on response times during construction. Once operational, the Project would not affect police response times or other performance objectives for police protection. Impacts are considered less than significant.

- aiii) **No Impact.** No school facilities would be displaced during or after construction, nor would the project induce population growth that would necessitate the expansion of school services to serve new residents. No impact would occur.
- aiv) No Impact. The Project would not displace or otherwise affect any parks. No impact would occur.
- av) No Impact. No other public facilities are in the Project area. No impact would occur.

#### Avoidance Measure:

The following avoidance measure would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to transportation.

**T-1 Traffic Control Plan:** During final design, a TCP will be prepared for the Project. The goals of the TCP during Project construction will include minimizing traffic delay or time spent in queue; maintaining traffic flow throughout the Project area and the surrounding areas; and providing a safe environment for the work force and motoring public.

## 3.16 Recreation

Environmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would the project:				
<ul> <li>a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li>b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities, which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?</li> </ul>				

#### Source(s):

This section is based on aerial imagery.

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

There are no State regulations related to recreational resources that apply to the Project.

#### **Environmental Setting:**

There are no existing parks or recreational facilities within the Project area. The nearest park is Bergamont Park, approximately 2.5 miles north of the Project area.

#### Impact Analysis:

a and b) **No Impact.** The Project would not result in increased use, construction of, or expansion of any parks or recreational facilities nor would any recreational facilities be impacted from construction activities. The Project includes new bike lanes on both sides of Markham Street to facilitate active transportation through the Project area and measures would be implemented to reduce potential environmental impacts. No impact would occur.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

## 3.17 Transportation

Enviror	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would	the project:				
a)	Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?				
b)	Conflict with or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?				
c)	Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?				
d)	Result in inadequate emergency access?				

### Source(s):

This section is based on the Traffic Impact Assessment Technical Memorandum (HDR 2022a).

### **Regulatory Setting:**

#### <u>SB743</u>

Regulatory changes to the CEQA Guidelines that implement SB 743 were approved on December 28, 2018. The California Natural Resource Agency has also identified VMT as the most appropriate metric to evaluate a project's transportation impacts. Per Riverside County Transportation Analysis Guidelines, a project that results in an increase in VMT when comparing the future build alternative to the future no-build alternative (i.e., the VMT is higher under the future build scenario) will generally be considered significant impact, and mitigation will be required.

### Environmental Setting:

Existing traffic counts at the roadway segments and study intersections were collected on September 23, 2021, to confirm the peak hours of the day and identify operational characteristics of the study roadway segments. The Citrus Hill High School located at the intersection of Markham Street and Wood Road was in session on the day the traffic counts were conducted. Roadway segment average daily traffic (ADT) data is summarized in Table 3.17-1.

Roadway Segment	Location	Existing 2021 ADT
Markham Street	West of Roosevelt Street	183
Markham Street	Between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road	502
Markham Street	East of Wood Road	2,973
Roosevelt Street	North of Markham Street	131
Wood Road	North of Markham Street	6,319
Wood Road	South of Markham Street	6,672
Mariposa Avenue	Between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road	813

## Table 3.17-1. Existing 2021 Roadway Segment Bi-direction ADT

## Table 3.17-1. Existing 2021 Roadway Segment Bi-direction ADT

Roadway Segment	Location	Existing 2021 ADT
Cajalco Road	Between Harley John Road and Wood Road	23,347

#### Impact Analysis:

- a) No Impact. The design of the 1.3-mile roadway section for Markham Street between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road accommodates an ultimate secondary highway configuration per the County General Plan Circulation Element, with two travel lanes in each direction; however, the proposed roadway improvements as part of the Project would only include one travel lane in each direction along the southern half of the ultimate roadway section. In the future, the County may elect to construct two additional lanes along the northern portion of the ultimate roadway section. Completion of the Project would make Markham Street a complete connection from Harley John Road on the west to Interstate 215 on the east (HDR 2022a). The proposed roadway improvements also include bike lanes in each direction and pedestrian facilities along the southern portion of the roadway. No impact would occur.
- b) No Impact. According to the Riverside County Transportation Analysis Guidelines (December 2020), the Project would be categorized as a Non-Significant Transportation Impact Project under the rehabilitation, maintenance, replacement, safety, and repair example. The Project would not result in additional vehicle miles traveled because the Project does not increase vehicle capacity. No impact would occur.
- c) **No Impact.** The proposed roadway improvements do not include sharp curves or dangerous intersections and would be designed to comply with the County's applicable standards for a secondary highway. No impact would occur.
- d) Less Than Significant Impact. Vehicular access would be maintained to the extent feasible during construction; however, access on Markham Street and nearby properties could be temporarily impacted by Project-related construction activities which could impede the ability for emergency vehicles to pass through the Project area expeditiously. Measure T-1 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on emergency responders accessing the Project area. Once operational, the Project would not result in inadequate emergency access. Impacts are considered less than significant.

#### Avoidance Measure:

The following avoidance measure would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to transportation.

**T-1 Traffic Control Plan (TCP):** During final design, a TCP will be prepared for the Project. The goals of the TCP during Project construction will include minimizing traffic delay or time spent in queue; maintaining traffic flow throughout the Project area and the surrounding areas; and providing a safe environment for the work force and motoring public.

# 3.18 Tribal Cultural Resources

	Potentially Significant	Less Than Significant with Mitigation	Less Than Significant	No
Environmental Issue Area:	Impact	Incorporated	Impact	Impact

Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

a)	Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k)?		
b)	A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe?		

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the Phase I Cultural Resource Assessment (PaleoWest 2023) and the County records for AB 52 consultation performed for the Project.

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

#### Assembly Bill 52

AB 52 requires early consultation with California Native American Tribes and consideration of Tribal Cultural Resources (TCRs). The term "tribal cultural resource" refers to sites, features, places, cultural landscapes, sacred places, and objects with cultural value to a California Native American Tribe that are either of the following:

- Included or determined to be eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources
- Included in a local register of historical resources as defined in subdivision (k) of California PRC Section 5020.1
- A resource determined by a California lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of the PRC Section 5024.1.

The PRC requires a lead agency to consult with any California Native American Tribe that requests consultation and is traditionally and culturally affiliated with the geographic area of a proposed project. That consultation must take place prior to the release of a negative declaration, mitigated negative declaration, or environmental impact report for a project (PRC section 21080.3.1). If after tribal consultation a lead agency determines that a project may cause a substantial adverse change to TCRs, the lead agency must consider measures to mitigate that impact. Consultation concludes when either: 1) the parties agree to measures to mitigate or avoid a significant effect, if a significant effect exists, on a TCR, or 2) a party, acting in good faith and after reasonable effort, concludes that mutual agreement cannot be reached (PRC section 21080.3.2). Under existing law, environmental documents must not include information about the locations of an archaeological site or sacred lands or any other information that is exempt from public disclosure pursuant to the Public Records act. TCRs are also exempt from disclosure.



A search of the Sacred Lands File (SLF) maintained by the California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) was requested on November 9, 2021. On December 23, 2021, the NAHC responded that the search had not identified any known Native American cultural resources within the immediate vicinity of the Project area (PaleoWest 2023).

On March 31, 2022, AB 52 consultation letters were sent to representatives from the following six Native American Tribes to initiate formal AB 52 consultation with the County:

- Pechanga Band of Mission Indians: Ebru Ozdil, Juan Ochoa, Molly Earp, Michele Fahley
- Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians: Joseph Ontiveros
- Cahuilla Band of Indians: Bobby Ray Esparza
- Morongo Band of Mission Indians: Ann Brierty
- Pala Band of Mission Indians: Alexis Wallick
- San Manuel Band of Mission Indians: Ryan Nordness

The letters provided a summary of the Project and requested information regarding comments or concerns the Native American community might have about the Project and whether any traditional cultural properties, TCRs, or other resources of significance would be affected by implementation of the Project. The letters also stated that if the Tribes would like to consult under AB 52, they would have to respond within 30 days, pursuant to PRC 21080.3.1(d).

A summary of the AB 52 consultation process is provided below.

Pechanga Band of Mission Indians: Ebru Ozdil, Juan Ochoa, Molly Earp, Michele Fahley. After transmittal of the initial AB 52 consultation letter on March 31, 2022, a follow up email to tribal representatives was sent on May 11, 2022, with proposed meeting dates, and an additional follow up email was sent on May 18, 2022. On May 27, 2022, an additional follow up email was sent to tribal representatives along with the SLF search. On June 2, 2022, Juan Ochoa responded via email requesting government to government consultation and proposed a meeting date of June 7, 2022. Based on this request, the first consultation meeting took place online on June 7, 2022, 2022, from 2pm-3pm. Tribal representatives informed the County that the project location is within the Traditional Cultural Property (TCP) of Qaxáalku Payómik II and requested drawings, maps, and technical studies prepared for the Project including the cultural report and jurisdictional delineation. All requested documents were provided via email on August 24, 2022. A 3rd notification email/follow up was sent on September 28, 2022, and another meeting took place via online on November 1, 2022. Based on the discussion during the meeting, Tribal representatives were to provide County comments/mitigation language to include in cultural report and the County was to provide the final cultural report once available. The County provided a copy of the revised Cultural Report via secure email link on February 7, 2023, with a requested review duration of 30 days (March 9, 2023). No response was received from the Tribe. A Conclusion to Consultation Letter was sent on March 16, 2023, stating AB 52 consultation has concluded, and the County's Consultant will contact the Tribe regarding onsite monitoring. On August 9, 2023, the County notified Tribal representatives of geotechnical boring activities planned to occur on September 11, 2023, and September 12, 2023, with an invitation to monitor the geotechnical boring activities. A response to the invitation for monitoring was requested by September 8, 2023. The Tribe requested that a County appointed archaeologist and tribal monitor be present during any ground disturbing activities along Markham Street until excavation of previously undisturbed native soil has been completed.

Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians: Joseph Ontiveros. After transmittal of the initial AB 52 consultation letter on March 31, 2022, consultation was requested from tribal representatives on May 11, 2022. On May 16, 2022, a response was provided to tribal representatives along with a request to schedule a meeting. A follow up email to meet with tribal representatives was sent on May 26, 2022, accompanied with a copy of the SLF search. All documents requested by tribal representatives, including a copy of the cultural report prepared for the Project, was provided via a secure link in email on August 24, 2022. A 3rd notification/email was sent on September 28, 2022, and two subsequent consultation meetings took place on October 5, 2022, and October 20, 2022. During the meetings, tribal representatives stated that the Project area is within a Traditional Cultural Landscape, as the project area and the creek were considered an important traditional use area which included several plant species and resources that were important to the Tribe's traditional practice. The County provided a copy of the revised Cultural Report via secure email link on February 7, 2023, with a requested review duration of 30 days (March 9, 2023). No response was received from the Tribe. A Conclusion to Consultation Letter was sent on March 16, 2023, stating AB 52 consultation has concluded, and the County's Consultant will contact the Tribe regarding onsite monitoring. On August 9, 2023, the County notified tribal representatives of geotechnical boring activities planned to occur on September 11, 2023, and September 12, 2023, with an invitation to monitor the geotechnical boring activities. A response to the invitation for monitoring was requested by September 8, 2023. The Tribe requested that a County appointed archaeologist and tribal monitor be present during any ground disturbing activities along Markham Street until excavation of previously undisturbed native soil has been completed.

Cahuilla Band of Indians: Bobby Ray Esparza. After transmittal of the initial AB 52 consultation letter on March 31, 2022, a follow up email to tribal representatives was sent on May 11, 2022. The Tribe acknowledged the follow up email sent on May 11, 2022, and replied via email on May 19, 2022, requesting not to consult at the time but would like to request a copy of the cultural report upon availability for review to provide the Tribe more information on whether consultation is needed. Tribal representatives were provided with all the requested documents via email on August 24, 2022. A 3rd notification/email was sent on September 28, 2022, and no response was received from the Tribe. The County provided a copy of the revised Cultural Report via secure email link on February 7, 2023, with a requested review duration of 30 days (March 9, 2023). No response was received. A Conclusion to Consultation Letter was sent on March 16, 2023, stating AB 52 consultation has concluded, and the County's Consultant will contact the Tribe regarding onsite monitoring. A response was received on March 22, 2023, accepting conclusion of consultation noting the Cahuilla Band of Indians looks forward to working with the County on this project. On August 9, 2023, the County notified tribal representatives of geotechnical boring activities planned to occur on September 11, 2023, and September 12, 2023, with an invitation to monitor the geotechnical boring activities. On August 9, 2023, a response was received with interest to monitor proposed geotechnical boring activities. A tribal monitor was on site during the geotechnical boring activities. The Tribe requested that a County appointed archaeologist and tribal monitor be present during any ground disturbing activities along Markham Street until excavation of previously undisturbed native soil has been completed.

<u>Morongo Band of Mission Indians: Ann Brierty.</u> After transmittal of the initial AB 52 consultation letter on March 31, 2022, follow up emails to tribal representatives were sent on May 11, 2022, and on May 27, 2022, with a request for response by June 26, 2022. Consultation was concluded on June 26, 2022, and a Conclusion to Consultation Letter was sent on June 29, 2022, stating AB 52 consultation has concluded.

Pala Band of Mission Indians: Alexis Wallick. After transmittal of the initial AB 52 consultation letter on March 31, 2022, follow up emails to tribal representatives were sent on May 11, 2022, and on May 27, 2022, with a request for response by June 26, 2022. On May 31, 2022, the Tribe declined consultation via letter.

San Manuel Band of Mission Indians: Ryan Nordness. After transmittal of the initial AB 52 consultation letter on March 31, 2022, an email response was received on May 11, 2022, declining consultation.

Separate from AB 52 consultation carried out by the County, the consultant sent letters to 21 individuals representing 13 Native American tribal groups on the NAHC's list. The letters constituted informal outreach as part of the cultural resource investigation and requested information about cultural resources that may be known to tribal representatives (PaleoWest 2023). The following responses were received:

- <u>Pechanga Band of Mission Indians</u>: Paul Macarro stated that the Project is within the Tribe's Ancestral Territory. The Project area is in a TCP and that a second TCP is 850 yards away from the Project boundary. He also stated that there is an extremely high possibility of recovering subsurface resources during ground-disturbing activities.
- <u>Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians</u>: Joseph Ontiveros stated the Project area is surrounded by cultural resources and sits on the west end of a TCP that has been determined eligible for the NRHP with State Historic Preservation Officer concurrence. Additionally, Mr. Ontiveros stated that a second TCP has been identified in the Project vicinity. Mr. Ontiveros noted that the area is extremely sensitive and there is a possibility for inadvertent discoveries.
- <u>Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians</u>: Arysa Gonzalez Romero stated that the Project area is not located within the boundaries of the *Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians* Reservation but that it does lie within the Tribe's Traditional Use Area. The *Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians* requested that a cultural resources inventory of the Project area by a qualified archaeologist prior to any development activities in this area, a copy of the records search associated survey reports and site records from the information center, and copies of any cultural resource documentation (report and site records) generated in connection with this project.
- <u>Rincon Band of Luiseño Indians</u>: Cheryl Madrigal stated that the Project is within the Traditional Use Area of the Luiseño people. Although the Tribe has no knowledge of specific TCRs or TCPs potentially affected by the Project, the Tribe does believe the Project is within a culturally sensitive area as natural drainages were places for gathering plants, hunting, and ceremonies. The Project area has been previously disturbed, but there is potential for historic properties or TCRs to be identified during the duration of the Project.

#### Impact Analysis:

a) Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Through the SLF search, AB 52 consultation process, and tribal outreach conducted by the consultant, TCRs were identified in or near the Project area that are listed or eligible for listing in the CRHR, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k) and that have the potential to be impacted by the Project. Implementation of Measures ARC-1 through ARC-4, which reflect input received from consulting Tribes,



b) Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Through the SLF search, AB 52 consultation process, and tribal outreach conducted by the consultant, TCRs were identified in or near the Project area that are significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, considering their cultural significance to California Native American Tribes, and that have the potential to be impacted by the Project. Implementation of Measures ARC-1 through ARC-4, which reflect input received from consulting Tribes, would reduce potential impacts related to known TCRs and inadvertent discoveries of tribally significant resources. Impacts are considered less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated.

#### Mitigation Measures:

The mitigation measures listed in Section 3.5 (ARC-1 through ARC-4) would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts related to TCRs.

## 3.19 Utilities and Service Systems

Environmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would the project:				
a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation or which could cause significant environmental effects?	f			
<ul> <li>b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years?</li> </ul>				
c) Result in a determination by th wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?				
<ul> <li>Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or i excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li>Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?</li> </ul>				

#### Source(s):

This section is based on the Drainage Report (HDR 2024c).

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

#### Environmental Setting:

The Project is located in a semi-rural area of the County. Within the Project area, a sewer lift station and waterpumping station are present, along with existing utilities including overhead power lines, water lines, a gas line, and telephone lines.

#### Impact Analysis:

a) Less Than Significant Impact. Drainage improvements would include storm drain piping and the addition of culverts to direct storm-flow drainage across the roadway. The proposed drainage infrastructure improvements include installation of nine culverts, one regional channel to facilitate off site drainage, and twelve catch basins to collect and divert on site street flow drainage to the proposed off-site culverts and the regional channel (HDR 2024c). In addition, existing utilities that may require relocations or modifications to accommodate the proposed roadway improvements include power poles and water, gas, and electrical lines. Power poles along the north side of Markham Street will need to be reset to the proposed grade. The Project would also require the relocation and lowering of water, gas, and underground electrical lines. Areas disturbed due to utility relocation or modifications would be restored to pre-construction conditions following the completion of construction. Avoidance, minimization, and mitigation measures outlined in this ISMND would be implemented to reduce potential environmental impacts. Impacts are considered less than significant.

- b) Less Than Significant Impact. Due to the size and type of Project, construction of proposed roadway improvements would require minimal use of water during construction, and no water demands once operational. Sufficient water supplies are expected to be available during construction, as the Project is consistent with and would implement roadway improvements as planned for the County General Plan. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- c) **No Impact.** The Project would not result in any changes in the quantity or quality of water or wastewater in the Project area nor would it affect the existing water or wastewater treatment facilities. No impact would occur.
- d) Less Than Significant Impact. Construction debris would consist of concrete, asphalt, fencing material, and other related materials. The quantity of construction waste for the Project is not anticipated to exceed the capacity of area landfills. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- e) **No Impact.** The Project would not generate solid waste during operation. During construction, the contractor is required to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes. No impact would occur.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

No avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures are required.

# 3.20 Wildfire

Environmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
---------------------------	--------------------------------------	--	------------------------------------	--------------

If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project:

#### Source(s):

This section is based on California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection's (CAL FIRE) Fire Hazard Severity Zones Map (California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 2022), Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan (County of Riverside 2021c), and Riverside County General Plan Safety Element (Riverside County 2021d).

#### **Regulatory Setting:**

CAL FIRE classifies and maps wildfire hazards within State Responsibility Areas (SRAs) and Local Responsibility Areas (LRAs). LRAs are lands on which neither state nor federal government have any legal responsibility for providing fire protection. SRAs are lands in which the State of California holds financial responsibility for providing fire protection.

Per California Government Code 51175-89, CAL FIRE is required to identify very high FHSZ based on data and models of potential fuels over a 30-50-year time horizon and their associated expected fire behavior and expected burn probabilities which quantifies the likelihood and nature of vegetation fire exposure (including firebrands) to buildings.

The Riverside County General Plan Safety Element identifies the emergency routes for the Lake Matthews/Woodcrest area as Interstate 15 (West of Markham Street), Cajalco Road (South of Markham Street), and La Sierra Avenue (Northwest of Markham Street) (Riverside County 2021d).

#### Environmental Setting:

The County has developed a Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (County of Riverside 2018) which identifies the County's hazards, reviews and assesses past disaster occurrences, estimates the probability of future occurrences and sets goals to mitigate potential risks to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people and property from natural and man-made hazards. The County is also subject to the County's Emergency Operations

Plan (County of Riverside 2019a) which serves as a reference tool and foundation for coordinating emergencies response and recovery strategies for the County and its operation area, which consists of a combination of the County, all unincorporated areas, all cities, and all political subdivisions within the County's geographic boundaries.

The County General Plan, Safety Element (Riverside County 2021d) states that wildfire hazard is the highestpriority hazard in the County and is the hazard with the greatest potential for catastrophic loss. Based on information from the California FHSZ Viewer, the Project area is located within a high FHSZ within an SRA and is also adjacent to other moderate and very high SRA FHSZ (California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 2022).

#### Impact Analysis:

- No Impact. The Project would not impair or interfere with any emergency routes identified in the Multia) Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan or the Emergency Operations Plan. No impact would occur.
- Less Than Significant Impact. Construction equipment and machinery increase the likelihood of fire risks b) due to the use of gasoline and diesel. However, construction equipment would largely be confined to the existing roadway and Measure DBESP-3 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts related to wildfire. Therefore, it is not anticipated that the Project would exacerbate wildfire risks or otherwise increase wildfire risk. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- Less Than Significant Impact. The Project does not include new utility infrastructure. The addition of a c) new paved roadway, bike lanes, and sidewalks would contribute to a more effective firebreak by reducing flammable vegetation adjacent to the existing paved and dirt portions of Markham Street. Impacts are considered less than significant.
- Less Than Significant Impact. The Project includes a new roadway hardscape area, which would result d) in a permanent increase in impervious surfaces. However, the Project would include storm drain piping along the roadway and the addition of culverts to direct storm-flow drainage across the roadway and to manage the increase in runoff. These drainage features would not expose people or structures to increased flooding risks. The Project area is generally flat; therefore, landslide risks are low. Impacts are considered less than significant.

#### Avoidance Measure:

DBESP-3 During construction, all equipment maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will occur in developed or designated non-sensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland areas will be located so as to prevent runoff from any spills from entering waters of the U.S. or CDFW-regulated streambed.

## 3.21 Mandatory Findings of Significance

## I. Mandatory Findings of Significance

Enviror	nmental Issue Area:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would	the project:				
a)	Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?				
b)	Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?				
c)	Does the project have environmental effects, which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?				

#### Impact Analysis:

a) Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated. As described in Section 3.4 Biological Resources, the Project has the potential to impact sensitive species and natural communities. Mitigation Measures BIO-6 and DBESP-5 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on biological resources. Additionally, while not required for mitigation, Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5, BIO-7 through BIO-15, DBESP-1 through DBESP-4, and DBESP-6 through DBESP-8 would be implemented to further reduce impacts on biological resources.

As described in Section 3.5 Cultural Resources, the Project has the potential to impact archaeological resources. As a result, Measure ARC-1 through ARC-4 would be implemented to reduce potential impacts on archaeological resources. Therefore, impacts are considered less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

b) **No Impact.** There are no known or proposed projects in the Project area that would be implemented at the same time or space as the Project. No impact would occur.

c) Less than Significant. Generally, impacts to human beings are associated with air quality, hazards and hazardous materials, and noise impacts. As detailed in the analyses above for air quality, hazards and hazardous materials, and noise, the Project would result in a less than significant impact on these resources or less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated. Therefore, the Project would not result in substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly.

#### Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures:

The following avoidance, minimization, and mitigation measures would be implemented as part of the Project to reduce potential impacts on wildlife species and historical resources.

#### Avoidance Measures:

- BIO-7 Crotch's Bumble Bee Survey. This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. Within one year prior to construction, a habitat assessment for Crotch's bumble bee will be conducted within the Project area and an appropriate survey buffer be established by a qualified biologist with experience surveying for and observing Crotch's bumble bee. If the qualified biologist determines that suitable habitat is present, surveys shall be conducted to determine the presence/absence of Crotch's bumble bee. Surveys shall be conducted during flying season when the species is most likely to be detected above ground, between March 1 to September 1 (Thorp et al. 1983). Survey results, including negative findings, shall be submitted to the CDFW prior to implementing Projectrelated ground-disturbing activities and/or vegetation removal where there may be impacts to Crotch's bumble bee. At minimum, a survey report should provide the following: a) A description and map of the survey area, focusing on areas that could provide suitable habitat for Crotch's bumble bee; b) Field survey conditions that should include name(s) of qualified entomologist(s) and brief qualifications; date and time of survey; survey duration; general weather conditions; survey goals, and species searched; c) Map(s) showing the location of nests/colonies; and, d) A description of physical (e.g., soil, moisture, slope) and biological (e.g., plant composition) conditions where each nest/colony is found. A sufficient description of biological conditions, primarily impacted habitat, should include native plant composition (e.g., density, cover, and abundance) within impacted habitat (e.g., species list separated by vegetation class; density, cover, and abundance of each species).
- **BIO-8 Crotch's Bumble Bee Avoidance.** This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. If Crotch's bumble bee is detected during the Crotch's bumble bee survey, the County shall ensure that a plan to fully avoid impacts to Crotch's bumble bee be developed in consultation with a qualified entomologist during final design. The plan shall include effective, specific, enforceable, and feasible measures. An avoidance plan should be submitted to CDFW prior to implementing Project-related ground-disturbing activities and/or vegetation removal where there may be impacts to Crotch's bumble bee. If Crotch's bumble bees are determined to be present within the Project area and it is determined the species will be impacted by Project implementation, appropriate mitigation shall be determined in consultation with CDFW.
- **BIO-9 Crotch's Bumble Bee Incidental Take Permit.** This measure will only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species prior to Project implementation. If Crotch's bumble bee is detected during the survey (required by Measure BIO-7), and if impacts to Crotch's bumble bee cannot be feasibly avoided during Project construction, the County shall ensure that the designated qualified entomologist coordinate with CDFW to obtain appropriate permit for incidental take of Crotch's bumble bee. The incidental take permit would quantify and provide appropriate mitigation for impacts on Crotch's bumble bee habitat. Mitigation for impacts to Crotch's bumble bee habitat would be at a ratio comparable to the Project's level of impacts.
- **BIO-10 Riparian Bird Habitat Removal.** Prior to construction, suitable habitat for SWFL and LBV within the Project area will be removed between September 1 and February 14, outside of the nesting season. If it cannot occur outside nesting season the Project biologist will survey the area and delineate buffers suitable to avoid take if nesting birds, including foraging SWFL or LBV or active LBV nests, are found.
- **BIO-13 Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance.** Should nesting CAGN be found on or in the immediate vicinity (approximately 300-feet) of the Project area during surveys conducted in compliance with Measure BIO-11, the qualified biologist shall establish an appropriate buffer to prevent alteration of nesting CAGN behavior. No construction or clearing shall be conducted within the established buffer until the designated biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.
- **BIO-15** Bat Roosting Habitat Removal. Prior to tree removal or trimming, large trees and snags shall be examined by a qualified bat biologist to ensure that no roosting bats are present. If trimming or removal of mature trees and snags is necessary for Project construction, trimming/removal activities

should be performed outside of the general bat maternity season, which occurs from March 1st through October 1st, to avoid direct effects to nonvolant (flightless) young that may roost in trees within the study area. If trimming or removal of trees during the general bat maternity season cannot be avoided, a qualified biologist will monitor tree removal unless nighttime surveys conducted within one week of removal indicates no tree-roosting bat activity within the study area.

Palm frond trimming, if necessary, shall be conducted outside the bat maternity season to avoid potential mortality of flightless young. Since western yellow bats and western mastiff bats may be present in untrimmed palm tree fronds, a qualified bat biologist shall be present to monitor frond removal. Dead fronds shall be removed under the guidance of the bat biologist, following the two-day method described below.

DAY 1: Only trim the outermost fronds may be trimmed (no more than 50 percent of the palm fronds) using hand tools or chainsaws only (no dozers, backhoes, cranes, or other heavy equipment, other than to provide access for tree cutters using chainsaws).

DAY 2: The palm tree must be felled. Day 2 activities must occur the day immediately following the Day 1 activities. To accomplish this, work may need to be phased and Day 1/Day 2 steps can be repeated. Should bats emerge during the tree trimming, trimming activities must temporarily cease at the individual tree until bats are no longer actively emerging from the tree.

- **DBESP-3** During construction, all equipment maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will occur in developed or designated non-sensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland areas will be located so as to prevent runoff from any spills from entering waters of the U.S. or CDFW-regulated streambed.
- **DBESP-4** Prior to construction a SWPPP and soil erosion and sedimentation plan will be developed to minimize erosion and identify specific pollution prevention measures that will eliminate or control potential point and non-point pollution sources on site during construction. The SWPPP will identify specific best management practices to be implemented during construction so as not to cause or contribute to an exceedance of any water quality standard.
- **DBESP-6 Riparian Bird Habitat Removal.** Prior to construction, suitable habitat for SWFL and LBV within the Project area will be removed between September 1 and February 14, outside of the nesting season. If it cannot occur outside nesting season the Project biologist will survey the area and delineate buffers suitable to avoid take if nesting birds, including foraging SWFL or LBV or active LBV nests, are found.
- DBESP-7 Pre-construction Surveys and Monitoring for Least Bell's Vireo. Should construction activities begin during the LBV nesting season (March 15 to August 15), a gualified biologist will conduct three separate days of surveys, no more than 7 days prior to construction, to identify and map LBV nesting locations. The qualified biologist will also conduct weekly surveys throughout the LBV nesting season in all suitable LBV habitat within 500-feet of the active work area. In the event that LBV nesting activity is detected within 500-feet of the work area, if feasible, a 500-foot buffer shall be established between construction activities and the approximate edge of the LBV territory, to avoid affects to nesting LBV. If this is not possible, and the qualified biologist deems that construction activities can continue without disturbing nesting LBV, nests shall be monitored daily by the qualified biologist during all construction activities. If the biologist determines that the Project-related activities are altering LBV behavior, e.g., causing adults to flush from the nest more frequently, Project activities shall be halted within 500-feet of the active nest. Prior to re-commencement of work within 500-feet of the active nest, CDFW and USFWS will be notified and measures to reduce noise or noise impacts will be implemented in coordination with CDFW and USFWS. Measures may include increasing or reestablishing a nest buffer, installing noise barriers, or implementing noise attenuation measures (e.g., reducing the number of construction vehicles or using different types of construction vehicles; reducing the number of noisy activities that occur simultaneously) as feasible. These measures will remain in place until all nestlings have fledged or construction activities have moved 500-feet beyond that area of LBV activity. Construction activities that alter LBV behavior will cease operation until effective noise attenuation measures are in place to the extent practicable. The results of LBV preconstruction survey, weekly surveys, and monitoring will be reported weekly to CDFW and USFWS.

#### Minimization Measures:

**BIO-1 Project Biologist.** A qualified biologist will oversee compliance with protective measures for the biological resources during clearing and work activities within and adjacent to areas of native habitat. The Project biologist shall designate areas that need temporary fencing and monitor construction. The biologist shall monitor activities during critical times such as vegetation removal, the installation of BMPs and ESA fencing to protect native species and ensure that all avoidance and minimization measures are properly constructed and followed. The biologist will conduct site visits a minimum of



- **BIO-2** Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP). Prior to construction, the Project biologist shall conduct WEAP training for all Project employees and contractors that will be on site. The training will advise workers of potential impacts to sensitive habitat and listed species and the potential penalties for impacts to such habitat and species. Included in this program will be color photos of the listed species, which will be shown to the employees. Following the education program, the photos shall be posted in the contractor and resident engineer's office, where they will remain through the duration of the work. The contractor will be required to provide the County with evidence of the employee training (e.g., sign in sheet or stickers) upon request.
- **BIO-3** Environmentally Sensitive Areas (ESAs). During construction, the Project contractor will fully minimize Project impacts on riparian and California buckwheat scrub habitat to the fullest extent possible. These areas shall be demarcated as ESAs. No grading or fill activity of any type will be permitted within designated ESAs. Prior to construction, the Project biologist shall ensure that non-impacted native habitat located outside of the Project area is demarcated as ESAs. Prior to construction, exclusionary fencing shall be installed around all ESAs under supervision of the Project biologist. ESA fencing will remain in place throughout the duration of construction. All construction equipment will be operated in a manner to prevent accidental encroachment or damage into ESAs. The biological monitor will conduct at a minimum, once weekly inspections of the ESA fencing to ensure that it is in place and properly maintained throughout the duration of construction. The contractor will be responsible for maintaining the ESA fencing per the biological monitor's direction.
- **BIO-4** Equipment Maintenance and Staging. During construction all equipment maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will occur in developed or designated nonsensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland areas shall be located a minimum of 50 feet away from any drainage areas, so as to prevent runoff of any spills from entering ESAs. Construction personnel will strictly limit their activities to the limits of disturbance and designated staging areas and routes of travel.
- **BIO-5 On-site restoration of native habitat.** Temporary impacts to native habitat will be restored in-kind following construction. On-site restoration methodology for riparian habitat will be described in the Restoration Plan for the Project, which will be submitted to the resource agencies and subject to agency approval as part of the regulatory permit applications, prior to Project construction activities. Temporary impacts to non-native riparian habitats would be restored using cuttings from native riparian trees and shrubs within the Project area following construction. On-site restoration areas would be monitored for a period of 5 years following restoration to ensure restoration activities are meeting success criteria identified in the Restoration Plan. Any temporarily impacted riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site.
- **BIO-11** Pre-construction Surveys and Monitoring for Least Bell's Vireo. Should construction activities begin during the LBV nesting season (March 15 to August 15), a qualified biologist will conduct three separate days of surveys, no more than 7 days prior to construction, to identify and map LBV nesting locations. The qualified biologist will also conduct weekly surveys throughout the LBV nesting season in all suitable LBV habitat within 500-feet of the active work area. In the event that LBV nesting activity is detected within 500-feet of the work area, if feasible, a 500-foot buffer shall be established between construction activities and the approximate edge of the LBV territory, to avoid affects to nesting LBV. If this is not possible, and the qualified biologist deems that construction activities can continue without disturbing nesting LBV, nests shall be monitored daily by the qualified biologist during all construction activities. If the biologist determines that the Project-related activities are altering LBV behavior, e.g., causing adults to flush from the nest more frequently, Project activities shall be halted within 500-feet of the active nest. Prior to re-commencement of work within 500-feet of the active nest, CDFW and USFWS will be notified and measures to reduce noise or noise impacts will be implemented in coordination with CDFW and USFWS. Measures may include increasing or reestablishing a nest buffer, installing noise barriers, or implementing noise attenuation measures (e.g., reducing the number of construction vehicles or using different types of construction vehicles; reducing the number of noisy activities that occur simultaneously) as feasible. These measures will remain in place until all nestlings have fledged, or construction activities have moved 500-feet beyond that area of LBV activity. Construction activities that alter LBV behavior will cease operation until effective noise attenuation measures are in place to the extent practicable. The results of LBV preconstruction survey, weekly surveys, and monitoring will be reported weekly to CDFW and USFWS.
- **BIO-12** Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present.

Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.

- **BIO-14 Burrowing Owl Preconstruction Survey.** Prior to construction, a survey for BUOW will be conducted by a qualified biologist within 30 days prior to vegetation clearing/grading. If BUOW are found within 500 feet (150 meters) of the Project area during the preconstruction survey, the County or its designated representative will immediately inform and coordinate with CDFW and USFWS to identify and implement applicable measures provided in WRCMSHCP BUOW Conservation Objective 6, as provided in Volume 1, Appendix E of the WRCMSHCP. Appropriate measures to avoid take of active BUOW nests may include establishment of an appropriate buffer until BUOW young have fledged or BUOW no longer occupy the burrow. If any burrows are identified within the Project area, passive relocation would be conducted by a qualified avian biologist outside of the nesting season, if necessary.
- **DBESP-1** Prior to construction, a weed abatement program will be developed and implemented to minimize the importation of non-native plant material during and after construction. Eradication strategies from the weed abatement program will be employed during construction activities, should an invasion occur.
- **DBESP-2** During construction, when work is conducted during the fire season (as identified by the Riverside County Fire Authority) adjacent to any vegetation, the appropriate firefighting equipment (e.g., extinguishers, shovels, and water tankers) will be made available on site during all phases of Project construction to minimize the potential for human-caused wildfires. Shields, protective mats, and/or other fire preventive methods will be used during grinding, welding, and other spark-inducing activities. Personnel trained in fire hazards, preventive actions, and responses to fires will advise the construction contractors regarding fire risk from all construction-related activities.
- **DBESP-8 Burrowing Owl Preconstruction Survey.** Prior to construction, a survey for BUOW will be conducted by a qualified biologist within 30 days prior to vegetation clearing/grading. If BUOW are found within 500 feet (150 meters) of the Project area during the preconstruction survey, the County or its designated representative will immediately inform and coordinate with CDFW and USFWS to identify and implement applicable measures provided in WRCMSHCP BUOW Conservation Objective 6, as provided in Volume 1, Appendix E of the WRCMSHCP. The qualified biologist shall determine appropriate measures necessary to avoid take of active BUOW nests, which may include establishment of an appropriate buffer until BUOW young have fledged or BUOW no longer occupy the burrow. If any burrows are identified within the Project area, a qualified avian biologist would conduct passive relocation outside of the nesting season, if necessary.

#### Mitigation Measures:

**BIO-6 Riparian Habitat Compensatory Mitigation.** Permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat will be mitigated through permittee responsible mitigation in the form of establishment, restoration, and/or enhancement of riparian habitat at a suitable location to provide Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of Habitat. Compensatory mitigation will be provided at a ratio of 2:1 for permanent impacts and at a ratio of 1:1 for temporal loss of LBV nesting habitat.

Temporary impacts to on-site native habitat will be restored where feasible. A Restoration Plan will be developed to define the approach for onsite restoration and will include erosion control measures, willow cutting planting plan, hydroseeding palette and methods, and a maintenance and monitoring methodology. In addition, any temporarily impacted riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site. Compensatory mitigation will be accomplished within the WRCMSHCP Planning Area. The preferred compensatory mitigation option is to implement permittee-responsible mitigation at the SAWA Mockingbird Conservation Easement, located adjacent to the Project south of the intersection of Markham Street and Roosevelt Street, or on Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority-owned parcels associated with Temescal Creek.

Details regarding the off-site mitigation location, long-term management entity, and mitigation categories will be included in a HMMP that will be prepared for the Project and submitted to regulatory agencies (USFWS, CDFW, USACE, and RWQCB) for approval prior to Project commencement. Mitigation will include establishment or restoration of in-kind habitat to support listed species that occur in the on-site habitat being impacted (i.e., mitigation for impacts to occupied LBV habitat will include habitat suitable to support foraging and nesting LBV).

**DBESP-5 Riparian Habitat Compensatory Mitigation.** Permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat (i.e., black willow woodland, mule fat thickets, cattail marsh, cocklebur patches, and perennial pepper weed patches) are mitigated through permittee responsible mitigation in the form of establishment, restoration, and/or enhancement of riparian habitat at a suitable location to provide Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of Habitat. Compensatory mitigation will be provided at a ratio

of 2:1 for permanent impacts to riparian habitat. Impacts to riparian habitat will be mitigated for in kind (i.e., impacts to riparian woodland habitat would be mitigated for with riparian woodland; herbaceous riparian habitat would be mitigated for with herbaceous riparian habitat) or with a higher quality habitat. Mitigation for riparian habitat that also supports nesting LBV (i.e., black willow woodland and mule fat thickets) will be mitigated through in-kind replacement and will be required to demonstrate that the replacement habitat supports nesting LBV.

Temporary impacts to on-site native habitat will be restored where feasible. A Restoration Plan will be developed to define the approach for onsite restoration and will include erosion control measures, willow cutting planting plan, hydroseeding palette and methods, and a maintenance and monitoring methodology. In addition, any temporarily impacted riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site. Compensatory mitigation will be accomplished within the WRCMSHCP Planning Area. The preferred compensatory mitigation option is to implement permittee-responsible mitigation at the SAWA Mockingbird Conservation Easement, located adjacent to the Project south of the intersection of Markham Street and Roosevelt Street, or on Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority-owned parcels associated with Temescal Creek.

Details regarding the off-site mitigation site location, long-term management entity, and mitigation categories will be included in a HMMP that will be prepared for the Project and submitted to regulatory agencies (USFWS, CDFW, USACE, and RWQCB) for approval prior to Project commencement. Mitigation will include establishment or restoration of in-kind habitat to support listed species that occur in habitat being impacted (i.e., mitigation for impacts to occupied LBV habitat will include habitat suitable to support foraging and nesting LBV).

**ARC-1** County appointed archaeological and tribal monitors will be present during any ground disturbing activities along Markham Street until excavation of previously undisturbed native soil has been completed. Participating tribes will rotate their schedule so that one tribal monitor at a time is on the Project site during any excavation.

Prior to commencement of construction, there will be a meeting in which the construction staff, tribal monitor(s), archaeological monitor/consultant, and Resident Engineer (RE) will conduct preconstruction archaeological resource sensitivity and awareness training. This meeting will also discuss the monitoring and safety requirements. It is critical that all parties understand the methods and goals as well as the protocols for the inadvertent discovery of archaeological resources, tribal resources, and/or human remains during construction. Record of this meeting shall be placed in the RE file.

The archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor, shall have the authority to temporarily divert, redirect or halt the ground disturbance activities to allow for identification, evaluation, and potential recovery of cultural resources. Should buried cultural deposits be encountered, the archaeological monitor shall contact the County Archaeologist immediately, and in coordination with the THPOs of consulting tribes, will evaluate the resource and formulate a plan to move forward.

- **ARC-2** If archaeological and/or tribal resources are encountered during construction, the archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor shall:
  - Halt all work within a 60-foot radius and shall immediately inform the RE.
  - Following notification, the archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor, will
    make a preliminary assessment of the discovery to determine whether the find is an isolated
    artifact or recent deposit. If the find is determined to be isolated or recent, construction will be
    allowed to resume.
  - Should the monitor(s) determine the discovery is potentially significant, the monitor(s) shall contact the County Archaeologist immediately to evaluate the discovery and if necessary, formulate appropriate mitigation measures.
  - If the discovery contains tribal resources, all consulting tribes shall be contacted and informed
    of the discovery. The tribal resource discovery, including human remains, shall not be disturbed
    (i.e., photographed, videoed, or moved) until the County Archaeologist and consulting tribes
    have agreed upon appropriate treatment measures.

If archaeological and/or tribal resources are encountered anywhere during Project construction when no monitor(s) are present, work in the area must halt within a 60-foot radius until the monitor(s) can evaluate the nature and significance of the find and formulate appropriate evaluation and/or mitigation measures.

Once the agreed upon treatment measures have been implemented, construction activity can resume in that area.

- **ARC-3** In the event that human remains are discovered during construction at any time, the following provisions shall apply:
  - State Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance and all construction activity shall immediately be halted within 60 feet of the discovery until the County Coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. The County Coroner must be notified of the find immediately. If the remains are determined to be Native American and not under the coroner's jurisdiction, within 24 hours the coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), which will determine and notify a Most Likely Descendant (MLD). During this time all remains, associated soils, and artifacts will remain in situ, and shall be protected from public viewing. The County will take appropriate measures to protect the discovery site from disturbance during any negotiations. This may include restricting access to the discovery site and the need to hire 24-hour security. With the permission of the landowner or his/her authorized representative, the MLD may inspect the site of the discovery. The MLD shall complete the inspection within 48 hours of notification by the NAHC. The MLD may recommend scientific removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and items associated with Native American burials. Work will be suspended within a 60-foot radius of the human remains until the MLD's recommendations are implemented.
  - A meeting shall be convened between the County Archaeologist, archaeological monitor, and the MLD to discuss the significance of the find. At the meeting with the aforementioned parties, a decision is to be made as to the appropriate treatment (documentation, recovery, avoidance, etc.) for the discovery. Resource evaluations shall be limited to non-destructive analysis.
  - Further ground disturbance shall not resume within the area of the discovery until the appropriate treatment has been accomplished.
  - The County Archaeologist will work with the MLD in regard to the treatment of the remains and all associated funerary objects and will ensure that any identified human remains will be secured while they are left in place and while treatment decisions are in progress. Information concerning the discovery shall not be disclosed pursuant to the specific exemption set forth in California Government Code Section 6254.5(e).
  - The County shall relinquish ownership of all tribal resources, including sacred items, burial goods, and all Native American archaeological artifacts and non-human remains found within County ROW through one or more of the following methods and provide evidence of same:
    - a. A pre-determined reburial area will be determined prior to construction. This shall include measures and provisions to protect the future pre-determined reburial area within the Project property from any future impacts. The measures for reburial shall be culturally appropriate as determined through consultation with the consulting tribes and include, at least, the following:
      - i. Measures to protect the reburial area from any future impacts in perpetuity.
      - ii. Reburial shall not occur until all required cataloguing (including a complete photographic record) and analysis have been completed on the cultural resources, with the exception that sacred and ceremonial items, burial goods, and Native American human remains are excluded. No cataloguing, analysis, or other studies may occur on human remains, grave goods, and sacred and ceremonial items. Any reburial processes shall be culturally appropriate and approved by the consulting tribes.
      - iii. Listing of contents and location of the reburial shall be confidential and not subject to a Public Records Request.
      - iv. The County shall establish a curation agreement with an appropriate qualified repository within Riverside County that meets federal standards per 36 CFR Part 79 and therefore would be professionally curated and made available to other archaeologists/researchers for further study. The collections and associated records shall be transferred, including title, to an appropriate curation facility within Riverside County, to be accompanied by payment of the fees necessary for permanent curation.
    - b. Should reburial of collected cultural items be preferred, it shall not occur until after the Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report/Data Recovery Report has been submitted to the County. Should curation be preferred, the County is responsible for all costs and the repository and curation method shall be described in the Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report/Data Recovery Report.
    - c. Tribal resources, including sacred items, burial goods, and all Native American archaeological artifacts and non-human remains found within County ROW that are to be



reburied are to be kept safe on site on a locked and secure location within the RE's office (if feasible) until disposition of such tribal resources takes place for reburial.

Artifacts found outside the County ROW are not subject to these requirements and are to be ٠ relinquished to the consulting tribes by the property owner for suitable curation or ownership. It is the responsibility of the consulting tribes to come to agreement with the property owner.

In the event that the County Archaeologist and MLD are in disagreement regarding the disposition of the remains, State law will apply, and the median and decision process will occur with the NAHC (see Public Resources Code Section 5097.98(e) and 5097.94(k)).

ARC-4 Should additional actions be proposed outside the currently defined Project area that have the potential for additional subsurface disturbance, further cultural resource management may be required.

# 4 References

- A/E Tech LLC. 2023. Markham Street Extension Project: Noise and Vibration Study Report. February 2023.
- California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2022. Current California GHG Emission Inventory Data. Available: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/ghg-inventory-data.
- California Department of Conservation. 2022. Earthquake Hazards Zone Application. Retrieved from: <u>https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/EQZApp/app/</u>. Site accessed January 9, 2024.
- 2020. California Important Farmland Finder. Retrieved from: <u>https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/ciff/</u>. Site accessed January 9, 2024. California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. 2022. California Fire Hazard Severity Zone Viewer. Retrieved from: <u>https://egis.fire.ca.gov/FHSZ/</u>. Site accessed January 9, 2024.
- California Department of Pesticide Regulation. 2023a. CA DPR Riverside County Groundwater Protection Areas. Retrieved from: https://www.cdpr.ca.gov/docs/emon/grndwtr/gwpa lists/riverside county gwpas.htm. Site
- accessed January 9, 2024.
   2023b. CA DPR California Code of Regulations (Title 3. Food and Agriculture) Division 6 Pesticides and Pest Control Operations, Section 6487.4 Runoff Groundwater Protection Areas. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.cdpr.ca.gov/docs/legbills/calcode/020404.htm#a64874</u>. Site accessed January 9, 2024.
- California Department of Transportation. 2013. Transportation and Construction Vibration Guidance Manual. September 2013.
- 2022. California Scenic Highway System Map. Retrieved from: <u>https://caltrans.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=465dfd3d807c46cc8e</u> <u>8057116f1aacaa</u>. Site accessed January 9, 2024.
- 2023. Water Quality Planning Tool. Retrieved from: https://svctenvims.dot.ca.gov/wqpt/wqpt.aspx September 2023. Site accessed January 9, 2024.
- California Water Boards. 2019. Santa Ana R8. Santa Ana River Basin Plan. June 2019. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/santaana/water\_issues/programs/basin\_plan/.</u> Accessed on January 9, 2024.
- County of Riverside. 2015. Riverside County General Plan, Multipurpose Open Space Element Retrieved from: <u>https://planning.rctlma.org/sites/g/files/aldnop416/files/migrated/Portals-14-genplan-general-Plan-2017-elements-OCT17-Ch05-MOSE-120815.pdf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.
- 2018. Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. Retrieved from: <u>https://rivcoready.org/sites/emd.rivco.org/files/About%20EMD/pdf/FINAL%20PUBLIC%20V</u> <u>ERSION%20Riv\_Co\_%202018%20Multi%20Jurisdictional%20Local%20Hazard%20Mitiga</u> <u>tion%20Plan.pdf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.
- 2019a. Emergency Operations Plan. Retrieved from: <u>http://riversidecountyca.iqm2.com/Citizens/FileOpen.aspx?Type=4&ID=23364</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.
- 2019b. Climate Action Plan (CAP). Retrieved from: <u>https://planning.rctlma.org/sites/g/files/aldnop416/files/migrated/Portals-14-CAP-2019-2019-CAP-Update-Full.pdf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.

- 2020. Riverside County General Plan, Circulation Element. Retrieved from: <u>https://planning.rctlma.org/sites/g/files/aldnop416/files/migrated/Portals-14-genplan-2019-elements-Ch04-Circulation-072720v2.pdf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.
- 2021a. Riverside County General Plan, Healthy Communities Element. Retrieved from: <u>https://planning.rctlma.org/sites/g/files/aldnop416/files/migrated/Portals-14-Ch10-HCE-092121.pdf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.
- 2021b. Riverside County General Plan, Land Use Element. Retrieved from: <u>https://planning.rctlma.org/sites/g/files/aldnop416/files/migrated/Portals-14-Ch03-Land-20Use-FINAL-209-28-21.pdf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.
- 2021c. Riverside County General Plan, Lake Mathews/Woodcrest Area Plan. Retrieved from: <u>https://planning.rctlma.org/sites/g/files/aldnop416/files/migrated/Portals-14-genplan-GPA-2022-Compiled-LMWAP-4-2022-rev.pdf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024
- 2021d. Riverside County General Plan, Safety Element. Retrieved from: <u>https://planning.rctlma.org/General-Plan-Zoning/General-Plan</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024
- 2023. Riverside County Information technology (RCIT). Retrieved from: <u>https://gis1.countyofriverside.us/Html5Viewer/index.html?viewer=MMC\_Public</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.

ERP. 2023. Markham Street Extension Project: Air Quality Report. February 2023.

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 2023. Flood Insurance Rate Map Panel 06065C1405G.

- HDR Engineering, Inc (HDR). 2022a. Markham Street Roadway Improvement Project Traffic Impact Assessment Technical Memorandum. February 2022.
- ——— 2022b. Supplemental Traffic Impact Assessment Memorandum. February 2022.
- 2023a. Markham Street Extension Project: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment. August 2022.
- 2023b. Water Quality Technical Memorandum. December 2023.
- 2024a. Determination of Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation Report. February 2024.
- 2024b. Biological Resources Technical Report. February 2024.
- 2024c. Drainage Report (PA&ED Design). February 2023.
- PaleoWest. 2022. Paleontological Resource Technical Report for the Markham Street Extension Project, Riverside County, California.
- ——— 2023. Phase I Cultural Resource Assessment for the Markham Street Extension Project, Riverside County, California.
- Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG). 2020. The 2020-2040 Regional Transportation Plan/ Sustainable Communities Strategy. <u>https://scag.ca.gov/resourcesprior-plans</u>.
- South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). 2023. Greenhouse Gases CEQA Significance Threshold. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-</u> <u>source/ceqa/handbook/south-coast-aqmd-air-quality-significance-</u> <u>thresholds.pdf?sfvrsn=25</u>. Accessed on January 17, 2024.
- 2008. SCAQMD. Localized Significance Threshold Methodology. <u>https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/localized-significance-thresholds/final-lst-methodology-document.pdf?sfvrsn=2</u>. Accessed on January 17, 2024.

United Stated Department of Fish and Wildlife. 2004. Biological Opinion for Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation. Retrieved from: <u>https://www.wrcrca.org/Permit\_Docs/MSHCP/WRMSHCP\_USFW\_Biological\_Opinion\_06-22-2004.pdf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.

Western Municipal Water District (WMWD). 2023. Sources of Water Supply. Retrieved from: <u>https://wmwd.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=8ecd94acacf644cf9b65</u> <u>d75d 67992dbf</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.

Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG). 2014. Subregional CAP. Retrieved from: <u>https://wrcog.us/DocumentCenter/View/188/Subregional-Climate-Action-Plan-CAP-PDF?bidId=</u>. Accessed on January 9, 2024.



# 5 List of Preparers

## 5.1 Lead Agency

County of Riverside Transportation Department Contact: David Castro, Associate Transportation Planner 3525 14th Street Riverside, CA 92501

## 5.2 Initial Study Preparers

HDR Engineering, Inc.

Contact: Mario Osario, Senior Environmental Services Project Manager Kevin Rice, Senior Environmental Planner Madison Gallagher, Environmental Planner 1 Andrew Keller, Biology Section Manager Daniel Leonard, Senior Cultural Resources Ben Volta, Cultural Resource Section Manager Charles Christoplis, Senior Highway project Manager Victoria Hsu, Senior Air Quality Specialist Andrew Belcourt, Senior Environmental Services Project Manager Anders Burvall, GIS Deputy Project Manager Sharon Jacob, GIS Analyst Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

# 6 List of Technical Studies

Technical studies are available via the Project webpage except for the cultural reports, which contain confidential resource information.

- Air Quality Report
- Noise and Vibration Study Report
- Biological Resources Technical Report
- Determination of Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation Report
- Phase I Cultural Resource Assessment
- Paleontological Resources Technical Report
- Water Quality Technical Memorandum
- Phase I Environmental Site Assessment
- Traffic Impact Assessment Technical Memorandum

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.



# Appendix A. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program							
Mitigation Measures	Mitigation Monitoring			Reporting			
Mitigation Measures	Measure Type	Monitoring Schedule	Monitoring Responsibility	Monitoring Procedure	Comments	Date/ Initials	
Biological Resources							
<b>BIO-1: Project Biologist.</b> A qualified biologist will oversee compliance with protective measures for the biological resources during clearing and work activities within and adjacent to areas of native habitat. The Project biologist shall designate areas that need temporary fencing and monitor construction. The biologist shall monitor activities during critical times such as vegetation removal, the installation of BMPs and ESA fencing to protect native species and ensure that all avoidance and minimization measures are properly constructed and followed. The biologist will conduct site visits a minimum of once weekly throughout construction to verify that required biological	Minimization	During Construction	County-appointed Biologist				
resources protections are in place.	<b>.</b>						
(WEAP). Prior to construction, the Project biologist shall conduct WEAP training for all Project employees and contractors that will be on site. The training will advise workers of potential impacts to sensitive habitat and listed species and the potential penalties for impacts to such habitat and species. Included in this program will be color photos of the listed species, which will be shown to the employees. Following the education program, the photos shall be posted in the contractor and resident engineer's office, where they will remain through the duration of the work. The contractor will be required to provide the County with evidence of the employee training (e.g., sign in sheet or stickers) upon request.	Minimization	Prior to Construction	Biologist/ Resident Engineer/ Contractor				
<b>BIO-3: Environmentally Sensitive Areas (ESAs).</b> During construction, the Project contractor will minimize Project impacts on riparian and California buckwheat scrub habitat to the fullest extent possible. These areas shall be demarcated as ESAs. No grading or fill activity of any type will be permitted within designated ESAs. Prior to construction, the Project biologist shall ensure that non-impacted native habitat located outside of the Project	Minimization	During Construction	County-appointed Biologist/ Resident Engineer/ Contractor				

area is demarcated as ESAs. Prior to construction,					
exclusionary fencing shall be installed around all ESAs					
under supervision of the Project biologist. ESA fencing will					
remain in place throughout the duration of construction.					
All construction equipment will be operated in a manner					
to prevent accidental encroachment or damage into ESAs.					
The biological monitor will conduct at a minimum, once					
weekly inspections of the ESA fencing to ensure that it is					
in place and properly maintained throughout the duration					
of construction. The contractor will be responsible for					
maintaining the ESA fencing per the biological monitor's					
direction.					
BIO-4: Equipment Maintenance and Staging. During	Minimization	During Construction	Construction		
construction all equipment maintenance, staging, and			personnel		
dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will					
occur in developed or designated non-sensitive upland					
habitat areas. The designated upland areas shall be					
located a minimum of 50 feet away from any drainage					
areas, so as to prevent runoff of any spills from entering					
ESAs. Construction personnel will strictly limit their					
activities to the limits of disturbance and designated					
staging areas and routes of travel.					
BIO-5: On-site restoration of native habitat. Temporary	Minimization	Post Construction	Construction		
impacts to native habitat will be restored in-kind following			personnel		
construction. On-site restoration methodology for riparian					
habitat will be described in the Restoration Plan for the					
Project, which will be submitted to the resource agencies					
and subject to agency approval as part of the regulatory					
permit applications, prior to Project construction					
activities. Temporary impacts to non-native riparian					
habitats would be restored using cuttings from native					
riparian trees and shrubs within the Project area following					
construction. On-site restoration areas would be					
monitored for a period of 5 years following restoration to					
ensure restoration activities are meeting success criteria					
identified in the Restoration Plan. Any temporarily					
impacted riparian habitat that is not restored will be					
mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site.					
BIO-6: Riparian Habitat Compensatory Mitigation.	Mitigation	Post Construction	Construction		
Permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat will be			personnel		
mitigated through permittee responsible mitigation in the					
form of establishment, restoration, and/or enhancement					

of riparian habitat at a suitable location to provide	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of Habitat.					
Compensatory mitigation will be provided at a ratio of 2:1					
for permanent impacts and at a ratio of 1:1 for temporal					
loss of LBV nesting habitat.					
Temporary impacts to on-site native habitat will be					
restored where feasible. A Restoration Plan will be					
developed to define the approach for onsite restoration					
and will include erosion control measures, willow cutting					
planting plan, hydroseeding palette and methods, and a					
maintenance and monitoring methodology. In addition,					
any temporarily impacted riparian habitat that is not					
restored will be mitigated at 1.1 ratio off site.					
Compensatory mitigation will be accomplished within the					
WRCMSHCP Planning Area. The preferred compensatory					
mitigation option is to implement permittee-responsible					
mitigation at the SAWA Mockingbird Conservation					
Easement, located adjacent to the Project south of the					
intersection of Markham Street and Roosevelt Street, or					
on Western Riverside County Regional Conservation					
Authority-owned parcels associated with Temescal Creek.					
Details regarding the off-site mitigation location, long-					
term management entity, and mitigation categories will be					
included in a HMMP that will be prepared for the Project					
and submitted to regulatory agencies (USFWS, CDFW,					
USACE, and RWQCB) for approval prior to Project					
commencement. Mitigation will include establishment or					
restoration of in-kind habitat to support listed species that					
occur in the on-site habitat being impacted (i.e.,					
mitigation for impacts to occupied LBV habitat will include					
habitat suitable to support foraging and nesting LBV).					
BIO-7: Crotch's Bumble Bee Survey. This measure will	Avoidance	Within one year	County-appointed		
only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain		prior to construction	Biologist		
a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species					
prior to Project implementation. Within one year prior to					
construction, a habitat assessment for Crotch's bumble					
bee will be conducted within the Project area and an					
appropriate survey buffer be established by a qualified					
biologist with experience surveying for and observing					
Crotch's bumble bee. If the qualified biologist determines					
that suitable habitat is present, surveys shall be					
--	-----------	------------------	------------------	--	--
conducted to determine the presence/absence of Crotch's					
bumble bee. Surveys shall be conducted during flying					
season when the species is most likely to be detected					
above ground, between March 1 to September 1 (Thorp					
et al. 1983). Survey results, including negative findings,					
shall be submitted to the CDFW prior to implementing					
Project-related ground-disturbing activities and/or					
vegetation removal where there may be impacts to					
Crotch's bumble bee. At minimum, a survey report should					
provide the following: a) A description and map of the					
survey area, focusing on areas that could provide suitable					
habitat for Crotch's bumble bee; b) Field survey conditions					
that should include name(s) of qualified entomologist(s)					
and brief qualifications; date and time of survey; survey					
duration; general weather conditions; survey goals, and					
species searched; c) Map(s) showing the location of					
nests/colonies; and, d) A description of physical (e.g., soil,					
moisture, slope) and biological (e.g., plant composition)					
conditions where each nest/colony is found. A sufficient					
description of biological conditions, primarily impacted					
habitat, should include native plant composition (e.g.,					
density, cover, and abundance) within impacted habitat					
(e.g., species list separated by vegetation class; density,					
cover, and abundance of each species).					
BIO-8: Crotch's Bumble Bee Avoidance. This measure will	Avoidance	Prior to Project	County-appointed		
only be implemented should Crotch's bumble bee remain		implementation	entomologist		
a candidate for listing or become a state-listed species					
prior to Project implementation. If Crotch's bumble bee is					
detected during the Crotch's bumble bee survey, the					
County shall ensure that a plan to fully avoid impacts to					
Crotch's bumble bee be developed in consultation with a					
qualified entomologist during final design. The plan shall					
include effective, specific, enforceable, and feasible					
measures. An avoidance plan should be submitted to					
CDFW prior to implementing Project-related ground-					
disturbing activities and/or vegetation removal where					
there may be impacts to Crotch's bumble bee. If Crotch's					
bumble bees are determined to be present within the					
Project area and it is determined the species will be					
impacted by Project implementation, appropriate					
mitigation shall be determined in consultation with CDFW.					

BIO-9: Crotch's Bumble Bee Incidental Take Permit. This	Avoidance	Prior to Project	County-appointed		
measure will only be implemented should Crotch's		implementation	entomologist		
bumble bee remain a candidate for listing or become a					
state-listed species prior to Project implementation. If					
Crotch's bumble bee is detected during the survey					
(required by Measure BIO-7), and if impacts to Crotch's					
bumble bee cannot be feasibly avoided during Project					
construction, the County shall ensure that the designated					
qualified entomologist coordinate with CDFW to obtain					
appropriate permit for incidental take of Crotch's bumble					
bee prior to commencement of Project construction in					
habitat occupied by Crotch's bumble bee. The incidental					
take permit would quantify and provide appropriate					
mitigation for impacts on Crotch's bumble bee habitat.					
Mitigation for impacts to Crotch's bumble bee habitat					
would be at a ratio comparable to the Project's level of					
impacts.					
BIO-10: Riparian Bird Habitat Removal. Prior to	Avoidance	Prior to construction	County-appointed		
construction, suitable habitat for SWFL and LBV within the			Biologist		
Project area will be removed between September 1 and					
February 14, outside of the nesting season. If it cannot					
occur outside nesting season the Project biologist will					
survey the area and delineate buffers suitable to avoid					
take if nesting birds, including foraging SWFL or LBV or					
active LBV nests, are found.					
BIO-11: Pre-construction Surveys and Monitoring for	Minimization	No more than 7 days	County-appointed		
Least Bell's Vireo. Should construction activities begin		prior to construction	Biologist		
during the LBV nesting season (March 15 to August 15), a					
qualified biologist will conduct three separate days of					
surveys, no more than 7 days prior to construction, to					
identify and map LBV nesting locations. The qualified					
biologist will also conduct weekly surveys throughout the					
LBV nesting season in all suitable LBV habitat within 500-					
feet of the active work area. In the event that LBV nesting					
activity is detected within 500-feet of the work area, if					
teasible, a 500-toot butter shall be established between					
construction activities and the approximate edge of the					
LBV territory, to avoid affects to nesting LBV. If this is not					
possible, and the qualified biologist deems that					
construction activities can continue without disturbing					
nesting LBV, nests shall be monitored daily by the					
qualified biologist during all construction activities. If the					

biologist determines that the Project-related activities are					
altering LBV behavior, e.g., causing adults to flush from					
the nest more frequently, Project activities shall be halted					
within 500-feet of the active nest. Prior to re-					
commencement of work within 500-feet of the active					
nest, CDFW and USFWS will be notified and measures to					
reduce noise or noise impacts will be implemented in					
coordination with CDFW and USFWS. Measures may					
include increasing or reestablishing a nest buffer, installing					
noise barriers, or implementing noise attenuation					
measures (e.g., reducing the number of construction					
vehicles or using different types of construction vehicles;					
reducing the number of noisy activities that occur					
simultaneously) as feasible. These measures will remain in					
place until all nestlings have fledged, or construction					
activities have moved 500-feet beyond that area of LBV					
activity. Construction activities that alter LBV behavior will					
cease operation until effective noise attenuation measures					
are in place to the extent practicable. The results of LBV					
preconstruction survey, weekly surveys, and monitoring					
will be reported weekly to CDFW and USFWS.					
BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field,	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
<b>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys</b> . Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist		
BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active. BIO-13: Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance. Should	Minimization	Prior to construction Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist County-appointed		
<ul> <li>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.</li> <li>BIO-13: Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance. Should nesting CAGN be found on or in the immediate vicinity</li> </ul>	Minimization	Prior to construction Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist County-appointed Biologist		
<ul> <li>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.</li> <li>BIO-13: Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance. Should nesting CAGN be found on or in the immediate vicinity (approximately 300-feet) of the Project area during</li> </ul>	Minimization	Prior to construction Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist County-appointed Biologist		
<ul> <li>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.</li> <li>BIO-13: Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance. Should nesting CAGN be found on or in the immediate vicinity (approximately 300-feet) of the Project area during surveys conducted in compliance with Measure BIO-11,</li> </ul>	Minimization	Prior to construction Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist County-appointed Biologist		
<ul> <li>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.</li> <li>BIO-13: Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance. Should nesting CAGN be found on or in the immediate vicinity (approximately 300-feet) of the Project area during surveys conducted in compliance with Measure BIO-11, the qualified biologist shall establish an appropriate buffer</li> </ul>	Minimization	Prior to construction Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist County-appointed Biologist		
<ul> <li>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.</li> <li>BIO-13: Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance. Should nesting CAGN be found on or in the immediate vicinity (approximately 300-feet) of the Project area during surveys conducted in compliance with Measure BIO-11, the qualified biologist shall establish an appropriate buffer to prevent alteration of nesting CAGN behavior. No</li> </ul>	Minimization	Prior to construction Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist County-appointed Biologist		
<ul> <li>BIO-12: Nesting Bird Surveys. Vegetation removal or tree (native or exotic) trimming activities will occur outside of the nesting bird season. Other than for suitable LBV habitat, in the event that vegetation clearing is necessary during the nesting season (i.e., February 15 through August 31), a qualified biologist will conduct a preconstruction survey to determine whether any active bird nests are present. Should nesting birds be found, an exclusionary buffer shall be established by a qualified biologist. This buffer shall be clearly marked in the field, and construction or clearing shall not be conducted within this zone until the qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no longer active.</li> <li>BIO-13: Coastal California Gnatcatcher Avoidance. Should nesting CAGN be found on or in the immediate vicinity (approximately 300-feet) of the Project area during surveys conducted in compliance with Measure BIO-11, the qualified biologist shall establish an appropriate buffer to prevent alteration of nesting CAGN behavior. No construction or clearing shall be conducted within the</li> </ul>	Minimization	Prior to construction Prior to construction	County-appointed Biologist County-appointed Biologist		

determines that the young have fledged, or the nest is no					
longer active.					
BIO-14: Burrowing Owl Preconstruction Survey. Prior to	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed		
construction, a survey for BUOW will be conducted by a			Biologist		
qualified biologist within 30 days prior to vegetation					
clearing/grading. If BUOW are found within 500 feet (150					
meters) of the Project area during the preconstruction					
survey, the County or its designated representative will					
immediately inform and coordinate with CDFW and					
USFWS to identify and implement applicable measures					
provided in WRCMSHCP BUOW Conservation Objective 6,					
as provided in Volume 1, Appendix E of the WRCMSHCP.					
Appropriate measures to avoid take of active BUOW nests					
may include establishment of an appropriate buffer until					
BUOW young have fledged or BUOW no longer occupy the					
burrow. If any burrows are identified within the Project					
area, passive relocation would be conducted by a qualified					
avian biologist outside of the nesting season, if necessary.					
BIO-15: Bat Roosting Habitat Removal. Prior to tree	Avoidance	Prior and during	County-appointed		
removal or trimming, large trees and snags shall be		construction	Biologist		
examined by a qualified bat biologist to ensure that no			_		
roosting bats are present. If trimming or removal of					
mature trees and snags is necessary for Project					
construction, trimming/removal activities should be					
performed outside of the general bat maternity season,					
which occurs from March 1st through October 1st, to					
avoid direct effects to nonvolant (flightless) young that					
may roost in trees within the study area. If trimming or					
removal of trees during the general bat maternity season					
cannot be avoided, a qualified biologist will monitor tree					
removal unless nighttime surveys conducted within one					
week of removal indicates no tree-roosting bat activity					
within the study area.					
Palm frond trimming, if necessary, shall be conducted					
outside the bat maternity season to avoid potential					
mortality of flightless young. Since western yellow bats					
and western mastiff bats may be present in untrimmed					
palm tree fronds, a qualified bat biologist shall be present					
to monitor frond removal. Dead fronds shall be removed					
under the guidance of the bat biologist, following the two-					
day method described below.					

DAY 1: Only trim the outermost fronds may be trimmed (no more than 50 percent of the palm fronds) using hand tools or chainsaws only (no dozers, backhoes, cranes, or other heavy equipment, other than to provide access for tree cutters using chainsaws). DAY 2: The palm tree must be felled. Day 2 activities must occur the day immediately following the Day 1 activities. To accomplish this, work may need to be phased and Day 1/Day 2 steps can be repeated. Should bats emerge during the tree trimming, trimming activities must temporarily cease at the individual tree until bats are no longer activity emerging from the tree					
actively emerging from the tree.	Minimization	Dries to construction	County appointed		
program will be developed and implemented to minimize the importation of non-native plant material during and after construction. Eradication strategies from the weed abatement program will be employed during construction	Minimization	Prior to construction	Biologist		
activities, should an invasion occur.					
<b>DBESP-2:</b> During construction, when work is conducted during the fire season (as identified by the Riverside County Fire Authority) adjacent to any vegetation, the appropriate firefighting equipment (e.g., extinguishers, shovels, and water tankers) will be made available on site during all phases of Project construction to minimize the potential for human-caused wildfires. Shields, protective mats, and/or other fire preventive methods will be used during grinding, welding, and other spark-inducing activities. Personnel trained in fire hazards, preventive actions, and responses to fires will advise the construction contractors regarding fire risk from all construction- related activities.	Minimization	During construction	Riverside County Fire Authority		
<b>DBESP-3:</b> During construction, all equipment maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any other such activities will occur in developed or designated non-sensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland areas will be located so as to prevent runoff from any spills from entering waters of the U.S. or CDFW-regulated streambed.	Avoidance	During construction	Construction personnel		
DBESP-4: Prior to construction a SWPPP and soil erosion	Avoidance	Prior to construction	Stormwater Pollution		
and sedimentation plan will be developed to minimize			Manager		

erosion and identify specific pollution prevention					
measures that will eliminate or control potential point and					
non-point pollution sources on site during construction.					
The SWPPP will identify specific best management					
practices to be implemented during construction so as not					
to cause or contribute to an exceedance of any water					
quality standard.					
DBESP-5: Riparian Habitat Compensatory Mitigation.	Mitigation	Post Construction	County-appointed		
Permanent direct impacts on riparian habitat (i.e. black			Biologist		
willow woodland, mule fat thickets, cattail marsh,					
cocklebur patches, and perennial pepper weed patches)					
will be mitigated through permittee responsible mitigation					
in the form of establishment, restoration, and/or					
enhancement of riparian habitat at a suitable location to					
provide Biologically Equivalent or Superior Preservation of					
Habitat. Compensatory mitigation will be provided at a					
ratio of 2:1 for permanent impacts to riparian habitat.					
Impacts to riparian habitat will be mitigated for in kind					
(i.e., impacts to riparian woodland habitat would be					
mitigated for with riparian woodland; herbaceous riparian					
habitat would be mitigated for with herbaceous riparian					
habitat) or with a higher quality habitat. Mitigation for					
riparian habitat that also supports nesting LBV (i.e., black					
willow woodland and mule fat thickets) will be mitigated					
through in-kind replacement and will be required to					
demonstrate that the replacement habitat supports					
nesting LBV.					
Temporary impacts to on-site native habitat will be					
restored where feasible. A Restoration Plan will be					
developed to define the approach for onsite restoration					
and will include erosion control measures, willow cutting					
planting plan, hydroseeding palette and methods, and a					
maintenance and monitoring methodology. In addition,					
any riparian habitat that is not restored will be mitigated					
at 1.1 ratio off site. Compensatory mitigation will be					
accomplished within the WRCMSHCP Planning Area. The					
preferred compensatory mitigation option is to implement					
permittee-responsible mitigation at the SAWA					
Mockingbird Conservation Easement, located adjacent to					
the Project south of the intersection of Markham Street					
and Roosevelt Street, or on Western Riverside County			1		

Regional Conservation Authority-owned parcels					
associated with Temescal Creek.					
Details regarding the off-site mitigation site location, long-					
term management entity, and mitigation categories will be					
included in a Habitat Mitigation and Monitoring Plan					
(HMMP) that will be prepared for the Project and					
submitted to regulatory agencies (USFWS, CDFW, USACE,					
and RWQCB) for approval prior to Project					
commencement. Mitigation will include establishment or					
restoration of in-kind habitat to support listed species that					
occur in habitat being impacted (i.e., mitigation for					
impacts to occupied LBV habitat will include habitat					
suitable to support foraging and nesting LBV).					
DBESP-6: Riparian Bird Habitat Removal. Prior to	Avoidance	Prior to construction	County-appointed		
construction, suitable habitat for SWFL and LBV within the			Biologist		
Project area will be removed between September 1 and			-		
February 14, outside of the nesting season. If it cannot					
occur outside nesting season the Project biologist will					
survey the area and delineate buffers suitable to avoid					
take if nesting birds, including foraging SWFL or LBV or					
active LBV nests, are found.					
DBESP-7: Pre-construction Surveys and Monitoring for	Avoidance	No more than 7 days	County-appointed		
Least Bell's Vireo. Should construction activities begin		prior to construction	Biologist		
during the LBV nesting season (March 15 to August 15), a		•	-		
qualified biologist will conduct three separate days of					
surveys, no more than 7 days prior to construction, to					
identify and map LBV nesting locations. The qualified					
biologist will also conduct weekly surveys throughout the					
LBV nesting season in all suitable LBV habitat within 500-					
feet of the active work area. In the event that LBV nesting					
activity is detected within 500-feet of the work area, if					
feasible, a 500-foot buffer shall be established between					
construction activities and the approximate edge of the					
LBV territory, to avoid affects to nesting LBV. If this is not					
possible, and the qualified biologist deems that					
construction activities can continue without disturbing					
nesting LBV, nests shall be monitored daily by the					
qualified biologist during all construction activities. If the					
biologist determines that the Project-related activities are					
altering LBV behavior, e.g., causing adults to flush from					
the nest more frequently, Project activities shall be halted					

within 500-feet of the active nest. Prior to re-					
commencement of work within 500-feet of the active					
nest, CDFW and USFWS will be notified and measures to					
reduce noise or noise impacts will be implemented in					
coordination with CDFW and USFWS. Measures may					
include increasing or reestablishing a nest buffer, installing					
noise barriers, or implementing noise attenuation					
measures (e.g., reducing the number of construction					
vehicles or using different types of construction vehicles;					
reducing the number of noisy activities that occur					
simultaneously) as feasible. These measures will remain in					
place until all nestlings have fledged or construction					
activities have moved 500-feet beyond that area of LBV					
activity. Construction activities that alter LBV behavior will					
cease operation until effective noise attenuation measures					
are in place to the extent practicable. The results of LBV					
preconstruction survey, weekly surveys, and monitoring					
will be reported weekly to CDFW and USFWS.					
DBESP-8: Burrowing Owl Preconstruction Survey. Prior to	Minimization	Prior to construction	County-appointed		
construction, a survey for BUOW will be conducted by a			Biologist		
qualified biologist within 30 days prior to vegetation					
clearing/grading. If BUOW are found within 500 feet (150					
meters) of the Project area during the preconstruction					
survey, the County or its designated representative will					
immediately inform and coordinate with CDFW and					
USFWS to identify and implement applicable measures					
provided in WRCMSHCP BUOW Conservation Objective 6,					
as provided in Volume 1, Appendix E of the WRCMSHCP.					
The qualified biologist shall determine appropriate					
measures necessary to avoid take of active BUOW nests,					
which may include establishment of an appropriate buffer					
until BUOW young have fledged or BUOW no longer					
occupy the burrow. If any burrows are identified within					
the Project area, a qualified avian biologist would conduct					
passive relocation outside of the nesting season, if					
necessary.					
Cultural					
ARC-1: County appointed archaeological and tribal	Mitigation	Prior to	County-appointed		
monitors will be present during any ground disturbing		commencement of	Archaeologist/ Tribal		
activities along Markham Street until excavation of		construction	monitors		
previously undisturbed native soil has been completed.					

Participating tribes will rotate their schedule so that one					
tribal monitor at a time is on the Project site during any					
excavation.					
Prior to commencement of construction, there will be a					
meeting in which the construction staff tribal monitor(s)					
archaeological monitor/consultant and Resident Engineer					
(RE) will conduct preconstruction archaeological resource					
sensitivity and awareness training. This meeting will also					
discuss the monitoring and safety requirements. It is					
critical that all parties understand the methods and goals					
critical that all parties understand the methods and goals					
as well as the protocols for the inducer tent discovery of					
archaeological resources, tribal resources, and/or numan					
remains during construction. Record of this meeting shall					
be placed in the RE file.					
The archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal					
monitor, shall have the authority to temporarily divert,					
redirect or halt the ground disturbance activities to allow					
for identification, evaluation, and potential recovery of					
cultural resources. Should buried cultural deposits be					
encountered, the archaeological monitor shall contact the					
County Archaeologist immediately, and in coordination					
with the THPOs of consulting tribes, will evaluate the					
resource and formulate a plan to move forward.					
<b>ARC-2:</b> If archaeological and/or tribal resources are	Mitigation	During Construction	County-appointed		
encountered during construction, the archaeological			Archaeologist/ Tribal		
monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor shall:			monitors/		
			Archaeological		
<ul> <li>Halt all work within a 60-foot radius and shall</li> </ul>			monitor		
immediately inform the RE.					
<ul> <li>Following notification, the archaeological monitor,</li> </ul>					
in coordination with the tribal monitor, will make					
a preliminary assessment of the discovery to					
determine whether the find is an isolated artifact					
or recent deposit. If the find is determined to be					
isolated or recent, construction will be allowed to					
resume.					
<ul> <li>Should the monitor(s) determine the discovery is</li> </ul>					
potentially significant, the monitor(s) shall contact					
the County Archaeologist immediately to evaluate					

the discovery and if necessary, formulate					
appropriate mitigation measures.					
<ul> <li>If the discovery contains tribal resources, all</li> </ul>					
consulting tribes shall be contacted and informed					
of the discovery. The tribal resource discovery.					
including human remains shall not be disturbed					
(i.e. photographed videoed or moved) until the					
County Archaeologist and consulting tribes have					
agrood upon appropriate treatment measures					
agreed upon appropriate treatment measures.					
If archaeological and/or tribal resources are encountered					
anywhere during Project construction when no monitor(s)					
are present, work in the area must halt within a 60-foot					
radius until the monitor(s) can evaluate the nature and					
significance of the find and formulate appropriate					
evaluation and/or mitigation measures					
Once the agreed upon treatment measures have been					
implemented, construction activity can resume in that					
area.					
<b>ARC-3:</b> In the event that human remains are discovered	Mitigation	During Construction	County Coroner/		
during construction at any time, the following provisions	Millibulion		County-appointed		
shall apply:			Archaeologist / Tribal		
			monitors/		
<ul> <li>State Health and Safety Code Section 7050 5</li> </ul>			Archaoological		
State Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5			Archaeological		
states that no further disturbance and an			monitor		
construction activity shall immediately be halted					
within 60 feet of the discovery until the County					
Coroner has made a determination of origin and					
disposition pursuant to Public Resources Code					
Section 5097.98. The County Coroner must be					
notified of the find immediately. If the remains are					
determined to be Native American and not under					
the coroner's jurisdiction, within 24 hours the					
coroner will notify the Native American Heritage					
Commission (NAHC), which will determine and					
notify a Most Likely Descendant (MLD). During this					
time all remains, associated soils, and artifacts will					
remain in situ, and shall be protected from public					
viewing. The County will take appropriate					
measures to protect the discovery site from					
disturbance during any negotiations. This may					

include restricting access to the discovery site and				
the need to hire 24-hour security. With the				
permission of the landowner or his/her authorized				
representative, the MLD may inspect the site of				
the discovery. The MLD shall complete the				
inspection within 48 hours of notification by the				
NAHC. The MLD may recommend scientific				
removal and nondestructive analysis of human				
remains and items associated with Native				
American burials. Work will be suspended within a				
60-foot radius of the human remains until the				
MLD's recommendations are implemented.				
• A meeting shall be convened between the County				
Archaeologist, archaeological monitor, and the				
MLD to discuss the significance of the find. At the				
meeting with the aforementioned parties, a				
decision is to be made as to the appropriate				
treatment (documentation, recovery, avoidance,				
etc.) for the discovery. Resource evaluations shall				
be limited to non-destructive analysis.				
<ul> <li>Further ground disturbance shall not resume</li> </ul>				
within the area of the discovery until the				
appropriate treatment has been accomplished.				
The County Archaeologist will work with the MLD				
in regard to the treatment of the remains and all				
associated funerary objects and will ensure that				
any identified human remains will be secured				
while they are left in place and while treatment				
decisions are in progress. Information concerning				
the discovery shall not be disclosed pursuant to				
the specific exemption set forth in California				
Government Code Section 6254.5(e).				
<ul> <li>The County shall relinquish ownership of all tribal</li> </ul>				
resources, including sacred items, burial goods,				
and all Native American archaeological artifacts				
and non-human remains found within County				
ROW through one or more of the following				
methods and provide evidence of same:				
. A pre-determined reburial area will be determined prior				
o construction. This shall include measures and				
provisions to protect the future pre-determined reburial	1	1		

area within the Project property from any future impacts.			
The measures for reburial shall be culturally appropriate			
as determined through consultation with the consulting			
tribes and include, at least, the following:			
i. Measures to protect the reburial area from any			
future impacts in perpetuity.			
ii. Reburial shall not occur until all required			
cataloguing (including a complete photographic record)			
and analysis have been completed on the cultural			
resources, with the exception that sacred and ceremonial			
items, burial goods, and Native American human remains			
are excluded. No cataloguing, analysis, or other studies			
may occur on human remains, grave goods, and sacred			
and ceremonial items. Any reburial processes shall be			
culturally appropriate and approved by the consulting			
tribes.			
iii. Listing of contents and location of the reburial shall			
be confidential and not subject to a Public Records			
Request.			
iv. The County shall establish a curation agreement			
with an appropriate qualified repository within Riverside			
County that meets federal standards per 36 CFR Part 79			
and therefore would be professionally curated and made			
available to other archaeologists/researchers for further			
study. The collections and associated records shall be			
transferred, including title, to an appropriate curation			
facility within Riverside County, to be accompanied by			
payment of the fees necessary for permanent curation.			
b. Should reburial of collected cultural items be preferred,			
it shall not occur until after the Archaeological Resources			
Monitoring Report/Data Recovery Report has been			
submitted to the County. Should curation be preferred,			
the County is responsible for all costs and the repository			
and curation method shall be described in the			
Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report/Data			
Recovery Report.			
c. Tribal resources, including sacred items, burial goods,			
and all Native American archaeological artifacts and non-			
human remains found within County ROW that are to be			
reburied are to be kept safe on site on a locked and secure			

location within the RE's office (if feasible) until disposition					
of such tribal resources takes place for reburial.					
<ul> <li>Artifacts found outside the County ROW are not</li> </ul>					
subject to these requirements and are to be					
relinquished to the consulting tribes by the					
property owner for suitable curation or					
ownership. It is the responsibility of the consulting					
tribes to come to agreement with the property					
owner.					
In the event that the County Archaeologist and MLD are in					
disagreement regarding the disposition of the remains,					
State law will apply, and the median and decision process					
will occur with the NAHC (see Public Resources Code					
Section 5097.98(e) and 5097.94(k)).					
ARC-4: Should additional actions be proposed outside the	Mitigation	Prior to construction	County-appointed		
currently defined Project area that have the potential for			Archaeologist/ Tribal		
additional subsurface disturbance, further cultural			monitors/		
resource management may be required.			Archaeological		
			monitor		
Geology and Soils					
DBESP-4: Prior to construction a SWPPP and soil erosion	Avoidance	Prior to construction	Stormwater Pollution		
and sedimentation plan will be developed to minimize			Manager		
erosion and identify specific pollution prevention					
measures that will eliminate or control potential point and					
non-point pollution sources on site during construction.					
The SWPPP will identify specific best management					
practices to be implemented during construction so as not					
to cause or contribute to an exceedance of any water					
quality standard.					
Hazards and Hazardous Materials					
HAZ-1: Polychlorinated Biphenyls: Soil sampling for PCBs	Avoidance	Prior to construction	Project		
and heavy metals will be conducted in soil in unpaved			Engineer/Resident		
locations surrounding utility pole-mounted transformers			Engineer/Construction		
that would be disturbed as a result of the Project prior to			Contractor		
ground disturbing activities for proper management.					
HAZ-2: Treated Wood Waste: Treated wood objects are	Avoidance	Prior to construction	Project		
handled as treated wood waste and are managed per			Engineer/Resident		
Chapter 34, Title 22 California Code of Regulations			Engineer/Construction		
Sections 67386.1 through 67386.12, "Alternative			Contractor		
Management Standards for Treated Wood Waste." All					
treated wood waste should be properly disposed at a					

landfill permitted to accept treated wood waste. In					
addition, it could not be determined how long the					
wooden utility poles had been established and therefore,					
a potential for elevated levels of arsenic is possible in the					
soil due to the wood preservatives. Soil in unpaved					
locations surrounding wooden utility poles that would be					
disturbed as a result of the Project will be sampled for					
arsenic and semi volatiles for proper management.					
HAZ-3: Pesticides: Soil sampling for pesticides will be	Avoidance	Prior to construction	Project		
conducted in soil on historical and existing agricultural			Engineer/Resident		
land use areas and nurseries that would be disturbed as a			Engineer/Construction		
result of the Project prior to ground disturbing activities			Contractor		
for proper management.					
T-1: Traffic Control Plan (TCP): During final design, a TCP	Avoidance	During final design/	Project		
will be prepared for the Project. The goals of the TCP		During Construction	Engineer/Resident		
during Project construction will include minimizing traffic			Engineer/Construction		
delay or time spent in queue; maintaining traffic flow			Contractor		
throughout the Project area and the surrounding areas;					
and providing a safe environment for the work force and					
motoring public.					
Hydrology and Water Quality					
<b>DBESP-4:</b> Prior to construction a SWPPP and soil erosion	Avoidance	Prior to construction	Stormwater Pollution		
and sedimentation plan will be developed to minimize			Manager		
erosion and identify specific pollution prevention			Ū.		
measures that will eliminate or control potential point and					
non-point pollution sources on site during construction.					
The SWPPP will identify specific best management					
practices to be implemented during construction so as not					
to cause or contribute to an exceedance of any water					
quality standard.					
Noise					
N-1: Construction Schedule. Limit roadway construction	Avoidance	During Construction	Construction		
activities to the exempted daytime hours in the Riverside		0	Contractor		
County Code, Ordinance No. 847, which are 6:00 AM to					
6:00 PM during the months of June through September					
and 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM during the months of October					
through May (except weekends and holidays).					
N-2: Construction Equipment. All construction equipment	Avoidance	During Construction	Construction		
should be outfitted with manufacture-recommended		0	Contractor		
mufflers and silencers.					

N-3: Idling. Maintaining equipment in an idling mode	Avoidance	During Construction	Construction		
should be minimized.			Contractor		
Public Services					
T-1: Traffic Control Plan (TCP): During final design, a TCP will be prepared for the Project. The goals of the TCP during Project construction will include minimizing traffic delay or time spent in queue; maintaining traffic flow throughout the Project area and the surrounding areas; and providing a safe environment for the work force and motoring public.	Avoidance	During final design/ During Construction	Project Engineer/Resident Engineer/Construction Contractor		
Transportation					
T-1: Traffic Control Plan (TCP): During final design, a TCP will be prepared for the Project. The goals of the TCP during Project construction will include minimizing traffic delay or time spent in queue; maintaining traffic flow throughout the Project area and the surrounding areas; and providing a safe environment for the work force and motoring public.	Avoidance	During final design/ During Construction	Project Engineer/Resident Engineer/Construction Contractor		
Tribal Cultural Resources					
<b>ARC-1:</b> County appointed archaeological and tribal monitors will be present during any ground disturbing activities along Markham Street until excavation of previously undisturbed native soil has been completed. Participating tribes will rotate their schedule so that one tribal monitor at a time is on the Project site during any excavation.	Mitigation	Prior to commencement of construction	County-appointed Archaeologist/ Tribal monitors		
Prior to commencement of construction, there will be a meeting in which the construction staff, tribal monitor(s), archaeological monitor/consultant, and Resident Engineer (RE) will conduct preconstruction archaeological resource sensitivity and awareness training. This meeting will also discuss the monitoring and safety requirements. It is critical that all parties understand the methods and goals as well as the protocols for the inadvertent discovery of archaeological resources, tribal resources, and/or human remains during construction. Record of this meeting shall be placed in the RE file.					
The archaeological monitor, in coordination with the tribal monitor, shall have the authority to temporarily divert,					

redirect or halt the ground disturbance activities to allow					
for identification, evaluation, and potential recovery of					
cultural resources. Should buried cultural deposits be					
encountered, the archaeological monitor shall contact the					
County Archaeologist immediately, and in coordination					
with the THPOs of consulting tribes, will evaluate the					
resource and formulate a plan to move forward.					
ARC-2: If archaeological and/or tribal resources are	Mitigation	During Construction	County-appointed		
encountered during construction, the archaeological			Archaeologist/Tribal		
monitor in coordination with the tribal monitor shall			monitors/		
Halt all work within a 60-foot radius and shall			Archaeological		
immediately inform the RE			monitor		
Following potification, the archaeological monitor			monitor		
in coordination with the tribal monitor will make					
a preliminary assessment of the discovery to					
determine whether the find is an isolated artifact					
or recent deposit. If the find is determined to be					
isolated or recent, construction will be allowed to					
isolated of recent, construction will be allowed to					
resume.					
<ul> <li>Should the monitor(s) determine the discovery is</li> </ul>					
potentially significant, the monitor(s) shall contact					
the County Archaeologist immediately to evaluate					
the discovery and if necessary, formulate					
appropriate mitigation measures.					
If the discovery contains tribal resources, all					
consulting tribes shall be contacted and informed					
of the discovery. The tribal resource discovery,					
including human remains, shall not be disturbed					
(i.e., photographed, videoed, or moved) until the					
County Archaeologist and consulting tribes have					
agreed upon appropriate treatment measures.					
If archaeological and/or tribal resources are encountered					
anywhere during Project construction when no monitor(s)					
are present, work in the area must halt within a 60-foot					
radius until the monitor(s) can evaluate the nature and					
significance of the find and formulate appropriate					
evaluation and/or mitigation measures.					
Once the agreed upon treatment measures have been					
implemented construction activity can resume in that					
area					
urcu.					

				-	
ARC-3: In the event that human remains are discovered	Mitigation	During Construction	County Coroner/		
during construction at any time, the following provisions			County-appointed		
shall apply:			Archaeologist/ Tribal		
<ul> <li>State Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5</li> </ul>			monitors/		
states that no further disturbance and all			Archaeological		
construction activity shall immediately be halted			monitor		
within 60 feet of the discovery until the County					
Coroner has made a determination of origin and					
disposition pursuant to Public Resources Code					
Section 5097.98. The County Coroner must be					
notified of the find immediately. If the remains are					
determined to be Native American and not under					
the coroner's jurisdiction, within 24 hours the					
coroner will notify the Native American Heritage					
Commission (NAHC), which will determine and					
notify a Most Likely Descendant (MLD). During this					
time all remains, associated soils, and artifacts will					
remain in situ, and shall be protected from public					
viewing. The County will take appropriate					
measures to protect the discovery site from					
disturbance during any negotiations. This may					
include restricting access to the discovery site and					
the need to hire 24-hour security. With the					
permission of the landowner or his/her authorized					
representative, the MLD may inspect the site of					
the discovery. The MLD shall complete the					
inspection within 48 hours of notification by the					
NAHC. The MLD may recommend scientific					
removal and nondestructive analysis of human					
remains and items associated with Native					
American burials. Work will be suspended within a					
60-foot radius of the human remains until the					
MLD's recommendations are implemented.					
A meeting shall be convened between the County					
Archaeologist, archaeological monitor, and the					
MLD to discuss the significance of the find. At the					
meeting with the aforementioned parties, a					
decision is to be made as to the appropriate					
treatment (documentation, recovery, avoidance,					
etc.) for the discovery. Resource evaluations shall					
be limited to non-destructive analysis.					

•	Further ground disturbance shall not resume			
	within the area of the discovery until the			
	appropriate treatment has been accomplished.			
•	The County Archaeologist will work with the MLD			
	in regard to the treatment of the remains and all			
	associated funerary objects and will ensure that			
	any identified human remains will be secured			
	while they are left in place and while treatment			
	decisions are in progress. Information concerning			
	the discovery shall not be disclosed pursuant to			
	the specific exemption set forth in California			
	Government Code Section 6254.5(e).			
•	The County shall relinquish ownership of all tribal			
	resources, including sacred items, burial goods,			
	and all Native American archaeological artifacts			
	and non-human remains found within County			
	ROW through one or more of the following			
	methods and provide evidence of same:			
a. A pr	e-determined reburial area will be determined prior			
to con	struction. This shall include measures and			
provisi	ons to protect the future pre-determined reburial			
area w	ithin the Project property from any future impacts.			
The m	easures for reburial shall be culturally appropriate			
as dete	ermined through consultation with the consulting			
tribes	and include, at least, the following:			
i. I	Neasures to protect the reburial area from any			
future	impacts in perpetuity.			
ii.	Reburial shall not occur until all required			
catalo	guing (including a complete photographic record)			
and ar	alysis have been completed on the cultural			
resour	ces, with the exception that sacred and ceremonial			
items,	burial goods, and Native American human remains			
are exe	cluded. No cataloguing, analysis, or other studies			
may o	ccur on human remains, grave goods, and sacred			
and ce	remonial items. Any reburial processes shall be			
cultura	Ily appropriate and approved by the consulting			
tribes.				
iii.	Listing of contents and location of the reburial shall			
be con	fidential and not subject to a Public Records			
Reque	st.			

in The County shall establish a superior associate					
IV. The County shall establish a curation agreement					
County that reacts for development of a reaction of the reacti					
County that meets rederal standards per 36 CFR Part 79					
and therefore would be professionally curated and made					
available to other archaeologists/researchers for further					
study. The collections and associated records shall be					
transferred, including title, to an appropriate curation					
facility within Riverside County, to be accompanied by					
payment of the fees necessary for permanent curation.					
b. Should reburial of collected cultural items be preferred,					
it shall not occur until after the Archaeological Resources					
Monitoring Report/Data Recovery Report has been					
submitted to the County. Should curation be preferred,					
the County is responsible for all costs and the repository					
and curation method shall be described in the					
Archaeological Resources Monitoring Report/Data					
Recovery Report.					
c. Tribal resources, including sacred items, burial goods,					
and all Native American archaeological artifacts and non-					
human remains found within County ROW that are to be					
reburied are to be kept safe on site on a locked and secure					
location within the RE's office (if feasible) until disposition					
of such tribal resources takes place for reburial.					
Artifacts found outside the County ROW are not					
subject to these requirements and are to be					
relinguished to the consulting tribes by the					
property owner for suitable curation or					
ownership. It is the responsibility of the consulting					
tribes to come to agreement with the property					
owner					
In the event that the County Archaeologist and MLD are in					
disagrooment regarding the dispesition of the remains					
State law will apply and the median and decision process					
will occur with the NAHC (see Public Resources Code					
Section E007 08(a) and E007 04(k)					
APC A. Chauld additional actions he prepaged autoide the	Mitigation	Drier to construction	County appointed		
ARC-4: Should additional actions be proposed outside the	wingation	Prior to construction	A vehage la sist ( Tribul		
currently defined Project area that have the potential for			Archaeologist/ Iribal		
additional subsurface disturbance, further cultural			monitors/		
resource management may be required.			Archaeological		
			monitor		

Wildfire					
DBESP-3: During construction, all equipment	Avoidance	During construction	Construction		
maintenance, staging, and dispensing of fuel, oil, or any			personnel		
other such activities will occur in developed or designated					
non-sensitive upland habitat areas. The designated upland					
areas will be located so as to prevent runoff from any					
spills from entering waters of the U.S. or CDFW-regulated					
streambed.					

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.



## Appendix B. Response to Comments

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.

# 1 Response to Comments

### 1.1 Introduction

The County circulated the Draft Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration for public review and comment from May 28, 2024, until June 27,2024. A Notice of Completion was posted to the State Clearinghouse on May 28, 2024.

A public meeting was conducted on June 18, 2024, from 5:00 PM to 6:45 PM at the Woodcrest Community Library. The date, time, and location of the public meeting was included in the Notice of Availability of a Draft Initial Study and Intent to Adopt a Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration that was published in English and Spanish in two newspapers and sent to 54 property owners within a 500-foot radius of the Project. The public notice was also distributed to 2 libraries, 4 emergency response departments, 6 elected officials, 3 schools, 4 Tribes, and 48 agencies.

The public notice was published in the following newspapers on the following dates:

- The Press Enterprise: May 29, 2024
- La Prensa Hispana (Spanish): May 30, 2024

Attendees at the public meeting included local residents, property owners, and others interested in the project. No comments were submitted during the meeting by attendees. During the public review and comment period, the County received a total of 5 separate comments regarding the ISMND and/or Project. All comments were received by e-mail. Table 1-1 identifies all comments received. Each commenter has been assigned an identification number. The responses to comments received on the ISMND during the public review and comment period are provided on the following pages.

### List of Agencies, Organizations, and Individuals that Commented on the Initial Study

Table 1-1 identifies the organizations and individuals that commented on the ISMND.

Table 1-1. List of Organizations and Individuals that Commented on the Initial StudyMitigated Negative Declaration						
Comment Number	Name					
Organizations						
ORG 1	Charter Communications					
ORG 2	AT&T					
ORG 3	Southern California Edison					
Individuals						
IND 1	Sizhang (John) Xiao					
IND 2	Robert and Jenny Diaz					



## 1.2 Comments Received from Organizations

Responses to comments received from organizations are provided below.

Charter			ORG 1 Ch	narter Communications
5/29/2024 David Castro County of Riverside Transportation I 3525 14th Street Riverside, CA 92501	Department		ORG 1-1	Thank you for your comments, they have been included within the Final Environmental Document. The County has contacted Charter Communications for as-built
Requester Project: Project Name DOCK/PRISM Project Name: Conflict: Theolusia focusars second Wilth, Po	Map Request Markham Street Extension Project – Agency Notice of Availability of Draft ISMIND Markham Street Extension Project – Agency Notice of Availability of Draft ISMIND YES	tion of Augilt		information and will continue coordination with Charter Communications through the design phase to identify conflicts and mitigation prior to construction.
Please review the attached maps for There <u>ARE</u>	any possible conflicts with Charter facilities.			
We have provided maps showing wh how to deal with possible conflicts d the Construction Manager, Supervis	nere our services are located but cannot make any comment on uring construction. This type of information should come from or or Construction Coordinator for the area in question.	ORG 1-1		
If you should require any field meet please contact the Construction Mar	or any further coordination of the project with Charter nager listed below.			
Construction Manager Contact: Klump, Keith Construction Manager-Zone 12 7337 Central Ave Riverside CA 9250 951-406-1666 Keith, klump@charter.com If you have any questions about the This communication is for a project I Communications brand name, or Lep Sincerely, Dame Dolmey	94 maps provided, please contact <u>DL-socal-charter-engineering@charter.com</u> . being handled by Charter Communications or Spectrum, a Charter gacy Time Warner Cable.			
Dave Dolney Dave Dolney Sr. Manager, PACWEST Construction Charter Communications 12051 Industry Street Garden Grove, CA 92841				

### **ORG-1** Attachments







CONFLICT			ORG 2 AT&T		
🨂 at&t					
22311 Brookhurst Street Ste203 Huntington Beach Ca 92646		ORG 2-1	Thank you for your comments, they have		
June 13, 2024			been included within the Final Environmental Document The County has contacted AT&T		
County of Riverside Transportation Department Attn: David Castro 3525 14th Street Riverside, CA 92501			for as-built information and will continue coordination with AT&T through the design phase to identify conflicts and mitigation prior		
Re: Markham Street Extension, Perris, CA			to construction.		
Dear Mr. Castro,					
This is in response to your Inquiry Letter dated May 28, 2024, regarding the above referenced project.	]				
A review of your preliminary plans by AT&T Network Services (long distance) reveals there may be a <b>CONFLICT</b> with the above-mentioned project and the AT&T Transcontinental Fiber Optic Cable at this location. AT&T must review your current and/or proposed engineering drawings to insure the safety and maintenance of AT&T facilities. AT&T is willing to provide you with its as built drawings and any details AT&T has available to help avoid any conflicts with its facilities.					
Locating of AT&T's facilities must be arranged by contacting your local One-Call Utility Notification Center (Dig Alert) at 1-800-227-2600 or AT&T's Cable Hazards Center at 1-800-252-1133 no less than 2 working days in advance of any activity within the defined easement area or 10' of cable. AT&T Plant Protection Services must be contacted, and be on site prior to any proposed activities on the AT&T easement or within 10' of cable. The AT&T Plant Protection Supervisor in charge of the cable locators for the AT&T cable facilities in the area of your proposed project above is Mr. Curtis Shapazian, AT&T Network Manager OPS at GNO west. (559) 442-2252.					
All inquiries requesting AT&T Proprietary Information in Southern California, Southern Nevada and Arizona (i.e. engineering as-builts) must be forwarded with detailed engineering drawings associated with your project to:	ORG 2-1				
AT&T INQUIRIES 22311 Brookhurst Street, Suite #203 Huntington Beach, CA 9264 joef@forkertengineering.com					
Enclosed is a copy of AT&T San Bernardino to San Diego FTA cable drawings WR 34943-293 that depicts the approximate location of the AT&T cable in the general vicinity of your preliminary drawing. These as-built drawings are for informational use only in determining the approximate location of the AT&T facility. These drawings are "Proprietary Information" and should be utilized in strict confidence. PLEASE PLOT THE LOCATION OF THE AT&T CONDUIT SYSTEM ON YOUR PLAN VIEW AND PROFILE DRAWINGS AND RETURN FOR FURTHER CONFLICT REVIEW.					
Should you have any questions related to engineering as builts, information, questions or concerns regarding your proposed project, please contact Mr. Joseph Forkert at (714) 963-7964 or me at your earliest convenience.					
Sincerely, Joseph Forkert for Tanya Hernandez AT&T Cable Maintenance Engineer (619) 200-7896	1				

### **ORG 2 Attachments**





From: To: Subject: Date: Attachments:	Utility Notices Desk Castro. David RE: (External):Markham Street Extension Project – Agency Notice of Availability of Draft ISMND Wednesdey, May 29, 2024 8:19:18 AM image002.png	ORG 3 Southern California Edison				
To: Subject: Date: Attachments:	Cattor David RE: (Extensi):Markham Street Extension Project - Agency Notice of Availability of Draft ISMND Wednesday, May 29, 2024 8:19:18 AM Image002.ong FacilityMap Request/Brior Private 7-1-22.odf is email originated extensily from the <b>Extension</b> County, please request maps inapping department only does facility checks. I am not sure what this is. planning a project in your city/county, please request maps inapping department at ( <u>https://www.sce.com/partners/real- ci-locations/facilities-map-requests</u> ) first in order to identify any onflicts with the project. If you are uncertain about conflicts or dified possible conflicts with the project, then please request a eack. The enclosed letter indicates the correct areas in Edison to aps/as-builts/record drawings and/or a facility check. Maps equested from the mapping department, and all facility checks rocess through the <u>UND@sce.com</u> department. cility check is requested from the <u>UND@sce.com</u> a manager will lanner to look over the project. That cover page will be o you and the planners contact information will be on the front n. If there are questions at that point you will contact the lat was assigned. In order to prevent unnecessary delays <u>please</u> intact the planners directly unless one has been assigned to ct. checks have to be processed through the <u>UND@sce.com</u> and to Distribution, Transmission and Telecom managers for review ment. e the information provided in the attachment and update your coordingly. Request for mapping/facility checks sent to any artment <u>will not</u> be forwarded but will be returned back to the in order to prevent duplicate request. If you have any please feel free to contact me. Thank you and have a nice	ORG 3-1	ORG 3 So ORG 3-1	outhern California Edison Thank you for your comments, they have been included within the Final Environmental Document. The County has contacted Southern California Edison for as-built information and will continue coordination with Southern California Edison through the design phase to identify conflicts and mitigation prior to construction.		



Gail Gardner Southern California Edison Compliance Programs 562-903-3167	
<b>From:</b> Castro, David <dacastro@rivco.org> <b>Sent:</b> Tuesday, May 28, 2024 3:23 PM <b>Subject:</b> (External):Markham Street Extension Project – Agency Notice of Availability of Draft ISMND</dacastro@rivco.org>	
Good afternoon,	
On behalf of the County of Riverside Transportation Department (County), please find attached a Notice of Availability (NOA) of a Draft Initial Study (IS) and Intent to Adopt a Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Markham Street Extension Project (proposed Project).	
This NOA is being distributed to seek your input on the scope and content of the Draft IS/MND.	
Draft IS/MND Review Period: May 28, 2024 to June 27, 2024.	
Please provide your written response to the mailing address noted in the NOA or via email to me no later than June 27, 2024.	
For more information regarding the proposed Project, or to view the Draft Initial Study with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration and supporting technical studies prepared for the proposed Project, please visit the Project's website at: <u>https://rcprojects.org/d10078-markham- street-extension</u>	
Should you have questions regarding the proposed Project or NOA, please contact me.	
Thank you,	
David Castro Associate Transportation Planner	

VPDES Coordinator	
ounty of Riverside Transportation Department	
125 14h Strate	
525 14th 5treet	
liverside, CA 92501	
i51 955 9719	
lacastro@riyco.org	
low are we doing? Click the link to tell us	
Confidentiality Disclaimer	
This email is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is addressed. The information contained	
n this message may be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure.	
f you are not the author's intended recipient, be advised that you have received this email in error and that any use,	
lissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please	
elete all copies, both electronic and printed, and contact the author immediately.	
Lounty of Kiverside California	

#### **ORG 3 Attachments**

Policy letter for private parties



July 01, 2022

#### Subject: Requests for Southern California Edison Facility Map information

All requesting parties will be charged for our services. If you are requesting on behalf of a city/county, the request must come from a city/county employee email address. No exceptions. You may be asked to sign a non-disclosure agreement depending on project size and location.

The process for obtaining copies of SCE Facility Maps is outlined below. Please read carefully and save for future reference.

1. Requests may be submitted by: Email (preferred) or US mail. No phone requests.

\*\*To avoid duplication, please use only one method\*\*

MapRequests@sce.com	(OR)	Southern California Edison Attn: Map Requests Bldg D 1444 E. McFadden Ave Santa Ana, CA 92705	
---------------------	------	--	--

- 2. Please fill out the (pdf) "Facility Map Request Form" and attach with your request.
- 3. Using the "Facility Map Request Form", please be *precise* about the location to be researched, listing all streets from point A to B, etc. on cover letter. Facility Map requests should define the exact project route or site using **Google Map or Assessors Map**. A clearly marked/highlighted map should accompany all requests. Large Tract maps will not be accepted.

Copies of facility map(s) will be provided at a cost of \$20.00 per map. Upon completion of the facilities research, PDF copies of existing facilities maps will be sent to the email requester via secure SharePoint link (*Please make sure to check all spam/junk folders*). An invoice for the cost of providing all maps and services will be sent separate to the requester within ten (10) business days after the maps are sent out. Delinquent payments will result in future map requests being delayed or denied. Please be sure to include invoice stub and write invoice number on your check and send to the address shown on the invoice to ensure proper credit to your account and avoid delaying future map requests.

If you have any questions, please contact:

Lawrence Hurst Map Sales Supervisor Lawrence.hurst@sce.com (714) 943-9293
	Date: mm/dd/yyyy
Ri	equestor Information
Requestor Name:	
Company Name:	
Company Mailing Address:	
Company City & Zip Code:	
Email Address:	
Contact Phone Number:	
Fe	ee Acknowledgement
Fee Acknowledgement *By checking this box above, you are acknowledgement	owledging that you will be charged a fee of \$20 per map in
Fee Acknowledgement *By checking this box above, you are ackno requested area. If this box is not checked	owledging that you will be charged a fee of \$20 per map in d it could cause delays with the Map Request. Map Information
Fee Acknowledgement By checking this box above, you are acknowledgement requested area. If this box is not checked How will you be using the documents?	owledging that you will be charged a fee of \$20 per map in d it could cause delays with the Map Request. Map Information
Fee Acknowledgement *By checking this box above, you are acknowledgement requested area. If this box is not checked How will you be using the documents? Project Name/ Number/ Location/ Street A	owledging that you will be charged a fee of \$20 per map in d it could cause delays with the Map Request. Map Information
Fee Acknowledgement *By checking this box above, you are acknowledgement requested area. If this box is not checked How will you be using the documents? Project Name/ Number/ Location/ Street A *Please email this form along assessor's map.	nowledging that you will be charged a fee of \$20 per map in d it could cause delays with the Map Request. Map Information Address of Project: <b>g with a clearly marked google map or</b>



## **Facility Map Request Form**

#### Frequently Asked Questions for Records Request

#### Why do I need to fill out this form?

Southern California Edison (SCE) must keep track of what information is released and to whom for cyber security purposes. This form also allows for more consistency in the way that we receive map requests.

#### Who needs to fill out this form?

Anyone requesting Southern California Edison facilities inventory maps. This includes, but is not limited to:

•Customers, Contractors, Consultants and developers

•Cities that have franchise agreements with SCE

•Other local, state or national government agencies

#### What information do we need?

•Your contact information (name, company, company mailing address, e-mail address, phone number) •Street address/ location of your property/ project

•The reason for requesting maps including the type of project and the general scope

#### What happens after I submit the form?

The form will be reviewed by the Map Sales team. If your request is determined to include Critical Energy Infrastructure Information (CEII), you will be required to sign a Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA). This agreement is specific to the individual signing it, as well as to the project. If multiple people will access the information, each person must sign the agreement. Each project should be submitted as a separate map request and will be individually reviewed to determine if it will require and NDA.

#### How long will it take for me to get my information?

Southern California Edison has ten (10) business days to respond to any request for public documents – but every effort will be made to provide a response as quickly as possible. You will receive an automated response with current turnaround time. Turnaround time may vary for receipt of maps based on current map requests volume. (*Note: If you do not receive this automated email response, please check all spam/junk folders*).

#### Who do I talk to if I have questions?

For questions about this form and/or the records request process, please contact the Map Sales team at MapRequests@sce.com.

Energy for What's Ahead<sup>™</sup> | 2

Initial Study Markham Street Extension Project

# 1.3 Comments Received from Individuals

Responses to comments received from individuals are provided below.

	arkham Street Extension Project Public Meeting Tuesday, June 18, 2024 Woodcrest Library 16625 Krameria Ave Riverside, California	IND 1 Siz	hang (John) Xiao Thank you for your comments and attending
Thank you for attending tonight's public meeting. Your comments are impor Please print or write as clearly as possible. Thank you. Name: SIZHANG XIAO Address - City, State, ZIP: 18761 Hermosa ST, Riverside, CA9 Email: John Xi 88 Ogmail. com Phone: QSI 5821838 Leave comments, mail or email by June 27, 2024 to: County of Riverside Transportation Department ATTN: David Castro Browerside, California, 92501 decastrochrive.org Please share any suggestions/comments you have about the project. H: David, orginame is Sizhang (John) Xiao and OWNER of the parcel at the corner of Rossevelt ST The power no is 267190010. I bought this property Year. The county record may not yet show the owns the public notice from the seller so that I got to meet meeting on June 18.2024. So from now on please k Loop so that I don't miss out any information I nee to be closely involved in the process and make swe the through smorthy. That Res ! Here is my info: Sizh Isroli County smorthy. That Res ! Here is my info: Sizh Isroli	Riverside, California 5:00 p.m 6:45 p.m. tant to us. 2508 2	D 1-1	Thank you for your comments and attending the public meeting. Your comments have been included within the Final Environmental Document. This comment does not address environmental topics evaluated in the Draft ISMND, nor does it address the adequacy of the Draft ISMND. However, the County will keep you up to date on any changes pertinent to your property.

Castro, Da	avid
eastro, bt	

From:	Robert Diaz <rjdiaz95@gmail.com></rjdiaz95@gmail.com>
Sent:	Wednesday, June 26, 2024 9:51 PM
To:	Castro, David
Cc:	Jenny Diaz
Subject:	Comments on the Draft Initial Study for the Markham Street Extension Project
Follow Up Flag:	Follow up
Flag Status:	Flagged

CAUTION: This email originated externally from the <u>Riverside County</u> email system. DO NOT click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Mr. Castro,

We are writing to provide comments on the Draft Initial Study and Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Markham Street Extension Project. While we understand that the County of Riverside has determined that the proposed project will not have a significant effect on the environment due to the incorporation of avoidance and minimization measures, We have several concerns that need to be addressed.

#### 1. Increased High-Speed Traffic in Equestrian Communities:

The extension of Markham Street will significantly increase high-speed traffic into our equestrian communities. This presents a considerable safety risk for equestrians using the riding trails on the south side of Markham Street. To mitigate this danger, we ask that the project include a provision to fence off the riding trails from the project area through the Washington Street intersection. This protective measure will help ensure the safety of riders from the increased vehicle traffic.

#### 2. Traffic Impact on Owl Tree Road:

The project will cause a significant increase in traffic on Owl Tree Road between Washington Street and Markham Street. This is because vehicles traveling north on Washington Street use Owl Tree Road as a shortcut to avoid stops on Washington and Markham Streets. Similarly, vehicles traveling from Roosevelt Street, and now the Markham Street Extension, will continue to use Owl Tree Road when headed south on Washington Street. To discourage this cut-through traffic and prevent speeding through the neighborhood, We ask that additional stop signs be added on Owl Tree Road as part of the project.

Please institute these additions if the project proceeds. These measures are essential to ensure the safety and well-being of our community, which will be significantly impacted by increased traffic.

Should you have any questions or need further clarification, please feel free to contact me at

### **IND 2 Robert and Jenny Diaz**

IND 2-1

IND 2-2

IND 2-3

IND 2-1 Thank you for your comments and attending the public meeting. Your comments have been included within the Final Environmental Document. This comment does not address environmental topics evaluated in the Draft ISMND, nor does it address the adequacy of the Draft ISMND. However, your comment has been acknowledged.

IND 2-2 The Project includes roadway improvements proposed in accordance with the roadway classification and designation of the roadway as a secondary highway in the Riverside County General Plan Circulation Element. The speed limit through the Project limits would be consistent with other roadways that are designated as a secondary highway in the Riverside County General Plan Circulation Element. Although equestrian activity does occur south of Markham Street and the Project area, the portion of Markham Street from Wood Road to Roosevelt Street is not designated for equestrian use; therefore, a fence is not planned for implementation at this location. Regional trails, community trails, historic trails, and non-county public lands trails as designated by the Riverside County General Plan Circulation Element require the provision of buffers between streets and trails, and between adjacent residences and trails. However, the Riverside County General Plan Circulation Element does not identify a trail of any kind within the Project area. Therefore, a fence or partition to separate the area used for equestrian activity from the road as suggested by the commenter is not required.

Thank you for your attention to these concerns. Sincerely, Robert & Jenny Diaz 17387 Owl Tree Road Riverside, CA 92504	Impact Assessment Technical Memorandum included an analysis of the portion of Markham Street between Owl Tree Road and Roosevelt Street, shown in Figure 3 of the Technical Memorandum. For each of the years considered, the levels of service (LOS) along this roadway segment would be maintained as LOS A, which is considered satisfactory LOS, similar to the existing condition. Owl Tree Road was not included in the analysis because the trip distribution assumed drivers will use Markham Street or Washington Street rather than Owl Tree Road. Drivers would be less likely to use Owl Tree Road as it requires more turns and a longer distance travelled. Whereas Markham Street and Washington Street contains more travel lanes and allow higher speeds of travel. Therefore, additional stop signs along Owl Tree Road are not required for Project implementation.
--	---

Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration Markham Street Extension Project

This page is intentionally blank.



# Peter Aldana Riverside County Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder 2724 Gateway Drive Riverside, CA 92507 (951) 486-7000 www.rivcoacr.org

#### Receipt: 24-148802

Product	Name	Extended
FISH	CLERK FISH AND GAME FILINGS	\$0.00
	#Pages	2
	Document #	E-202400590
	Filing Type	8
	State Fee Prev Charged	false
	No Charge Clerk Fee	false
Total		\$0.00
Change (Cash)		\$0.00

1



24-148802         STATE CLEARINGHOUSE NUMBER (2024051174         LEADAGENCY         COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION         DACASTRO@RIVCO.ORG         OD/20/20/20/20/20/20/20/20/20/20/20/20/20/	f applicable)	
STATE CLEARINGHOUSE NUMBER           STATE CLEARINGHOUSE NUMBER           2024051174         LEADAGENCY EMAIL         DATE         COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION         COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION         DACASTRO@RIVCO.ORG         OS/28/2024         COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION         DACASTRO@RIVCO.ORG         OS/28/2024         COUNTY/STATE AGENCY OF FILING         ROJECT APPLICANT FINING         PROJECT TITLE         MARKHAM STREET EXTENSION PROJECT         PROJECT APPLICANT MAME         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS         CITY         STATE         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS         CITY         STATE         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)         State Agency       Pri         CHECK APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)         State Agency       Pri         CHECK APPLICANT Report (EIR)         State Agency         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)	'f applicable)	
2024051174         LEAD AGENCY         COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION         DATE         COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION         DATE         DOCUMENT NUMBER         ROJECT APPLICANT AGENCY OF FILING         PROJECT TITLE         MARKHAM STREET EXTENSION PROJECT         PROJECT APPLICANT NAME         MARIO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY         S01 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO         CHECK APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)         X       Local Public Agency         X       School Disfrict         Other Special District       State Agency         Pri       School Disfrict         CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       State Agency         Check Applicable Program (CRP) document - payment due directly to CDFW       \$1,377.25         Mitigated/Negative Declaration (MND)(ND)       \$2,916.75       \$         Zempt from fee       Notice of Exemption (attach)       COFW No Effect Determination (attach)       COFW No Effect Determination (attach)         Certified Regulatory proful (attach previously Issued cash receipt copy)       State Agency       \$<		
Set Workdown Content Plance Interview of Lead Agency Email       Date         Lead Agency       DATE         COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION       DACASTRO@RIVCO.ORG         COUNTY/STATE AGENCY OF FILING       DOCUMENT NUMBE         RIVERSIDE       DOCUMENT NUMBE         PROJECT TITLE       MARKHAM STREET EXTENSION PROJECT         PROJECT APPLICANT NAME       PROJECT APPLICANT EMAIL         MARIO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY         S91 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)       [X] Local Public Agency         [X] Local Public Agency       School District         CHECK APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)       [X] Local Public Agency         [X] Local Public Agency       School District         CHECK APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)       [X] Local Public Agency         [X] Local Public Agency       School District         CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       [State Agency         [X] Mittigated/Negative Declaration (MND)(ND)       \$2,916.75         [X] Certified Regulatory Program (CRP) document - payment due directly to CDFW       \$1,377.25         [X] Exempt from fee       [Notice of Exemption (attach)]         [X] Fee previously paid (attach previously Issued cash receipt copy)		
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION       DACASTRO@RIVCO.ORG       05/28/2024         COUNTY/STATE AGENCY OF FILING       DOCUMENT NUMBE         RIVERSIDE       E-2024005         PROJECT TITLE       MARKHAM STREET EXTENSION PROJECT         PROJECT APPLICANT NAME       PROJECT APPLICANT EMAIL         MARKO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY         S10 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)       [X] Local Public Agency         [X] Local Public Agency       School District         [X] Local Public Agency Program (CRP) document - payment due directly to CDFW       \$1,377.25         [X] Exempt from fee       Notice of Exemption (attach)         [X] Exempt from fee       Notice of Exemption (attach)         [X] Fee previously paid (attach previously issued cash receipt copy)       State Agency	DATE	
COUNTY/STATE AGENCY OF FILING       DOCUMENT NUMBE         RIVERSIDE       E-2024005         PROJECT TITLE       MARKHAM STREET EXTENSION PROJECT         PROJECT APPLICANT NAME       PROJECT APPLICANT EMAIL         MARIO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY         S11 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)       [X] Local Public Agency         School District       Other Special District         CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       [School District]         CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       [School District]         Certified Regulatory Program (CRP) document - payment due directly to CDFW       \$1,377.25 \$         Exempt from fee       [Notice of Exemption (attach)]         Exempt from fee       [Notice of Exemption (attach)]         Fee previously paid (attach previously issued cash receipt copy)       State Agency of the securic control Board onth)		
RIVERSIDE       E-2024005         PROJECT TITLE       MARKHAM STREET EXTENSION PROJECT         PROJECT APPLICANT NAME       PROJECT APPLICANT EMAIL       PHONE NUMBER         MARIO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM       (858) 712-82         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY       STATE       ZIP CODE         591 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO       CALI       92108         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)	2	
PROJECT TITLE       MARKHAM STREET EXTENSION PROJECT         PROJECT APPLICANT NAME       PROJECT APPLICANT EMAIL       PHONE NUMBER         MARIO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM       (858) 712-82         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY       STATE       ZIP CODE         591 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO       CALI       92108         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)	90	
MARKHAM STREET EXTENSION PROJECT         PROJECT APPLICANT NAME       PROJECT APPLICANT EMAIL       PHONE NUMBER         MARIO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM       (858) 712-82         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY       STATE       ZIP CODE         591 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO       CALL       92108         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)       Image: Check appropriate box)       Image: Check appropriate box)       Image: Check applicant Check approprise box)       Image: Check applicant C		
PROJECT APPLICANT NAME       PROJECT APPLICANT EMAIL       PHONE NUMBER         MARIO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM       (858) 712-82         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY       STATE       ZIP CODE         591 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO       CALI       92108         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)		
MARIO OSORIO       MARIO.OSORIO@HDRINC.COM       (858) 712-82         PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY       STATE       ZIP CODE         591 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO       CALI       92108         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)		
PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS       CITY       STATE       ZIP CODE         591 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO       CALI       92108         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)       State Agency       Pri         Mitigated/Negative Agency       School District       Other Special District       State Agency       Pri         CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       Environmental Impact Report (EIR)       \$4,051.25       \$	39	
591 CAMINO DE LA REINA, SUITE 300       SAN DIEGO       CALI       92108         PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)       Image: Check appropriate box)       Image: Check appropriate box)       Image: Check appropriate box)         CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       Image: Check appropriate box)       Image: Check		
PROJECT APPLICANT (Check appropriate box)		
X       Local Public Agency       School District       Other Special District       State Agency       Pri         CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       Environmental Impact Report (EIR)       \$4,051.25       \$		
CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       \$4,051.25       \$	ate Entity	
CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:       \$4,051.25       \$		
Environmental Impact Report (EIR)       \$4,051.25       \$		
Mitigated/Negative Declaration (MND)(ND)       \$2,916.75       \$		
Certified Regulatory Program (CRP) document - payment due directly to CDFW \$1,377.25  Exempt from fee Notice of Exemption (attach) CDFW No Effect Determination (attach) Fee previously paid (attach previously issued cash receipt copy)		
Exempt from fee  Notice of Exemption (attach)  CDFW No Effect Determination (attach)  Fee previously paid (attach previously issued cash receipt copy)  Water Pight Application or Petition Fee (State Mater Resources Control Board only)  S850.00  S		
Notice of Exemption (attach) CDFW No Effect Determination (attach) Fee previously paid (attach previously issued cash receipt copy) Water Pight Application or Petition Fee (State Mater Resources Control Board only) \$850.00		
CDFW No Effect Determination (attach)  Fee previously paid (attach previously issued cash receipt copy)  Water Pight Application or Petition Fee (State Mater Resources Control Board only)  \$850.00  \$850.00  \$		
Fee previously paid (attach previously issued cash receipt copy)		
Water Dight Application or Detition Fee (State Water Descurces Control Board only) \$850.00 \$		
🗖 Mater Diabt Application or Delition Fee (State Mater Resources Control Board only) S850.00 S		
	<u>¢0 00</u>	
County documentary handling fee	\$0.00	
□ Other \$		
Cash   Credit   Check   Check <td>\$0.00</td>	\$0.00	
SIGNATURE AGENCY OF FILING PRINTED NAME AND TITLE		
X J Jueda Deputy Isabel Tejeda		



Lead Agency: County of Riverside Transportation Dept. ATTN: Mario Osorio Address: 591 Camino De La Reina, Suite 300 San Diego, CA 92108

# FILED/POSTED

County of Riverside Peter Aldana Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder

E-202400590 05/28/2024 04:56 PM Fee: \$ 0.00 Page 1 of 2



# Project Title

Markham Street Extension Project

# Filing Type

Environmental Impact Report

Mitigated/Negative Declaration

Notice of Exemption

Other: NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY

# <u>Notes</u>

# **PUBLIC NOTICE** Notice of Availability of a Draft Initial Study and Intent to **Adopt a Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration** Markham Street Extension Project PUBLIC MEETING INFORMATION June 18, 2024 5:00 PM to 6:45 PM Woodcrest Community Library Warren Ro 16625 Krameria Ave, Riverside, CA 92504 **PROJECT LOCATION** WHAT IS BEING PLANNED?

The County of Riverside Transportation Department (CEQA Lead Agency) is proposing roadway improvements to Markham Street between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road for approximately 1.3 miles to improve traffic circulation in the community of Woodcrest in Riverside County, California. Proposed roadway improvements would include two 12-foot-wide travel lanes (one in each direction), with a 5-foot-wide westbound and 6-foot-wide eastbound Class II bike lane. The northern edge of the roadway would have an 8-foot-wide unpaved shoulder, and the southern edge of the roadway would include curb and gutters, a 6-foot-wide sidewalk, and a 6-foot-wide parkway. Traffic signal improvements and intersection modifications would be required. Existing property driveways would be modified to connect to new roadway improvements. Drainage improvements would include storm drains along the roadway and the addition of culverts to direct storm-flow drainage across the roadway. Existing utilities may require relocation or modifications. The proposed project would require partial right-of-way (ROW) acquisitions, temporary construction easements, and permanent easements.

Date:

Time:

Place:



The County of Riverside has studied the proposed project and concluded that it would not significantly affect the environment. The report detailing this finding is called an Initial Study. This notice serves to advertise the availability of the Draft Initial Study and your opportunity to read and comment on it, as well as the opportunity to attend a public meeting on June 18, 2024. The meeting will be an open house format; no formal presentation is planned. The County of Riverside Transportation Department will consider approval of the proposed project and adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the project after June 27, 2024.

### WHAT'S AVAILABLE?

The Draft Initial Study with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Markham Street Extension Project will be available beginning May 28, 2024. This document will be available for 30 days from May 28, 2024, until June 27, 2024. The document will be available for review at the following locations:

County of Riverside Transportation Department, 3525 14th Street, Riverside, CA 92501

#### https://rcprojects.org/d10078-markham-street-extension

## WHERE YOU COME IN

Please submit your comments in writing no later than June 27, 2024, to David Castro, Riverside County Transportation Department,

3525 14th Street, Riverside, CA 92501 or via email at dacastro@rivco.org. The date we will begin accepting comments is May 28, 2024. Based on study findings in the MND, the County of Riverside has determined that the proposed project will not have a significant effect on the environment because potential effects are less than significant level through the incorporation of the avoidance and minimization measures. Pursuant to Section 15072(g)(5) of the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, it has been determined that the project footprint is not identified on any of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the California Government Code pertaining to hazardous wastes. Your written comments will be considered in the decision on the project and will be forwarded to the County Board of Supervisors before action is taken on the project. Notice of said decision will be mailed to any person requesting notification. No decision will be taken until after the review period is complete.

## CONTACT

For more information about this project or to receive a copy of the Draft Initial Study with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Markham Street Extension Project, please contact David Castro, Associate Transportation Planner, Riverside County Transportation Department, at (951) 955-9719 or dacastro@rivco.org. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities may request reasonable accommodations, including auxiliary aids and services at no cost, to participate in the meeting by contacting the individual noted above at least three (3) business days before the scheduled event. This document is available in alternate formats upon request.





# **NOTICE OF DETERMINATION** COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT

EA No. <u>D1-0078</u>

SCH# 2024051174

# PROJECT NAME: Markham Street Extension Project

**DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION:** <u>The County of Riverside Transportation Department is proposing</u> roadway improvements to Markham Street between Roosevelt Street and Wood Road for approximately 1.3 miles to improve traffic circulation in the community of Woodcrest in Riverside County, California. Proposed roadway improvements would include two 12-foot-wide travel lanes (one in each direction), with a 5-foot-wide westbound and 6-foot-wide eastbound Class II bike lane. The northern edge of the roadway would have an 8-foot-wide unpaved shoulder, and the southern edge of the roadway would include curb and gutters, a 6-foot-wide sidewalk, and a 6-foot-wide parkway. Traffic signal improvements and intersection modifications would be required. Existing property driveways would be modified to connect to new roadway improvements. Drainage improvements would include storm drains along the roadway and the addition of culverts to direct storm-flow drainage across the roadway. Existing utilities may require relocation or modifications. The proposed project would require partial right-of-way acquisitions, temporary construction easements, and permanent easements.

1. The project will  $\square$  will not  $\boxtimes$  have a significant effect on the environment.

- 2. An Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA
- 3. A Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
- 4. Mitigation measures were  $\boxtimes$  were not  $\square$  made a condition of the approval of this project.
- 5. A Mitigation Monitoring plan was  $\boxtimes$  was not  $\square$  adopted.
- 6. Findings and a Statement of Overriding Considerations was  $\Box$  was not  $\boxtimes$  adopted for this project.

The project will not have a significant effect on the environment and a Negative Declaration has been adopted pursuant to CEQA and may be examined, along with administrative record, at the Transportation Department, 4080 Lemon Street, 8<sup>th</sup> fl, Riverside, California 92501.

The Final EIR may be examined, along with administrative record, at the Transportation Department, 4080 Lemon Street, 8<sup>th</sup> fl, Riverside, California 92501.

Jan t	Bulinski	Title	Environmental Project Manager	Date	9/11/24
🖉 Jan Bul	inski				
	San la	Title	Director of Transportation	Date	9/11/2024
Dennis	Acuna				
HEARING BC	DDY OR OFFICER		ACTION ON PROJEC	<u>CT</u>	
XX B	Board of Supervisors		Approval		
F	Planning Commission		Disapprov	val	
Board of Super-	visors Meeting Date/Item #:				